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BACHELOR'S
PARTY AND THE
DEADLY GUESTS

It was open house for all his
friends, but enemies came, too

LUST SLAYING OF
THE BLONDE
ON HORSEBACK

Somewhere, during her ride, :
she met a human beast £ i ; \"*i

MASKED
KILLERS OF THE
FARMER'S WIFE

They blazed a trail of terror
before they were tracked down

THE DOCTOR
AND THE MADAM

Her broad experience should
have taught her not to trust men




From all corners of the U.S. and Canada motorists report ...

AMAZING AUTOMOTIVE INVENTION

Yes, it was white working in conjunction with the Navy on ns
jet ‘and rocket research program that Rocket Scientist W.
Johns first unlocked the secret to his great new invention. Fnr
it was on engines such as this that Johns first discovered how
to unlock the latent power in wasted hydrocarbon atoms. THE
V[RV SAME ATOMS FOUND IN ORDINARY GASOLINE ... ATOMS
YOU CAN NOW UNLEASH INTO A SOURCE OF PISTON
DRIVING ENERGY FOR YOUR CAR! For full details read the rest

Born of Space Age Rocket Research delivers up to

30% MORE Miles per Gallon!
233% LONGER Life from Gil!
3 to 4 Times MORE Engine Life!

DYNATRON delivers this—AND MORE-for old cars,
new cars, your car, any car! And opens the door for YOU

of this exciting breakthrough in automotive engineering. tO Incred|b|e CASH PRO FITS L|ke thIS vee

$150%a day full time! *50°0 a day spare time'

Now! The automotive industry can be your oyster...to bring you earnings you Simple 2 Pal’t system ',

never dreamed possible! Imagine! 70 million private cars, 5 million trucks, fleets,

Here is W. A. Johns pictured
when interviewed recently by
Dave Garroway on NBC televi-
sion. Twenty million viewers
were enthralled. Thousands
wrote, wired . .. even phoned for
more_information. This is only
one in a continuing series of
publicity and advertising cam-
paigns that will open doors and

taxis, buses—anything on wheels that uses gasoline—waiting on your street, in
your town for DYNATRON to deliver mileage economies that defy the imagination!
And each and every one you sell puts up to $3.74 spot cash profit in your pocket!
Small wonder we talk about '$150.00 earnings in a day full time!"

You are invited to join with us as we enter a new age of automotive mileage and
engine performance miracles...with DYNATRON — the fantastic engineering ac-
complishment of world-famed rocket scientist, W. A. Johns; the simple two-part
system that unlocks more and more of the hydrocarbon atoms in ordinary gasoline
to produce more and more clean, smooth-running, surging power in any make or
model of car or truck regardless of age!...power that up to now has frittered
away out of the exhaust, and as engine destroying sludge, resin and carbon.

Yes, the DYNATRON story is as simple and startling as that! Wasted power in
gasoline now being utilized to drive cars 50% farther on every drop of fuel! And

Performs Gas Saving
Miracles on All Cars!
INSTALLSIN MINUTES!

checkbooks to OYNATRON dis-
|nbu(ors 1n every corner of the

MARKET IS VIRTUALLY LIMITLESS! PROFITS UP TO0 108!

No need to belabor you with the potential. It's there waiting to be toid and sold by

the dozens every day. And we help you with a dynamic, compelling, success kit...with

national and local advertising and publicity ...with brochures, flyers, mallmgs that

detail, and document the whole exciting story‘ it's all free for the asking—along with

pmtected distributorships—for the right, bright, ambitious man who proves he has a
50,000.00 a year earning potential.

every DYNATRON claim is proven in actual driving tests..

.over ten million miles
This is it! DYNATRON! The automotive inven-
tion that revolutionized the costs of owning,
operating and maintaining motor vehicles of
all kinds — private cars, trucks, buses, even
taxis! Takes minutes to install. No mechanical
knowledge necessary. Needs no adjusting, no
| replacement parts !

RUSH COUPON

You Don't Risk A Cent!

DYNATRON IS DOUBLY GUARANTEED! ‘

k Bell Atlantic, Inc., Dept. €-3, INCANADA: Address |

To You and to Your Customer Both! 381 Park Avenue, South 71 York, Toronto 1, Ont. |}

How’s this for a sales-clinching customer guarantee? No matter how old the car may New York, N.¥.10016 1

be, no matter its make or model, no matter if it's a bus, truck, even a taxi, no matter V:s. k)ﬂ:’ur IDVN(ATRON Dea; r:sdsasolld m‘ me. Ship m: starting order a)s |

Sl checked below (my money back in 30 days if | am dissatisfied for any reason).

v\fhere, ruwf, how !nuch the vehicle is driven...DYNATRON must deliver at least the»gavs. Include the high powered SUCCESS KIT without extra cost. l

oil and engine savings stated, or it may be returned to Bell Atfantic, Inc. anytime within | l
one year for a full purchase price refund. No questions asked. What's more, we make D 1 enclose $5.00 for one DYNATRON Unit. Ship postpaid.

the refund directly to your customer. You keep ALL THE PROFIT even on the sales that You save $1.95 from regular retail price. l

may not stick. And this guarantee to you and your customer is good for one full year D | enclose $49.80. Ship one-dozen DYNATRON Units—retail value $83.40. l

after purchase. Profit on this starting deal—$33.60 clear. l

Once in a lifetime, perhaps, a man finds a deal that can set him up for life. We believe plus one extra DYNATRON as a bonus, 5

this is just such a deal for us...and for you—no matter your age or education, even Please reserve a distributorship in the foliowind temitory forme: |}

if you don’t know a nut from a boit! Response from salesmen who want to grab this l (county or counties) l

opportunity with both hands has already flooded us with mail. Don't get left out. Fill I Name

out and mail the coupon today! l

Addre Phone. 1

City. Zone __ State. 1

B E L L Z Miles/Gallon

I NC. Make of Car. Year/Model Now. 1

Opening orders limited to one-dozen to each person. 1

381 Park Avenue South, New York, N. Y. 10016 | T T - - e e -




Has shop in basement —gets
’more and more work all along’’

HAD PRACTICALLY no knowledge of any kind of repair
work. One day I saw the ad of NRI in a magazine and
thought it would be a good way to make money in my
spare time. Now I am busy almost all my spare time and
my day off —and have more and more repair work coming
in all along. I have my shop in the basement of my home.”

—JOMN D. PETTIS,
172 N. Fulton, Braarey, lilinois

IF YOU'VE BEEN WANTING TO START
“A LITTLE BUSINESS OF YOUR OWN”
IN YOUR BASEMENT OR GARAGE

CHECK the advantages of NRI training in Servicing Electrical Appliances

(J STEADY DEMAND for your services. Over 400 million appliances
in US. — 6 million sold last year alone — mean shortage of
trained appliance service men.

[J NO ELABORATE EQUIPMENT NEEDED — just simple hand tools, and
Appliance Tester which we provide at no extra charge.

(0 START SMALL — GROW BIG. You can start out in your own base-
ment or garage, in spare time. Gradually expand until you
open your own shop.

[J NO NEED TO RISK YOUR SAVINGS. Many businesses require a
sizable investment. But here you can build up a following of
customers first, then open a full-time shop if you wish to.

[ EARN $3 TO $s PER HOUR. Fixing appliances is a high-paying
skill because the demand for trained men is so great.

[0 ENJOY SEMI-RETIREMENT ON A GOOD INCOME. When you’re ready
to retire, you can devote a few hours a day to this work.
Live and work anywhere you please.

[CJ] NO PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE OR TRAINING NEEDED. We tell you and show
you everything you need to know, in plain English and clear pictures.

F YOU'RE like so many men today,

you've been ‘“hankering” to start “a
little home business of your own.” In
spare time at first, then maybe full-time
later on. Something you’d enjoy — and
that pays well. Something that fills an
existing need in your neighborhood or
town — that “sells itself,” without any
high pressure arguments — that doesn’t
take a big investment or elaborate equip-
ment.

This is it—-Servicing Electrical Appli-
ances! Now is the perfect time to get into
it. Sales of electrical appliances have
skyrocketed. Look how YEARLY
SALES have risen since 1950: Coffee
Makers — from 900,000 to 4,750,000.
Room Air Conditioners—from 200,000 to
1,800,000. Clothes Dryers—from 318,000
to 1,425,000. Floor Polishers — from
240,000 to 1,090,000. No wonder that
men who know how to service appliances
properly are making $3 to $5 an hour—
in spare time or full time!'

Your Skill Always in Demand
— “Set Up Shop’’ Anywhere

People need their appliances fixed in
good times or bad. Onceword gets around
that you are trained to service them,
you’ll have plenty of work.

Your training costs less than 20¢ a day.

And you need only the few basic tools you
may already have — and an Appliance
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Tester which we provide at no extra charge.
You can work anywhere—in a corner of your
basement or garage, even on the kitchen
table. If you like, you can open up your
own shop, have others work for you. And
you can save money by fixing your own
appliances.

FREE BOOK

and Sample Lesson

Our 24-page Free Book tells how you can
“cash in” on America’s “Electrical Appli-
ance Boom'"”—the money our students are
making, what they say about us.

Free Sample Lesson shows how simple
and clearly illustrated our instruction is—
how it can quickly prepare you for a profit-
able future in this big field. Mail coupon,
letter, or postcard to: National Radio Insti-
tute, Dept. 824-025. Washington 16, D.C. (No
obligation — and no saleaman will call on
you.)

EARN WHllE YOU LEARN
with this

APPLIANCE
TESTER

— Yours
at No Extra
Charge

Your NRI Course comes complete with all
the parts to assemble a sturdy, portable
Appliance Tester that helps you earn while
you learn. Easy-to-follow manual tells how
to assemble and use the Tester right away.
Locate faulty cords, short circuits, poor con-
nections, etc. in a jiffy; find defects in house
wiring; measure electricity used by appli-
ances; many other uses.

With this Tester you save time and make
money by doing jobs quicker, making sure
appliances operate correctly after repairs.

r———————— - CEED GEED GEED S G G GEED G GEED GEED S S =

NATIONAL RADIO INSTITUTE
Dept. 824-025, Washington 16, D.C.

l Please re Free Book about your Electrical Appliaice Repair l

I Course and a free Sample Leason. I am pacticularly interested in:
i l [ spore Time Earnings [J Business of My Own [ Better Job l
"t-; { I I understand there is no obligation on my part; and no salesman will call. :
_{ l INGIDE 5oy« o 2reromor ¥ o s e b ol ST T ET T % o Fe o e ke« apese s 1
Oprog "{M l Adigessld . N ... IR e W e e l

——

.._""T l City' . . ..l 2one. . . .. State. . ............. I
= l Accredited Member National Home Study Council l

e s s — — — —— — — — — —— — — ——— — — —— i
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tdst Week

" mwu
Ci m‘nn Suite muc:

Div., 147 W. 42 5.,
IN CANADA: Muga Cu., 14d., 371 Duwd Street, Monteeal 1, F.Q.

HEAR WHISPERED SECRET
CONYERSATIONS — THRU SOLIO WALLS

NOW — with ordi-
nary malerials You
can casily make a
Super Directional
- Mike that amplifiex
nound 1,000 timesx.
YES, YOV CAN
ACTUALLY HEAR
CONVERSATIONS
THRU WALLS. Used by agents. So simple (o
make. that you will be aning your Saper Dicec-
tional Mike 15 minulex after You obtain the
ordinary store materials. Fasy inatructions.

Sromdord Americon [Secretl Suite 507-DC3,
147 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y. 10036

FAST Amazing new
ROACH CAKE
attracts reaches from their hiding
places . . . then they Feed ond Diell!

New, Fost DEADSURE results against
ROACHES & WATERBUGS. Simply place new
ROACH CAKE wherever roaches or water-
bugs ore ond o little loter the results will
amoze yov. Bugs die in seconds ofter contoct
ond ore drown to the caoke. New, modem,
sanitary way . . . no fumes, no mess, no
domage to walls or furnishings. Use wherever
they are o problem . . . indoor or out.

TWO (2 a2. ROACH CAKES) SI S8 o 22e
(5 tor 3.50 plus 35¢ pp & hd) pp & nd

SCOTT MITCHELL HOUSE, INC.
Sulte 507, 1472 Broadway, New York 36, N.Y.

FREE CATALOG

OF excztm
LINGERIE

A fabulous colle tion of eye-
catching, breathtaking, &
pulumrmin% boudoir * play AL
clothes” dare to be |
different and dramatic, more
feminine, bewitching and
exqumteiy beautiful than =
anything you've ever [
dreaned Ppossible. £
Created to tease and please W
. . . for the siren, sophisti-
cate or young at heart. 4
Yours free no . simply
(r.u':h num& and address
cover e 3
hﬁllnt) s

HWSE OF VALENTINE

Suite 307-DC3, 147 W. 42 8t., New York. N.V. 10038
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THE MONTHLY CRIME MAGAZINE
CONTENTS

DC HEADLINE STORIES

* TWO DEAD WOMEN FOR THE BEDROOM SLASHER _._Alan Masters 10
His blade was razor-sharp, his appetites unbridled

* THE ADULTERERS AND THE DOUBLE DOUBLE-CROSS. Bill 0'Rourke 12
The plot to knock off her husband had a startling finish

* HOODLUM EMPIRE: GANGDOM'S
BILLION-DOLLAR LOAN SHARK RACKET [Fergus MacGill 14

They don't sue to collect, they just break an arm or a leg

% LUST SLAYING OF THE BLONDE ON HORSEBACK _ Jerome Green 18

During her ride, the teen-ager met up with a fiend

% BACHELOR'S PARTY AND THE DEADLY GUESTS

All his friends came, also those not so friendly

* MASKED KILLERS OF THE FARMER'S WIFE Sam Balderige 34

They blazed a trail of terror before police tracked them down

%* MAD RAPIST OF CROWN HEIGHTS Mark Williams 42

Terror turned to panic as the toll rose to seven

Leslie Gomez 24

DC SPECIALS
%* THE BALLAD OF THE “BLOODY BARROWS” Leo Schutzman 20

No. 2 in GALLERY OFf EVIL--a series on America’s super criminals

* HONOLULU SHOOT-OUT! P Il Wilson McNamara 26

Actual photos of police and bandits in a gun duel

* HOT LOVE AND COLD DEATH .. Neil S. Wythe 30
No. 2 in series: WOMEN WHO WALKED THE LAST MILE
* THE DOCTOR AND THE MADAM Nelson Stein 38

A DC crime classic: the murder that rocked New York

DC DEPARTMENT
% POLICE OFF-BEAT 6

Short stories from the pollce blotter

Walter M. Riggs, Art Director
Curt Cooper, Photo Editor

Victor Michaels, Editor
James Forbes, Managing Editor

DETECTIVE CASES is publxshed monthly by Br kside Enterprises, Inc., 1472
Broadway, New York, N.Y. 10036. Adveaising offices: David Geller, 23 West
47¢h Sacer, New York, N.Y. 10036; Stewarc & Stewarr, 1085 Walnut Screet,
Des Plaioes, Illinois, Volume 15, No. 3, March, 1965. Second Class postage
aid at New York, N.Y. and ac additcional mailing offices. Copyright, 1964, by
Eruokslde Enterpnses Inc. Pric 35c per copy. $4.20 per cwelve issues. All
material submirted must be accompanied b suﬂicnem posmage for retura and is
submitted ac the sender’s risk. Prineed in the
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LEARN BY DOING! BUILD YOUR OWN
COMPLETE REFRIGERATION SYSTEM!
25 VALUABLE TRAINING KITS INCLUDED!

You lcarn by doing. Not just theory, but practical
home training that gets you. ready for big pay op-
portunities fast. All the tools, the parts, the step-by-
step help you peed to build -your own complete
refrigeration: system and to get expericnce fast for a
better job, a business of your own, or to earn extra
mongey in your spare hours.

What CTI has done for thousands of other ambitious
men, it can do for you too. But the first step must
be yours. Send for your FREE booklets now,

YOU BUILD
THIS UNIT

IF YOU'RE EARNING LESS THAN $170 A WEEK
READ HOW YOU CAN STEP UP TO BIG MONEY
IN AIR CONDITIONING, REFRIGERATION AND HEATING

thousands of top-pay jobs waiting right now—new
jobs opening every day, faster than they can be filled
IU's true. In the mushrooming air conditioning, refrigeration and
heating fields, there are more top-pay, steady johs availuble than
there are trained men to fill them. And still, new high-pay spots
are opening every day in these challenging and rewarding fields.
Check the want ads and see for yourself. You'll understand why
the pay is high. the work steady. and the future so bright. Over
20.000 men are nceded each year. men who really want to get out
of routine, unpromising jobs—who want to start high and move
ahead quickly in one of the fastest growing fields in America
today. See how easily vour can be one of these fortunate men. It's
all spelled out in our FREE booklet. SUCCESS IN AIR CONDI-
TIONING AND REFRIGERATION. Send for it today.

join the thousands of men who are already
torging ahead in this rewarding field—and

earn big money even while you learn

Nothing can tell you how secure your future can be better than
the comments of men who have already started their carcers in
Air Conditioning, Refrigeration and Heating:

"My wages have tripled since 1 entered this field.”—James Wiest.
Minn. “During the past 5% months, | increased my income by
$1150."—George Gulvas, Pa. “On a part-time basis, 1 am grossing
$440 to $600 per month."—H. K. Wolf, Wis. “Earnings have
more than doubled.”—Aaron York. Ind.

MAIL TODAY FOR FREE BOOKLET

Commercial Trades Institute
Chicago, lllinois 60626

Accredited Member National Home Study Council

DETECTIVE CASES

But far more important than the big money others have eurned
is the money and security you can ussure for vourself and your
family in this exciting ficld. And you can get into it without
losing a single day's time or pay from your present job—through
the famous CT1 method of spare-time, at home training.

MAIL COUPON FOR FREE BOOKLET WITH FULL
OPPORTUNITY FACTS . .. TODAY

If you're earning less than $170 a week. if you're not getting
ahead as quickly as you want to. and if you're sertous about
wanting more pay and a secure future, a good business of your
own. or important part-time earnings—you owe it to yourself to
look into these exciting opportunities: Air Conditioning. Refriger-
ation, Heating. Auto Air Conditioning. THE FULL @PPORTU.
NITY FACTS ARE YOURS—ABSOILUTELY FREE AND
WITHOUT OBLIGATION—IN THE FACT-FILLLED. IL.1.US-
TRATED BOOKLET PICTURED BELOW. Send for your copy
today. There is no cost—and it can be the first step to a more
secure future for you and your family. Don't put it off!

COMMERCIAL TRADES INSTITUTE |

1400 W. GREENLEAF AVE. °* CHICAGO, ILL. 60626

Please send me, absolutely free and without obligation. your DEPT R-381
illustrated booklet. SUCCESS IN AIR CONDITIONING AND -
REFRIGERATION, with full details on the many big pay
I opportunities waiting for trained men in Air Condtioning,

Refrigeration. Heating. and Auto Air Condtioning, Also in-
clude, free of cost or obligation, your easy-to-follow sample
lessons.

| Name AGE |
ADDRESS
CiTY STATE ZIP CODE

I Accredited Member National Home Study Council




POLICE /BEAT

SILENT ALIBI. A patrolman was cruising
along o street in Kansas City, Missouri,
when he spotted o truck going through
a red light. Turning on his siren full
blast, he took off after the miscreant.
The truck, though, ignored the siren and
didn’t pull up. Finally the patrol cor
pulled ahead of the truck and stopped
it. When the patrolman demanded on

explanation, the 81-year-old driver said
to him, “You'll have to speak louder,
son. The battery on my hearing aid went
out a few minutes bock.”

A STICKY AFFAIR. A San Francisco
dredge operator was ot work on the
Richardson Boy mud flats when he sow
a woman floundering through the muck
towards his rig. At he watched, the
woman began sinking. She was already
hip-deep in the mud when the gallant
dredge operator reached her and
hauled her to safety. When the lady
was free of the morass, she promptly
handed her rescuer a court order which
the local folks had procured in on effort
to prevent the bay from being filled.
She had been on her way to serve the
order when she got stuck in the mire.
The dredge operator told her sorrow-
fully, “Why, | just saved your lifel”

EXPENSIVE WHISTLE. A youthful mo-
torist, driving through Studely, England,
spied two pretty village maids and
pulled a cord he had recently installed
in his car. The cord was attached to a

6

whistle which shrilled when the cord
was pulled. Unfortunately when he
sounded his mechanical wolf whistle,
he didn‘t know that o constable was on
duty right across the road. Since using
an automobile horn is illegal in England
unless it is used for a good reason, the
young wolf was hailed into court. He
told the judge: “t built the whistle on
Friday, fitted it on Saturday, was
booked on Sunday, and sold it to o mate
on Monday for a pound.” The court
exacted o fine-—one pound. The young
man paid with the pound he hod re-
ceived for his whistle.

JOB WITH A FUTURE. According to o
report of the American Bankers Associa-
tion, the safest way to rob a bank is to
work in one. According to the associa-
tion’s statistics, in the first six months of
1964 bonk employees embezzled $3.4
million as compared to $1.6 million
stolen in the 296 successful holdups in
the nation during the same period.

HIGH BUT NOT UP. A drunk was being
booked at a station house in Milwaukee,
Wisconsin. “What's your occupation?”’
the police lieutenant inquired of the in-

ebrioted one. The drunk answered, “I'm
on unemployed astronaut.” Space was
provided him in the tonk.

TACKS DODGER. Tempers were hot on
the police force of Tyler, Texas. They
were being besieged by more than 100
irate motorists who hod flat tires. It
seems that o prankster was littering

Tyler’s streets with roofing nails. To
make matters even more irritating to
the cops, two of the police cars dis-
patched to hunt down the joker were
delayed by flat tires.

FOWL DEED. The police in West Islip,
New York, received the following tale
of woe from o local housewife. I told

my husband 1 had invited my family for
Thanksgiving dinner,” she complained
to the cops. “First, he threw my dinner-
ware out the front door, piece by piece.
Then he hit me over the head with a
frozen turkey.”

KEEPING IN PRACTICE. A member of
the Colorado state legislature visited
the penitentiary at Canon City and,
while there, managed to lock himself
out of his automobile. A con from the
prison’s medium-security section needed
only a few minutes to open a window
and get the keys from the ignition. A
guard told the legislator, “We hove all
kinds of talent here.”

TRACKING GAME. Word reached the
Lee County conservation officer in Illi-
nois that a hunter was bogging pheas-
ants in @ manner contrary to low and
custom. In fact, the unorthodox hunts-
man hod shot a bird trom a moving
train near Amboy. Even more unusual,
according to the report, was the detail
that the train then backed up so that the
hunter could retrieve the slain fowl. The

DETECTIVE CASES



best-paid jObS il‘l
business today... |

Be an ACCOUNTANT

Train in your spare time with LaSalle
LaSalle graduates report up to 56% increased pay the first year

HE demand for trained Accountants far exceeds the Send for Free Booklet and Sample Lesson
supply. Salaries keep going higher, promotions ¢ you are truly seeking a more re- .
come faster. Many Accounting-trained men are being warding job, with higher pay, a solid
moved up to important management positions. Why position in the business world, and all
remain in a dull job with insufficient pay when you the good things that come with suc- |

- P cess, you owe it to yourself to read |
canreap such big rewards in money and prestige ? LaSalle’s famous booklet **Opportuni- |

You can take LaSalle Accounting training at home, ties in Accounting’’. With it you will
in your spare hours, without any previous bookkeeping receive a free sample lesson in Ac- |/
experience. LaSalle’s distinguished faculty starts you °°“n°l“8 which will demonstrate how |
at the beginning; explains every basic Accounting prin- tﬁ:{i‘; gm:]l:gs tll:g::fugslt-ﬂgypﬁ?t,i' cal.
ciple and method; gives you actual Accounting prob-  Majl the coupon today. i
lems with your lessons, then corrects and grades your | _ — — —
work; shows you exactly how accountants on the job
handle these problems. Your training is complete, l LA SALLE EXTENSION UN'.VERS'TY I
practical, and enjoyable. You are thoroughly prepared p—_— DA Co"”‘:nd;"ce I;;t:s“s"ogh y ;
for every Accounting task you will be expected to R R s = - ogr- S-060. Chicalie s, I 4
handle in the business world.

I
|
. ) | .Please send me, free of cost or oblig_ation, your l
Your career could not be in more experienced hands. illustrated booklet ‘‘Opportunities in Account-
For over half a century, LaSalle has been a world leader I ing’’ and also your sample lesson. |
in business training, with over 1,000,000 students. More [ |
than 5,500 Certified Public Accountants have trained |
with LaSalle. A LaSalle diploma in Accounting is a |
credential respected by America’s biggest companies. |
I

LA SALLE EXTENSION UNIVERSITY
A Correspondence Institution Chicago 5, I1l.
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conservation officer sent a radio flash
ahead to halt the train which consisted
of an engine and caboose. When the
officer caught up with the stopped train
at Rock Falls, he found three pheasants
—two of them already dressed—and a
loaded shotgun in the caboose. At the
end of a brief investigation a conductor
was charged with hunting without a li-
cense, with shooting from a train, and
with having in his possession a loaded,
assembled, uncased shotgun.

COSTLY BEAN. Some four years ago a
lady slipped on a dried bean in a Mo-
bile, Alabama, grocery store. She sued
for injuries and a jury recently awarded

her $10,000, and her husband $3,000.

NO PHOTO? An obliging burglar made
things easy for the Denver, Colorado,
cops. Retrieved at the scene of the crime
was an automobile payment receipt
which the thief had dropped. It had his
name and address.

PLUM CRAZY. Three cons who took off
without leave from the Colorado prison
honor farm made the mistake of carry-
ing off with them some jugs of the sauce
that exhilarates which they had brewed

trom plums raised on the prison farm.
They paused in their flight for a few li-
bations and were picked up, tanked to
the gills.

IN PLANE VIEW. An attempt to dog-
nap a German shepherd in Antioch,
California, was foiled by an unusual
combined air and ground rescue opera-
tion. The two dog snatchers grabbed
the pooch and took off in an auto, un-
aware that the abduction was observed
by the animal’s master who, with his
young son, was flying a plane over An-
tioch Airport. Father and son made a
fast landing, hopped into the family
heap, and took up the hunt on wheels.
They caught up with the thieves four
miles away and rescued the family pet.

TWO OUT OF THREE? A thief picked
the wrong house in Belgrade, Yugo-
slavia, to burgle. He found himself

T
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pinned helplessly by the house’s owner,
Jovan Pavicevic, one of Yugoslavia’s
foremost heavyweight wrestlers.

HAIRY ALIBI. Witnesses to a burglary
in Bristol, England, made things tough
for the police who tried to fill in a re-
port on the incident. The witnesses were
unable to say whether the burglar in
an office block was male or female be-
cause of the culprit’s long hair. An offi-
cer, possibly referring to the Beatle in-
fluence, said: “You know how things are
these days.”

SPIRITUAL ADVICE. Two notices that
appeared on the bulletin board of a
church in Plymouth, England, posed a
difficult problem for the topers among
the church’s flock. One read: “’Strong
drink is your worst enemy.” The other
charitably advised: ““Make your worst
enemy your best friend.”

SHIRT TALE. Fortunately, the conse-
quences were slight when a school bus
with 65 youngsters plunged over a
seven-foot embankment in Asheboro,
North Carolina, and overturned. Al-
though nine of the young passengers
were hospitalized for observation, none
of the children was seriously injured.
investigation by the highway patrol re-
vealed that the accident occurred when
the driver, a 16-year-old substitute, re-
moved his shirt and attempted to hang
it up while he was driving the bus.

DRY RUN. Hearing the cries of a drown-
ing man, a courageous Miami youth
rushed to the rescue by jumping off a
causeway bridge. Unfortunately, he
didn't hit the water; instead he landed
on the catwalk fishermen used, breaking
an ankle. The drowning man was saved
by another passerby.

EMBARRASSED COPS. The police of
Nashville, Tennessee, are seeking a thief
who burgled atraffic cop’s apartment
and made off with loot which included

fifty tickets for the next month’s police
benefit show. Benefit of whom?

IN HOT WATER. A Brooklyn bookie
thought up a real cute scheme to foil
the law in case of a sudden raid on his
one-man betting operation on Smith
Street. What usually trips the illegal
handicappers is being caught with bet-
ting slips in their possession, so the
Brooklyn smartie began writing his bets
on gelatin paper. He kept a pot of
water boiling on his kitchen stove, his
plan being to dissolve the slips in the
hot water should the law suddenly de-
scend on him. When such a raid did in-
deed take place recently by officers of
the police commissioner’s confidential
investigating unit, the betting slips were
duly shoved into the boiling water. The
bookie ruefully discovered that business
had been too good. There were more
slips than the pot could hold, and some
drained off onto the floor. The still in-
tact gelatin slips provided the evidence
the cops needed.

PAR FOR THE COURSE. A motorist
outside Sandwich, England, drove off
the road, one dark night, and came to

a stop in a bunker near the 11th hole.
He found himself in a 15-foot-deep sand
trap and was stuck there for hours.

HORSE PARLOR. A lady in Hutchinson,
Kansas,took her little daughter to school
and then returned home to find a horse
chewing up her living room rug. The
Shetland pony belonged to a neigh-
bor’s child and had wandered into the
house through an open door—no doubt
lured by the green pile of the rug.

LIKE ON TV. A police officer in Brad-
ninch, England, patrols the village in
his own 1935 Rofls-Royce. The six-foot-
tall copper explained that “there is
plenty of room for me to drive with my
helmet on.”

DETECTIVE CASES



Jeweled
CALENDAR
WATCH
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wakie S/ 95

TALKIE

Transmits,

receives. Fits

in shirt pocket. Aerial
extends for more distant
reception.

Swiss movement.
Tells time and date.
Includes beautiful
metal expansion band.

4-TRANSISTOR $
TAPE RECORDER

Records, plays back,
erases, rewinds. Includes
tape, reels, microphone.

Over 250 exciting new imports you can buy below

wholesale to help BIG MONEY lMPORT

you get into a

=</~ BUSINESS OF YOUR OWN

Knife Set s1 / Fantastic Bargains From All Over The World
: Get You Off To A Quick Start .. vou can profit your first

- day . . . You need no previous experience. It doesn’t matter whether you

o e ) o work for somebody else, whether you have your own business. or whether
T'his exciting list shows just a few of the you are getting ready for retirement. Import-Export offers you profits and
startling buys which have been an- opportunities beyond your wildest dreams. You don’t even have to pay for
nounced. Newer, fresher offers will be merchandise in advance when you use myDrop Ship plan. All the profits
sent to you every month. I could make are yours when you deal direct with overseas suppliers. I place my secrets
up a list like this every week, based on of Import profits in your hands. I tell you exactly what you need to know.
news I receive from my overseas sources. My extensive travels to remote comners of the globe as well as to the famous
markets of Europe and the Orient cement relationships with suppliers. They

Derringer
Pistol
$5.99

10-tr Radio 4.95 8mm Movie Projector 2.80

Man's Silk Tie .65 || Electric Blanket  4.96 personal]v_ give me advance news that I can pass on to you about new

"“:I:“;SC:'UG;BSIS:: . -zg ?’"I"::::;'c‘i"’;"e" 2“-3: product discoveries. Bargains like I show you here (and thousands more
Ay X L e ; dazzling values that are yours below wholesale) go fast to stores, premium
Fishing Rod-Reel .50 Hockey Stick .70 4 3

Elec. Hair Dryer  3.25 || Portable T.V. 47.50 users, mail order and friends.

Cigarette Lighter 21

Motorcycle 118.50
FM Hi-Fi Radio 8.80
Movie Title Kit 1.00
Beaded Handbag 1.01
Flashlight 10

Transistor Radio 1.70
Cardigan Sweater 2.00

Spinning Reel .96
Stop Watch 1.12
Wrist Radio 2.90
Model Boat Kits .65

Table Tennis Set .29
Ladies Xnit Suit 4.50
Intercom Set 5.00
Electric Scissors 1.32
Human Hair Wigs 12.00
Plastic Raincoat .14
Water Pistol .08
Dozen Colf Balls 1.83
Slide Viewer 1.20
Ladies Gloves 1
Ukelele 2.00
Massage Unit 1.64
0il Painting 1.25
Adding Machine 18.00
Electric Train 1.50
Knitting Machine  4.20
Badminton Set 60
Radio Spectacles 7.70
Tennis Racket S
Rifle Scope 1.85
10" Inflatable Globe 2. os
Water Filter 1.9
Check Writer 8. 80
Hearing Aid 9.89
Radio Amplifier .88

Star Sapphire Ring 6.00
.01V,

Fishing Flies
Elec. Can Opener 6.40
7-pc. Fishing Kit .50

Beer Stein 13
Sunglasses .15
Marking Pen 12

Oisposable Razor .02
Sewing Machine 3.15
Star Saphr. Pendant 2.50
Electric Shoe Shiner 1.5%
Port. Typewriter 22.50
Windbreaker Jacket 1.20
Tailored Man's Suit 22.50
Electric Toothbrush 1.25
Elec. Fishing Rod 9.00
20-pc. Dinnerware 1.15
4-pc Steak Knife Set .17
Swiss Musical Bank 1.00
Elec. Immersion Htr. .19
24-pc. set Flatware 1.55
Butane Cig. Lighter .60
Electric Hair Comb 1.49
Expand. Watch Band .11
Laminated Skiis (2} 13.66
Elec. Pencil Sharp. 1.26
Hunt. Knife & Sheath .11
Embroid. Sweater 5.50
Elec. Hand Grinder 1.23
Hd.PaintedWailScroll .77

St.Steel Razor Blade .03%

7-pc. Golf Club Set 22.25
Austrian SkiSweater 5.46
Port. Radio-Phono 13.00
Elec. Xnife Sharp, 5.05
Elec. Letter Opener 1.60
Elec. Eye Turn Off 1.87

Prices subject to availability

and market fluctuation

# HOME BUSINESS
FULL TIME—-PART TIME

* AGE NO BARRIER

« START ANYWHERE -
TOWN, CITY, COUNTRY

* NO EXPERIENCE OR
LARGE INVESTMENT

* SHORT-CUT PLAN

How to Do It!

Famous World

@ I'll reveal the same
secrets af Import.Export
that made me a fortune

. Show you how to
start on a shoestring.
then pyramid profits in
this booming 830 billion
dollar business. My plan
saves you monthsof prep.
aration lets you make
your first import trans-

| Guide You Step
by Step—Show
You What to Do,

B. L. Mellinger, Jr.

Trader, President of
The Mellinger Co.

MEN & WOMEN FOLLOWING MY PLAN REPORT:
“On my very first transaction I made $904.00 for
just 4 days work . . . My wife and I started this
business together . . . ” D.M.C. “With an initial
investment of less than $100, I have grossed a
| profit in the neighborhood of $12,000 .. .”" D.L.S.
. ‘I was stumbling along on a time card job with-
out much future. Now I can enjoy the freedom
and security of a business of my own . ..” w.J.J.

Many beginners start this way with lmle capual
A R R
A Business of Your Own

Excmng cash profits are rolling in for importers who
cash in on the skyrocketing World Trade boom. The
Mellinger Plan tells exactly what to do step-by-step-
jam-packed with vital information. concrete examples.
immediate introduction to contacts abroad. Send for
FREE BOOK, “How to Import and Export” - get
details about amazing buys available overseas. Use
Mellinger experience to get started fast.
Mail coupon today. Air Mail reaches
us overnight.

Remarkable Book Sent FREE!

?M’.r,.f‘hr.n.ir;.mw}.l"' T

action vour very first day.

I "THE MELLINGER CO., pept. P112
1554 S. Sepulveda Blvd., Les Angeles, California 90025

Send Free Book plus details on more products | can buy
abroad to start a business of my own. Show me how | can
get bargains like these to make big profits.

DO NOT ORDER FROM US

Plan shows where you get buys
like these for big profit sales.

RUSH COUPON for
My Plan. Get detalils

Prices shown are direct about8 Free Imports! Name
from suppliers abroad. 17 adiivess
THE MELLINGER CO., Dept. P112 | .
Cit Stat ZipN
1554 S. Sepulveda Bivd., Los Angeles, Calif. 90025 e e L
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Lynne Buillard, Donna’s cousin, talks with officer after looking at suspect.

The crazed killer's modus operandi was simple and direct—
his blade was razor-sharp, his bestial appetites unbridled

Two Dead Women
for the
Bedroom Stasher

by Alan Masters

* “DONNA! OH, DONNA!" Enter-
ering the spacious two-story house on
a quiet street in New Orleans, Lynne
Buillard called up the stairs to her
cousin, Donna Trussell. This was
Donna’s eighteenth birthday, - and
Lynne had dropped by with a man
friend to take Donna to a celebration
being given by relatives.

Donna Trussell, a slender, beautiful
blonde, was a gifted amateur actress and
she had also been attending a modeling
course in New York City. She was a
cousin of the gorgeous Lynda Lee
Mead, who was Miss America in 1960.
Lynne Buillard had just talked with
Donna on the phone and had expected
her to be ready to leave.

When Donna failed to answer her
call, Lynne started up the stairs. It was
then that she heard the struggle and a
woman’s sharp, piercing screams. The
sounds seemed to come from Donna's
bedroom.

Fighting back fear. Lynne ran on up
the stairs. She stopped before the open
bedroom door, then stood frozen with
sheer terror, unable to scream or utter
a sound. It must be a nightmare, she
thought—something that just couldn't
be happening to Donna.

Her lovety cousin lay on the bedroom
floor which was spattered with blood.
Leaning over her, holding her down.
was a man who had a long-bladed knife
in his hand. His back was toward Lynne.
Apparently he did not know she was
there.

Too terrified to act or think clearly,
Lynne Buillard fled down the stairs and
out the front door.

“Call the police! Donna’s being mur-
dered!” she cried to her friend who was
waiting outside.

He raced to a drugstore on the cor-
ner and telephoned the police. To speed
things up further, he started to run back
along the street, looking for a patrol
car.

Just ahead of him he saw a man on a
bicycle dart out from alongside the
Trussell house. The man pedaled off
furiously down the street, turned a cor-
ner and vanished.

Moments later, at about |l a.m.,
police cars began converging on the
scene. They were soon followed by an
ambulance and cars with newspaper.
radio and television crews. The date was
January 2, 1961, and New Orleans was
starting off the new year with one of the
most spectacular murders in the city's
history, a case which it took the police
nearly four years—until late in Novem-
ber, 1964—to bring to a solution.

Among the early arrivals at the Trus-
sell house on South Gayoso Street were
Captain Myron Weysham, head of

DETECTIVE CASES



homicide, and Detective Jimmy Hand.
Lynne Buillard and her friend described
the man whom they had both seen. They
were agreed that he was a Negro be-
tween 25 and 30 years old, about S feet
9 inches tall and weighing 160 pounds.
They said he was wearing a black trench

e .
| mq : _-.’ ;
| i

m‘} ¥ W

Mrs. Lillian Harris, the second victim.

Police say this man admitted to murders.
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coat over a mustard-colored shirt and
dark, tight-fitting trousers.

Police cars were dispatched to scour
the neighborhood for the bicycle-riding
suspect.

Then, vaulting up the stairs, the two
officers joined the crew of a radio car
who were already in the girl's bedroom.
There could be no doubt that the lovely
blonde actress was dead. Donna Trus-
sell’s clothing had been ripped off. Her
shapely body was covered with stab
wounds and she had been slashed across
the throat and the abdomen.

When Coroner Nicholas J. Chetta
arrived, he shook his head in disbelief.
“I've never seen anything like this,” he
said. “The slayer was a blood-crazed,

sadistic fiend. He kept right on stabbing
the girl, even after she was certainly
dead.”

Dr. Chetta described the murder
weapon as a razor-sharp heavy-bladed
knife. He said there was no doubt that
the victim had been raped. possibly
after death. )

Detectives who examined the other
rooms painted an even more gruesome
picture of the assault. Apparently the
girl had first been attacked and stabbed
in another bedroom and had struggled
with her assailant there. Furniture was
damaged and a television set had been
knocked over. A trail of blood led down
the hall from this room to, the bedroom

(Continued on page 69)

Donna Trussell, amateur actress and modeling student, was slain in her bedroom.
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by Bill O’Rourke

e ADULTERERS s e

DOUBLE DOUBLE-CROSS

HELP WANTED: Two pros to knock off a hushand at the going rate!

% AT THE END OF September, 1964, a mutual friend
introduced Mrs. Peggy Jo Johnt to Robert C. Pitz. It
would have been far better for everyone concerned had
he not done so. Peggy Jo Johnt was 22 years old, a
brunette with a sullen and sexy face. She was eniployed
as a secretary by the Powers Management Company
whose offices were in the Walbridge Building in Buffalo,
New York.

She had been married for four years to Paul E. Johnt,
a 25-year-old machine operator for the Western Electric
Company, in nearby Tonawanda. Paul Johnt was a hard
worker whose hobby was bowling, an activity in which he
engaged, with remarkable regularity, every Friday night.

Paul Johnt was an ordinary, solid citizen. If he differed
in any way from the average man, it was because of his
unstinting devotion to the young woman whom he had
married—and a degree of trust in her which was to prove
extremely dangerous to him.

Robert C. Pitz, the hypotenuse of the astonishing triangle,
was 24 years old, a bouncer and part-time bartender at
Buffalo’s Rusty’s Tavern.

Now whether Pitz and Peggy Jo fell in love at first sight
is not a matter of record. But an emotional attachment
occurred somewhere along the line. By the middle of Novem-
ber there was something between them far more serious
than snatching a kiss or two beneath a sprig of mistietoe.

Well, as some romantic once remarked, the path of love
never runs smoothly, and, in the case of Peggy Jo and
Robert Pitz, it was rockier than usual.

Because Peggy Jo was burdened with a husband, discre-
tion was called for. Pitz could not visit his love at her home
in the evening since Paul Johnt was there. Pitz couldn't call
at the house during the day, because Peggy Jo wasn’t there;
she was in the Walbridge Building doing whatever secretaries
do.

And even if Peggy Jo managed to leave the house in the
evening on one pretext or another, all she could do was
talk to Pitz amid the bright lights of Rusty’s Bar, because
these were his working hours.

Quite obviously even the glibbest marriage counsellor
could not resolve a situation as complicated as this.

Now, there exists a sentimental school of thought which
may ask why the love-starred pair didn’t elope. Love con-
quers and excuses all, so why not leave all else behind and
make off for Samarkand, Tierra del Fuego or even Trenton,
New Jersey?

Well, that bright and romantic thought may well have
crossed the minds of Peggy Jo and her bouncer boy friend.
But there was a powerful deterrent to such an elopement.
Tickets to Samarkand, Tierra del Fuego and even Trenton,
New Jersey cost money. Pitz and his girl friend didn't have
any.

Paul Johnt didn’t have much, either. Even though Johnt
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and Peggy Jo had no children, Johnt had very little money
in his bank account; nor did he own his own home. He and
his wife lived in the second floor apartment of a frame
house on Hopkins Street in South Buffalo. However, Paul
Johnt did carry two insurance policies on his own life, each
of which contained a double indemnity clause.

So, from the point of view of Peggy Jo and Pitz, the
sudden death of Paul E. Johnt would solve all their problems.
There would be no impediment to their idyllic love affair.
Peggy Jo would collect on the life insurance which would
furnish the money to buy plane tickets to some kind of
remote Disneyland where lovers live happily forever after-
ward.

However, Pitz and Peggy Jo were practical people. They
were skeptical about miracles, especially favorable miracles;
moreover, they were quite familiar with the Biblical axiom
that the Lord helps those who help themselves.

Paul Johnt, intended victim of murder-for-insurance plot.
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Officers Amico (left) and Giambrone (standing) foiled alleged murder plot by Peggy Jo Johnt (center) and Robert Pitz (right).

AUL JOHNT, of course, was only mortal but he was
also only 25. He had a life expectancy of at least
another 40 years. That is a long time for a pair of ardent
lovers to wait, and even if they had been patient it remains
highly questionable that their ardor would still exist.

But, since the sudden and immediate demise of Paul Johnt
would so perfectly solve all the pressing problems of Pitz
and Peggy Jo, it was decided to give Johnt a strong hearty
nudge in the general direction of the grave.

Not that either of them intended to do this personally.
After all, they were not killers; they were simple, middle-
class citizens who had never in all their lives been booked
for the commission of a crime. It would be necessary to hire
a professional or two. This, the first detail of the plot, was
left in the hands of Robert Pitz.

He had, he told Peggy Jo, certain connections. He knew
his way around and while he didn't actually know any pro-
fessional murderers, he knew people who could put him
in touch with the men they needed.

On November 25th, Robert Pitz had a long, discreet con-
versation with a man he knew as Moley. Moley was about
35 years old, a sharp dresser and a fairly heavy spender al-
though he was possessed of no visible source of income.

Moley was reputed to know his way around the Erie
County underworld and on this cold Wednesday night, the
eve of Thanksgiving, Pitz and Moley sat in the former’s car,
parked in a lot near Rusty’s Bar.
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Pitz explained the situation, even though not quite ac-
curately. “The whole deal will mean about fifty G’s,” he
said. “Peggy Jo will pick up the insurance, double indemnity
for a homicidal death. Then there's the house, the new car
and various odds and ends. Now, do you know someone
who'd do the job?”

Moley considered, then said, “How much you want to
pay?”

“Oh, the going rate,” said Pitz. “I don't know much about
these things. I'm willing to be generous but I don’t want
to get taken. You know what I mean?”

Moley nodded thoughtfully. Apparently, he knew what
Pitz meant.

“Okay,” he said, “I'll pass the word. Someone who’s
interested will hear it and get in touch with me. Then, I'l
put the guy in touch with you. I'll have him call you at
Rusty’s.”

On Saturday, November 28th, Moley telephoned Robert
Pitz at Rusty’s Inn.

“I got two guys,” he said. “They’ll do that job for you.
They'll call on you tomorrow. Their names are Sam and
Mike.”

“Good,” said Pitz. “What are their last names?”

Moley was shocked by the question. “In cases like this,”
he said, “nobody ever mentions last names.”

He hung up.

At 7 o’clock on Sunday evening, two men walked into
Rusty’s place. They appeared to be (Continued on page 62)
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Hoodlum Empire: Gangdom'’s

by Fergus MacGill

Mike Genovese, named as investor in loan
firm, is seen as he leaves hearing room.

Thomas Manzo, described as a loan shark,
“took” Fifth Amendment on witness stand.

* SHE WAS in the kitchen, giving
lunch to her two young children, when
the telephone rang. Wiping her hands
on her apron she went into the hall
to answer it. A hoarse, anonymous
voice with a heavy Brooklyn accent
said, “Your car’s parked at the curb
right outside the house.”

“That’s right,” she said in some sur-
prise. "“What of it?"

“That's what you're going to find out.
Go to your window. Watch the car. See
what happens to it. And the same thing's
going to happen to you unless you
pay up.”

An abrupt click at the other end of
the wire terminated the conversation.

As she went to the living room win-
dow she was more frightened than sur-
prised: she felt that something ominous,
something menacing, was about to oc-
cur. And she was right.

She stared out the window at her

Jacob Grumet, chairman of New York probe, points out loan shark rates on chart.
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Billion-Dollar Loan Shark Racket

shiny car, less than two years old. In
less than a minute she heard the roar
of the explosion and saw the car blow
up as if it had been blasted with dyna-
mite. Which, as a matter of fact, it had.

Shaken and weeping, she collapsed
into a chair.

Her name was Mary and she was a
28-year-old blonde housewife with an
ill husband and two children. She lived
in a Long Island suburb, just outside
New York City.

She had never committed a crime.

“Your body is your
collateral!”’ —
and the borrower
got $1 million

She had never been unfaithful to her
husband. Her life had always been nor-
mal. But, now. she was terrified. She
knew she was in grave danger and so,
perhaps, were her children. She was in
the grip of the loan sharks.

She had made this fearful error, part-
ly because of ignorance, partly because
of desperation. In the beginning, every-
thing had seemed so simple; she had had
no idea as to what she was committing
herself.

Her husband had been in the hospital
for several weeks. That, in itself, was ex-
pensive and, in the meantime, the mort-
gage had to be paid and the children
had to be fed. She badly needed money
and she didn't know where to get it.

She didn’t try the bank because she
had no collateral, and she didn’t try one
of the small personal loan companies
because she didn’t have a steady job.
Then, someone in the neighborhood
told her to see Rocky.

Rocky was represented as a kindly
fellow who was quite willing to lend
cash to needy people and not to ask any
embarrassing questions. Mary called at
his office and made a deal.

She was delighted to find it true that
Rocky didn’t mention collateral. He
offered to lend her $1,000 in cash.

“Now,” he said, “all you have to do is
pay me back six for five. And you can
pay off the loan any time you like.”

Mary took the cash, thanked her
benefactor, and went home believing
that all her worries were over. They
were, in fact, just beginning.

By six for five, Rocky meant that
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Mary would pay back interest of $1 for
every 35 he had lent her—every week.
In short, the interest was $200 a week
or $10,400 a year on a $1,000 loan, a
matter of more than 1000 percent and
this would continue until she could also
pay the $1000 principal. Moreover, if
the interest wasn’t paid promptly, Rocky
charged interest on the interest. A few
transactions like this and the Duponts
would be in trouble.

When Mary failed to pay she was
threatened; her car was blown up and

she was told that her children’s lives
were at stake.

All these facts were elicited from the
terrified girl at a hearing recently con-
ducted by the New York State Investi-
gation Commission, headed by Jacob
Grumet and calculated to expose the
nefarious activities of the loan sharks
in the state. But it is not only in New
York that these usurers function. Their
activities are nation-wide and they are.
on many occasions, bankrolled by the
infamous Cosa Nostra.

Newly elected Senator Bob Kennedy pledged his help in fight against loan sharks.




OW, IN New York, as in certain

other states, the laws concerning
usury are about as effective as were the
laws concerning prohibition. Licensed
establishments. such as banks or small
loan companies, are regulated; however,
under some circumstances, some of the
latter can collect better than 20% an-
nuaily. But there are few legal brakes
on individual lending.

An individual may borrow any am-
ount over $800 with no interest limit:
a corporation may legally undertake to
pay any amount of interest on any sum
at all. Therefore, the amount of interest
a loan shark may stipulate is regulated
only by the desperation of his client.

There is. however, a statute on the
books which states that. when the in-
terest charges on a loan are usurious,
the lender can not use the courts to
collect. In short, the borrower may re-
fuse to pay back both interest and prin-
cipal and there is no lawful redress.

To the uninformed, this might make
the entire loan shark business absurd.
Why not simply borrow the money from
the usurer, then flatly refuse to pay it
back? After all, he can’t sue.

Well, unless you really believe that
you are going to heaven and unless you
are in an inordinate hurry to get there,
don’t try it.

As one well-known loan shark invari-
ably warns his customers as he hands
over the cash, “I don’t require you to
put up any stocks or bonds. I don’t even
ask you to sign a note. Your body is
your collateral.”

That statement is quite true. Work-
ing for the shylocks, as they are known
in the trade, are the enforcers. The en-
forcers are professional strong-arm men
who will first harass you by telephoning
your home and office around the clock,
or by telling your neighbors and trades-
men that youre a deadbeat.

Then, if you still remain behind in
your payments, they will be most happy
to break your arm or leg. Knocking
down a delinquent client and kicking
him until the ambulance arrives is also
a popular pastime among the enforcers.

And, on occasion, a client will die.
An assistant district attorney of Queens
County stated that at least half the un-
solved killings in the Greater New York
City area could be attributed to the
army of hoodlums employed by the loan
sharks.

Of course, homicide is what Adolph
Hitler once called the “Final Solution.”
There is no point in murdering a client
as long as he possesses some ability to
pay his debt. However. when it becomes
utterly impossible for him to do so, well.
from the shylock’s point of view, he
mav as well be dead.

Then, he can at least serve as an ex-
ample to some other reluctant custo-
mers.

Threatening wives, children, fathers
and mothers is also standard procedure,
and when your car is blown up before
your eves as was that of Mary, the Long
Istand housewife, it proves to be a most
effective form of dunning.

And all this is not simply a local New

York problem. United States Senator-
Elect Robert Kennedy said that loan
sharking “probably furnishes more in-
come to organized crime syndicates
than any other activity except gam-
bling.”

During the New York investigation,
Manhattan Assistant District Attomey
Frank Rogers of the Rackets Bureau
supported Senator Kennedy’s statement.

“Certain Eastern loan sharks lend
money to their colleagues in the West.”
said Rogers. "In one instance, a New
York shark lent a million dollars
through the underworld network, then
he lent another million that same after-
noon.”

The assistant district attormey esti-
mated that the hoodlums extract a mini-
mum of a billion dollars a year from
their desperate victims.

“Five years ago,” Rogers told the
committee, “a top gangster passed down
$500.000 to his subordinates for loan
shark purposes. We now believe that
this sum has pyramided to $7,500,000.”

The Rackets Bureau lawyer continued
his testimony as he pointed out that,
quite often, the usurious lender takes
his victim's business away from him,
lock, stock and barrel.

“As a rule,” said Rogers, “the shy-
lock muscles into the business, taking
one-third when payments fall behind.
He soon has half. Then, one day, he
walks in and says, ‘Okay, we’ll swap
even. I'll forget the loan. You forget
the business. Now, it’s all mine, any-
Way.Q ”

Attorney William Power Maloney (right) points out spot where he said gangster Joseph (Joe Bananas) Bonnano (left) was kidnapped.
3 s
[
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NE OF THE first committee wit-

necsses was Frederick Pittera who,
at present. lives in Peru. Pittera testi-
fied that, in 1961, he operated two small
business concerns. Finding himself in
desperate need of funds, he turned to
the gangster loan sharks. He got in
touch with the First National Service,
ostensibly run by a mysterious Mr. X,
but believed to have been backed by the
Genovese family.

Pittera had borrowed $22,000, agree-
ing to pay $700 weekly, plus another
$25,300 in three weeks’ time. Less than
a year later, Pittera had handed over
$28.700 in interest but had not reduced
the principal by one cent.

His life was threatened on several
occasions and his wife came close to
having a nervous breakdown. Finally,
Pittera sent his wife away but, in the
meantime, his business went broke any-
way. Peru seemed to be a safe haven.

Carl Vergari, chief counsel for the
commissioner. pointed out that, save
for the threats to Pittera, nothing about
this transaction was illegal.

District Attorney Rogers agreed.
*“Often,” he said, “the strong-arm meth-
ods aren’t even necessary because the
reputation of the loan shark is sufficient.
It is his most prized possession. His
victims are terrified of him and his
hoodlums.”

A photographers’ representative told
of borrowing money from one Julie
Peters, reported to be a son-in-law of
Michael Genovese. Six years ago he
borrowed $200. agreeing to pay $10 a
week vigorish, as the usurious interest
is called.

After the photographers’ representa-
tive had paid off some $1,500, he re-
ceived a call demanding more money.
He said that he had lived in terror ever
since.

A respectable housewife was forced to
flee with her family because of loan
shark threats. She had committed the
grave error of borrowing $500 from
Julie Peters. then committed the even
graver error of not keeping up with her
payments.

She had received obscene letters de-
manding payment. She had been threat-
ened on the telephone. Terrified, she had
left the state, not even letting her close
friends know her address.

Prosecutor Rogers mentioned the case
of the son of a well-to-do business man.

“The youth met this loan shark,” said
Rogers. “and became fascinated by this
sinister character. He felt he was being
a big-shot by being seen around town
with the hoodlum. The shark then in-
veigled the boy into a series of bets un-
til he owed some $4.000. He paid off
by embezzling a great deal of money
from his father's firm.”

Rogers went on to say, “The loan
shark is always looking for a man in a
sensitive position to prey upon, to en-
trap.”

The assistant district attorney ex-
plained the workings of the racket.

“The absolutely top hoods who pro-
vide the cash.” he said, “collect 1%

DETECTIVE CASES

interest weekly, that’'s 52% a year. Their
lieutenants, to whom they give the cash,
naturally charge more when they lend it
to their own underlings. It’s actually the
fourth plateau of hoods who really lend
the cash and hire the enforcers.

“The interest. by this time, has be-
come prohibitive and the more desperate
the borrower. the higher the rate goes.”

There was, for instance. one case of
record of a $100 loan which, when re-
paid after six weeks. had accumulated
$1.800 in interest. over 15,000% per
year. There was a second item on which
the interest rate was 7,300%.

These loan shark activities are used
to support various other criminal enter-
prises. such as narcotics, prostitution
and even major robberyv. There is the
case of several loan shark hoodlums
who lent a group of burglars $5,000 to
perform a hijacking job. The stolen
cargo was turned over to the sharks who
made a neat profit on the transaction.

The influence of the Cosa Nostra and
its loan sharking allies is so powerful
that evidence showed that an official of
a famed Manhattan bank had become
engaged in several shady transactions
with the usurers.

One group of operators ran up a
series of unsecured loans with the bank
totalling $1.597,415.96. An official of
the bank informed the investigating
committee that he operated the loan
department and it was his business to
collect loans made by the man who had
preceded him in the job.

These unsecured loans had been made
to John Masiello. The bank official testi-
fied that these phoney loans had been a
“turnstile” operation, meaning that new
notes were taken in exchange for others
which had fallen due and that Masiello's
credit base had been increased by add-
ing other people to his organization.

In December of 1964, the Masiello
indebtedness had been reduced to some
$400.000.

It seemed that when certain of Masi-
ello’s debtors owed the loan shark a
great deal of cash, Masiello would take
them to the bank where they would be
granted an unsecured loan with which
to pay off the shylock. Out of that loan,
money would be taken to make a payoff
to the bank executive who arranged
the deal.

NE SHATTERED witness was

brought before the commission
from prison where he was serving a
long term for embezzlement. Formerly.
he had been a $25.000 a year executive
in the garment industry. His vice, it
appeared, had been gambling.

*I was living in a fantasy world.” he
said. *“I upped my bets on horses and
other sports until they averaged about
$1.000 per day.”

Over a decade or so. he had borrow-
ed more than $200.000 from the loan
sharks. Before the debacle, he was pay-
ing back over $2,500 a week.

In 1962 he was desperate. He took to
cashing his company's checks through a
check-cashing agency. He paid a bank

teller $10 a week to telephone him and
tell what was needed daily to cover his
check-kiting activities.

All in all. he cashed $200.000 worth
of these kited checks. 98% of the
money, he said, was promptly handed
over to the shylocks.

Another anonymous witness: identi-
fied 63-year-old Milton Kaufman who
lived in a luxurious apartment in Great
Neck, Long Island, as “one of the big-
est loan sharks in the entire country.”
Put on the stand, Kaufman invoked the
Fifth Amendment more than thirty dif-
ferent times.

Then, another witness who had once
been employed in the immediate credit
department of a garment center bank
identified the same Kaufman as a loan
shark who would set up a sort of tem-
porary headquarters in the institution
every day, between 1:30 and 2:30 in
the afternoon.

A bank employee would signal the
loan shark when a customer, seeking
credit, didn’'t have enough collateral to

(Continued on page 68)

Loan deals of Charles (Ruby) Stein
are rumored to be millions a year.




by Jerome Green

When shrewd
sleuthing

finally solved the
" mystery,

even the police
were surprised
by the

identity of the
pretty teen-
ager’s attacker

Orla Fay Fipps went riding one
afternoon and -was found slain.

LUST SLAYING OF THE
BLONDE ON HORSEBACK

% ON ELECTION DAY, 1964, the
citizens of the state of Oregon were
asked to vote on a proposal which
for years had been a source of intense
controversy. The proposal was to
abolish capital punishment as the
penalty for first degree murder in the
state.
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In 1914, as a result of strong pop-
ular feeling, the death penalty had
been termed a relic of barbarism and
stricken from the records. In the follow-
ing years, however, the state was
plagued with a series of such sensa-
tional murders that in 1920 capital
punishment was reinstated.

Now again, on November 3, 1964,
the people were asked to vote once
more on whether the taking of human

life was a legitimate prerogative of or-
ganized society or whether the matter
should be left strictly in the hands of
God.

And by a grotesque coincidence, as
the voters went to the polls that morn-
ing, newspapers throughout the state
headlined one of the most spectacular
slayings in recent years.

The murder had occurred on the out-
skirts of the city of Springfield, in west-
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ern Oregon, near Eugene. At 10 o’clock
on the evening of November 2nd, 21-
year-old Roy Stuckey, a member of a
search party, had come upon the dead
body of Orla Fay Fipps, a lovely blonde
16-year-old high school junior, in a
clump of evergreen bushes near a back
road. Her throat had been slashed and
most of her clothing had been torn off.
She had obviously been the victim of
a vicious sex slayer.

Orla Fipps was known to her friends
as an outdoor girl. At school she was
considered rather quiet, though she was
friendly. She sang in the school choir
and took part in Girls Recreation Asso-
ciation sports. Because of her striking
blonde beauty she was highly popular
with boys. but she did not date very
much. She had to like a boy before she
would go out with him. she explained
to her friends.

Orla’s particular interest was in horse-
back riding. In this her parents en-
couraged her, and she had a horse of
her own. Every afternoon after school
she went for a ride out into the rough
rural area of Cedar Flats, east of Spring-
field. This was the life she really en-
joyed. and her daily ride was a ritual
known to everyone in the community.

Quite often, Orla’s 15-year-old broth-
er went along on these afternoon outings,
riding his motorbike. Sometimes other
boys or girls in the neighborhood ac-
companied her on horseback. She liked
to have someone with her because her
horse had just been broken the previous
year. It wasn't trained well enough to
be dependable, and had already thrown
her once.

It was for this reason and not for
fear of any other kind of trouble that
Orla usually rode with someone. But
on Monday, November 2nd, none of her
friends was around and so she went
riding alone.

The pretty teen-age horsewoman al-
ways kept track of the time, and she
was invariably home before her mother
had dinner ready. But on this after-
noon she failed to return at her usual
hour. As it grew dark, her father, a
construction worker, become seriously
concerned. He was afraid she had been
thrown from her horse again and might
be lying severely injured in some remote
place. unable to obtain help.

At last William Fipps got together a
small group of neighbors and they went
out along the trail Orla usually took,
calling out her name. They were about
two and a half miles from home, in
desolate bush country, when at about
7 p.m. one of their calls produced the
responsive whinny of a horse.

The horse was Orla’s and he stood
riderless along the trail. not far from
a muddy back road. Certain now that
the high school girl had met with an
accident of some sort. the neighbors
beat through the surrounding brush.
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But the girl could not be found.

At last her father went back to the
nearest house and telephoned the Lane
County sheriff’s office. The call was
answered promptly by Sheriff Harry
Marlowe, who arrived on the scene with
a group of deputies and members of the
Waterville Volunteer Fire Department.
As word that the girl was missing spread
around. friends and neighbors of the
Fipps family joined in the hunt.

Among the searchers were a close
friend of the girl’s father, Karol Stuckey,
and his four sons. As Roy Stuckey, the
second oldest son, was walking along
the steep, muddy trail. he spotted some-
thing white in a clump of salal. Beaming
his flashlight toward it, he saw that it
was a torn white sweatshirt. With it was
a pair of badly ripped blue jeans, appar-
ently a woman’s.

Then he saw the nearly nude body
of Orla Fipps, lying face up in a gro-
tesquely twisted position in the bushes.
He blew a blast on the hunting horn
he was carrying and the other searchers
came running over.

Sheriff Marlowe saw that the blonde
schoolgirl was beyond human help. A
brief examination revealed that she had
been bludgeoned over the head and
stabbed twice in the neck. In addition
there was a deep knife slash across her
throat. Her disarranged underclothing
left no doubt that her murder had been
sexually motivated.

HERE WAS little that could be done

in the darkness, and so the area

was sealed off by police. The body was

covered and left guarded but untouched

for the rest of the night, so that crime

lab technicians and a pathologist could
examine it on the scene by daylight.

For the rest of that night. Sheriff
Marlowe and his deputies, aided by
state police. drove about the area. They
talked with nearby residents, trying to
determine whether anyone, either on
foot or horseback or in a car, had been
seen near the murder scene during the
late afternoon. This effort brought no
immediate result, however.

In the morning. sheriff’s deputies and
state police under Corporal Jack Win-
chester resumed the search at the scene
of the crime, looking for the knife or
other clues that might have been left
by the killer.

The hoofprints of the victim’s horse
were sharply etched in the soft ground,
but there were no other hoofprints. The
officers thought the girl's attacker must
have been on foot. They believed that
he might possibly have been hunting in
the area, and that he had forced the girl
to dismount from her horse by threaten-
ing her with his gun.

A checkup was begun on nearby resi-
dents who might have been hunting that
afternoon. Meanwhile, an on-the-scene
examination of the body by a county

This youth has been charged with murder.

pathologist failed to produce any further
information about the girl's death. Ap-
parently she had been stunned by a
blow over the head with some heavy
object before the sexual assault. Then
afterward her attacker had ruthlessly
slain her with the knife to seal her lips.

Sheriff Marlowe pondered the fact
that the murder had occurred only
seven miles from the scene of a previous
slaying. In September, 1960, the stran-
gled body of 7-year-old Alice Louise
Lee had been found in a bean field
near Trent, 18 days after she had
disappeared from her home. The child’s
slayer, obviously a sexual psychopath,
had never been found, and the sheriff
thought it possible that this same man
was the murderer of Orla Fipps and
that he lived somewhere in the imme-
diate vicinity.

Throughout the day the officers con-
tinued to search for someone who had
seen a man near the crime scene the
previous afternoon. At last toward eve-
ning, Corporal Winchester spoke with
a 15-year-old boy named Dwain Harden
who lived along Cedar Flats Road on
the outskirts of Springfield.

*I was over in that area from about
4:30 yesterday until it got dark,” he
said. “I took a bag with me and I was
picking apples. I was under a tree near
an old abandoned barn. not far from
where Orla Fipps' body was found. and
a man came up to me. He was carrying
a pump-action shotgun and I could see
he was out hunting. He asked me what
I was doing and I told him I was pick-
ing apples. I offered him one and he
took it. But he didn’t say anything else.
He just gave me a sort of a strange
look and then went away.”

The youth was sure he had never
seen the man before. He described him
as between the ages of 25 and 35, of
a sturdy build, and about 5 feet 8 inches

(Continued on page 64)
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Desperadoes Bonnie Parker and Clyde Barrow {above) were pals with Hamlitons.

GALLERY OF EVIL

BALLAD
OF THE
“BLOODY
BARROWS”

* REAL FOLK MUSIC springs from the oppression-
torn heart of a poor illiterate who never saw a note or
counted a measure in his life. It pours from the lips of a
tortured soul heaving a pick on a Southern chain gang
and echoes down the corridors of a mud and brick back-
woods jail. The words are seldom written down and the
song, more often than not, dies with its author by a jolt
of electricity or a plunge through a scaffold trap. Occa-
sionally, a song outlives its author, the words picked up -
from ear to ear and passed out to the fields.

The ballad of the “Bloody Barrows” has stayed alive for
many years. The brash, blonde gun moll who wrote it
is dead and buried in a Texas grave. The fantastic record
of the depredations which she commemorated in song is a
sanguinary chapter of American criminal history.

The ballad begins in a minor key:

“You have read the story of lesse James,
Of how he lived and died.
If you still are in need of something to read,

Here's the story of Bonnie and Clyde . . .”
“Bonnie” Parker was small, slim, and sultry. By no
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stretch of the imagination could she have been called a
beauty. Her hair was bright yellow and her ankles were
as trim as a dancer’s, but any illusion of soft feminity
disappeared after one look at her granite face and hard-
sinewed, muscular hands. She affected an alarming capac-
ity for smoking long black cigars, swore like a mule-
skinner, and could spit with the unerring accuracy of a
Missouri apple-knocker. Bonnie hailed from Dallas, Texas,
was respectably married to a man of impeccable character,
and eked out the family income as a waitress in a down-
town cafe.

The Clyde of the ballad was the youngest of the Barrow
boys. He was a shrimp, with an undershot jaw, soft eyes, and
a halo of wavy brown hair. But he was no sissy; he had
rawhide nerves, the stamina of a horse, and a professional
gunman's permanently curled trigger finger.

Among snakes, when boy meets girl, the event takes
place without benefit of formal introductions. Nobody in-
troduced Bonnie Parker to Clyde Barrow. He picked her
up on the street, and the two of them walked off together.
That was in February of 1932. They were seldom out of each
other’s company for the next three years, and together they
toured over a dozen states. Wherever they went they left
a trail of blood, empty cartridge cases, and black cigar-butts
with lipstick traces.

If there was any good in Bonnie Parker, and that is
much to be doubted. Clyde Barrow managed to corrupt it.
He had already chalked up a record as a safe-cracker or a
box-man and had become an accomplished car thief. He
and his brother Marvin, “Buck” to his pals and the police,

, had done time in the Huntsville pen and in Waco jail.
They had connections on both sides of the walls. On March
11th, 1930, both managed to escape almost within hours of
each other. For awhile, Buck managed to live on the lam
in the Oklahoma Ozarks. Clyde, after robbing the station
master "at the Middletown branch of the B and O, ran
straight into the arms of the cops.

It was the last time he ever went straight in his life.

After two years in Huntsville, Clyde hit Dallas with little
on his mind and less in his pockets. He had been out of
circulation for too long and wanted nothing but a chance
to live it up a little. Bonnie Parker, his pickup sweetheart,
went for him in a big way. She had a little money and

The modern Southwest had never seen
anything like these throw-backs
to the wild days of the old frontier
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Highway Patroimen Wheeler and Murphy were shot down by Bloody Barrows at spots in road shown above.

they went through her roll in jig time. When the dough ran
out, they committed a series of criminal sorties in quest
of more.

If Buck Barrow had been free in those days, there is no
telling how serious those early sorties might have been. But
Buck had surrendered to the police, some months before,
at the request of his new wife, a beautiful farm girl he
had met in Idabel, Oklahoma. Blanche Caldwell Barrow
wanted no part of living beyond the pale of the law and
persuaded Buck to turn himself in. From the day the gates
closed behind him, Blanche worked devotedly to secure

Posed piciure shows defiant Ciyde Barrow with rifle.




Oklahoma's Cookson Hills were combed in
all-out effort 1o end outtaw’s terror reign.

his legitimate release. And, truth to tell, Buck cooperated
by being a model prisoner. He deserved the pardon he
finally received on the 20th of March, 1933.

But by March of 1933 the name Barrow had already
become feared and hated through all of the southwest.
Young Clyde and his brash blonde paramour had de-
clared open war on society. They had become—in one short
year—the most notorious of all America’s public enemies.

ONNIE and Clyde hit the high road to criminal emi-

nence on March 25th, 1932, with the daring daylight
robbery of the Simms Oil Company in Dallas. They then
began an unpatterned swing through eastern Texas and
western Oklahoma. They stole car after car, mostly Ford
V-8's. They travelled staggering distances, sometimes pull-
ing jobs a thousand miles apart in one twenty-four hour
period. For nearly a month they were content to merely
.rob and pillage. Sometimes they abducted their victims and
all but frightened them to death, but it was not until April
30th that they first dipped their hands into human blood.

The first victim of their blazing guns was a jeweler in
Hillsboro, Texas, John N. Bucher, 61. The merchant oper-
ated a specialty store and lived with his wife in the apart-
ment upstairs. Bonnie, Clyde, and a Texas badman named
Raymond Hamilton, cased the Bucher establishment. The
merchant’s wife, who had a photographic memory, was
able to fix the three faces in her mind. After midnight,
on the 30th of April, Clyde and Ray Hamilton knocked
on the door of the store and summoned Bucher. They told
him they were having a little party and wanted to buy
some guitar strings. Suspicious, the old man slipped an
ancient horse-pistol into his bathrobe before he opened
the door.

He never got the chance to use it. With guns blazing, the
criminals cut him down and forced Mrs. Bucher to open
the store’s safe. Bonnie drove the getaway car when her
companions left the shop with forty dollars in cash and
twenty-five hundred in diamonds.

Sheriff J. W. Freeland of Hill County organized the
largest posse in Texas history in an effort to apprehend the
murderous trio. Mrs. Bucher’s identification of CBI mug-
shots squarely placed the responsibility for the killing where
it belonged. Bonnie, Clyde, and Ray Hamilton were sought
by hundreds of peace officers in every section of the state.

The Texas Rangers, after a tip which sent them hurrying
to the bleak hills near Nacogdoches County, narrowly missed
catching up with the killers. They were too late to corral
Bonnie, her lover, and their companion, but there was grim
evidence to the effect that the gang would be heard from
soon again. Clyde had set up a target range in the desolate
hill country. He and his cohorts had practiced marksmanship
for days on end and had perfected techniques with fire-
arms which they evidently expected to stand them in good
stead. They were girding for their war with the law in

22

much the same way as an infantry company prepares for
battle. They were ready to meet all comers, to ask no
quarter, and to go down fighting after they had made
their stand.

From Bonnie's ballad of the “Bloody Barrows,” comes
the brass note of Clyde's bravado concerning this decision:
“They've got their guns and I've got mine.

I guess ir's just as well
To take a few for company when
I go down to Hell”
In August, the Barrow gang numbered a few embittered
ex-cons whom Barrow had met in stir and in the under-
world dives of the southwest. He led his pack into the

National Guardsmen searched for Barrows in Cookson Hills.

Neuhoff Packing Company of Dallas, opened the safe and
took off with the owners’ cash and valuables.

While the Texas police searched for them, Barrow, Bon-
nie and their followers crossed the Oklahoma line to hide
out for a few days. On August Sth, Clyde attempted to
steal a car which was parked outside of a country dance-
hall, at Stringtown, a small village near Atoka. Challenged
by Sheriff C. G. Maxwell and Under Sheriff Gene C.
Moore, Clyde and his men answered with a hail of well-
aimed lead.

Undersheriff Moore dropped to the pavement with slugs
through his heart and brain. Maxwell, hit a dozen times in
the legs, chest, arms, was still able to empty his re-
volver at the fleeing fugitives. Cowed by the guns in the
hands of the gangsters, those in attendance at the dance could
only stand by in horrified silence while the officers were
sliced down. When the shooting ended and the Barrow
gang roared away, a dozen cars plunged after them in
pursuit.

Clyde and his men overturned their getaway car and
stole another from a passerby who rushed to aid them. This
second automobile also came to grief, throwing a rear wheel
fifteen miles east of Stringtown. Stealing still a third car,
the killers continued on their way.

Sheriff Maxwell identified Clyde Barrow from his photo-
graph and named him as the leader of his assailants. The
search was intensified, but the Bloody Barrows, now hot in
Oklahoma, had already headed west to cool off.
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This striking picture shows the dramatic capture of tiger-woman Blanche Barrow by Dexter, lowa, possemen.

N August 14th, they abducted a deputy sheriff who

spotted them in Carlsbad, New Mexico. It was Bonnie
who drew the gun on the officer when he approached
their car. The deputy, Joe Johns, was driven to San An-
tonio before the kidnappers let him go. They took his
service revolver as a souvenir when they drove off.

Johns told the authorities that Bonnie Parker had dyed
her bright yellow hair and was now a flaming redhead. She
was just as conspicuous with the new change, however. Per-
haps even more so. Her hair was nearly the color of
blood and gave her hard, masculine features a positively
satanic appearance.

The Barrow gang, travelling in two stolen cars, were
nearly penned up and trapped on the county bridge which
spanned the Colorado River at Whatton, Texas. A posse
armed with riot guns sealed off the span as Bonnie and
Clyde were nearing the mid-point. With Bonnie driving,
the noutorious pair U-turned and drove hell-bent for the
human blockade with shotguns blazing. They crashed out
.and managed to put distance between themselves and their
pursuers. Stealing another car enroute, they successfully
eluded the web of a gigantic dragnet which had been
spread to enmesh them.
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The crimson trail of crimes continued—a bank in Cedar
Hill, tapped twice because it was easy; the inter-urban
station at Grand Prairie; filling stations and restaurants all
over Texas. On October 11th, Clyde Barrow killed again.

In Sherman, Texas, Clyde ran into trouble when he tried
to rob a small grocery store which was attended by two
clerks. Howard Hall, a 61-year-old butcher, refused to be
frightened by the gun in Barrow’s hands. He closed with
the desperado and got his guts blown out for his trouble.
He died in agony forty-five minutes later. Clyde Barrow’s
score was mounting.

Despite roadblocks and highway traps, Clyde and Bonnie
managed to roam the wide country at will. They had no
special modus operandi. It was impossible to anticipate
what the deadly duo would dream up next. They skipped
around the map at incredible speeds, appearing almost like
phantoms whenever they pleased.

On November 23rd, Bonnie cased the Oronogo Bank at
Joplin, Missouri. A week later, Clyde led his henchmen,
Frank Hardy and Hollis Hale, into the establishment. The
take was a paltry hundred and fifty dollars for which the
trio battled police and vigilantes in a cross-state running
battle. (Continued on page 46)
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Bachelor’s Party

and the
Deadly Guests

% DURING THE NINE years that
Charles A. Fisher had lived in Puerto
Rico, he had learned to love that lush,
sun-drenched island. Fisher, who
came from Canton, North Carolina,
was manager of the Puerto Rico
branch of a large American insurance
company with offices in San Juan. He
maintained a swank apartment in the
Hato Rey district, drove a 1963
Thunderbird, and had a host of
friends, both in the American colony

and among native Puerto Ricans.

Fortune had indeed smiled on this
handsome, 37-year-old Korean War
veteran, and he had no great wish to
leave his adopted island home. Still
there were times when he felt a certain
nostalgia for “the mainland”—and one
such occasion was on election days.
Fisher made it a point to keep up with
politics, and on Election Day, Novem-
ber 3, 1964, he was as much absorbed
in the heated campaigns in the United
States as any other good American
citizen.

That evening he gave an informal

Accused duo (left) seen with Prosecutor Ortiz (right) and police stenographer (rear).

party in his apartment on fashionable
O’Neill Street. A bachelor himself, he
invited his friends and business asso-
ciates to drop in with their wives, have
a few drinks, and watch the election
returns on his excellent TV set. In
honor of the event, he hired a young
Puerto Rican to serve drinks at the
small, well-stocked bar in his apartment.

Fisher's invitation was enthustastically
accepted. During the evening about
forty persons dropped by. The young
businessman’s friends brought friends
of their own whom he didn’t know. But
no matter---everyone was welcome.
Other residents of the building heard
the blare of Fisher’s TV, the clink of
glasses, and the drone of conversation
punctuated by rippling feminine laugh-
ter, until well after midnight.

But at last the din of the party was
stilled, the guests departed in their cars
and the lights blinked out. The quiet of
a warm tropical night descended once
more over the elegant apartment build-
ing on O’Neill Street.

Charles Fisher, a conscientious execu-
tive, was usually the first to arrive in
the morning at his insurance office on
Commerce Street in downtown San
Juan. But on Wednesday morning,
November 4th, he didn’t show up at all.

His office supervisor, a Puerto Rican
named Jaime Perez, made several at-
tempts to reach him by phone, but
Fisher did not answer. Perez himself
had dropped in on the election party.
He had noticed that his boss had joined
with his guests in drinking many high-
balls of good Puerto Rican rum. He
thought perhaps Fisher had a hangover
and wasn’t answering his telephone.

But, when the young executive failed
to keep a scheduled luncheon date,
Perez grew concerned about him. Fin-
ally he drove to Fisher’s apartment.

He noticed that his employer’s white
Thunderbird was not in its usual place
beside the apartment house and won-
dered whether he had been called sud-
denly out of town. But then, certainly,
he would have phoned the office.

When repeated ringing of Fisher's
bell failed to bring any response, Perez
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looked up the owner of the building,
who lived on the premises. She pro-
duced a key and they entered the execu-
tive’s second-floor apartment together.

Though it was past noon, the blinds
were still drawn and the living room
reeked of stale liquor. Switching on a
light, Perez saw that the apartment was
littered with dirty glasses and un-
emptied ash trays. Convinced that some-
thing was very wrong, he crossed to the
apartment’s master bedroom. Just inside
the door were the remains of a smashed
chair.

He stopped suddenly in the doorway
and a cry of horror burst from his lips.

“Don’t come in here, senora!” he
called to the landlady.

His employer, clad only in the bot-
toms of his pajamas, lay on the bedroom
floor. His ankles were tied together with
neckties and his wrists were lashed
behind his back. He lay doubled over
on the rug beside the bed. A necktie and
a belt were knotted about his throat
and fastened to a bedpost, and his eyes
bulged grotesquely from their sockets.
Charles Fisher had been cruelly strang-
led and was obviously dead.

Perez turned and stumbled back
across the living room to a telephone
and called the police.

Officers from San Juan’s efficient
modern police force arrived at the apart-
ment promptly. Lieutenant Jose A.
Castro, head of homicide, was accom-
panied by two police criminologists,
Felipe Ortiz and Carlos Coll Carpintero,
and a squad of detectives headed by
Sergeant Juan del Valle. Dr. Israel Cas-
tellano, a police physician, arrived a
moment later. While the detectives
fanned out through the apartment, Lieu-
tenant Castro and Dr. Castellano turned
their attention to the dead man in the
bedroom.

HE ROOM was in complete dis-

order, as though a violent struggle
had taken place. The victim’s clothing
was hanging neatly, however. Appar-
ently he had undressed and was prepar-
ing for bed when he was unexpectedly
attacked. His wallet, empty of money,
lay on the floor.

Dr. Castellano said that bruises on
Fisher’s head and torso showed that he
had put up a bitter struggle against his
assailant. There was also a gash across
the victim’s right hand, as though he
had fought off an attacker armed with
a knife.

“He was probably knocked uncon-
scious, perhaps with the broken chair,
before being strangled to death,” the
doctor reported. “Death occurred about
12 hours ago—sometime between mid-
night and 3 a.m.”

At this point a call came from Ser-
geant del Vallo: “Lieutenant, there is a
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second victim—in the bathroom!

Entering the gleaming tiled bathroom,
Lieutenant Castro and the doctor saw
the body of a young Puerto Rican, clad
only in undershorts, lying face down in
a tub that was half full of blood-tinged
water. His wrists and ankles were bound
with strips of towels and linens. The
physician said that the man's head ap-
parently had been held under the water
until he drowned.

Dr. Castellano pointed to the victim’s
left leg. The word “Maffia” had been
carved on it with a knife point—appar-
ently a grim jest of his slayer.

In a small bedroom nearby the of-
ficers found a white serving coat and
black trousers. They surmised that they
belonged to the second victim and that
he was a servant whom Fisher had hired
to help with the party.

Sergeant del Valle and his men, who
had been checking the doors and win-
dows, reported no sign of forced entry
to the apartment.

“There’s no evidence of a struggle in
the vestibule, either,” del Valle said.
“Fisher may have known his killers
and admitted them himself. There must
have been at least two. One man could
hardly have overpowered both victims

by Leslie Gomez

Two men were
mysteriously murdered,
and on the leg of
one was the

word “Maffia”, carved
with a sharp knife

and tied them up that way.”

At this point the office superinten-
dent, Jaime Perez, told Lieutenant
Castro that he had been at Fisher’s party
the previous evening.

“It was a very informal affair—an
open house of the kind they give in the
United States,” he explained. “Mr.
Fisher had gone around town asking
everyone he knew to drop in. There
was a steady stream of guests all eve-
ning. Most of them didn't stay long.
Some were complete strangers to me,
and to Fisher, too—friends of friends,

(Continued on page 55)

Officials are seen on balcony of Charles Fisher’s apartment, scene of the murders.




HONOLULU SHOOT-OUT!

by

Wilson McNamara

B th

Actual photos of a

supermarket holdup that
was foiled by police;

before the blasting
gunfire was stilled,
ree people were dead!

* THE PLACE WAS the city of
Honolulu, in the island of Oahu,
Hawaii. The scene was the Star Super
Market at 2470 S. King Street. The
time was a few minutes after 11
o’clock, on the night of Friday, No-
vember 20, 1964.

The occasion was robbery, brutal
violence—and quick death.

The big store had just closed for the
night. Eight employees had remained
behind to put up decorations for the
Christmas season. Though the store was
closed to business, the doors were not
yet locked.

On the street outside, a pedestrian
noticed two men walk into the market.
The two were conspicuous because one
bore a carbine and his colleague was
armed with a revolver.

Inside the store, the two bandits—
later identified as Vincente Leon Socil-
lio, 24 and Otto L. Hillen, 25, both ex-
cons—ordered night manager Stanley

Police crouch behind car to take shelter from the bullets sprayed by bandit.
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Hostages flee market through a door.

Onosaki and the others to lie down on
the floor. Presumably, Jiro Yamamoto,
a warehouse manager for the market,
did not comply with sufficient speed,
because it was at this point a slug from
the gun of one of the stickup men
plowed into his back.

The hoarse bark of the gunshot was
heard outside by the pedestrian and he
ran to tell Police Sergeant Paul Kim
about it. Kim flashed the alarm for help.
His radio call reached headquarters just
about the same time a worker in a near-
by restaurant phoned in to say he had
heard a shot.

Officers piled into police cars and
raced to the scene, their sirens wide
open.

At the store, the gunmen herded
their prisoners into the TV room. While
Socillio kept guard over them with his
38-caliber revolver, Hillen, the other
ex-con, put his carbine into the back of
night manager Onosaki and forced him
upstairs to the store's safe. Under the
menacing eye of the carbine, the night
manager opened the safe and the bandit
took possession of the $15,000 it con-
tained.

Sirens screamed into the street, and
Hillen didn’t bother to say good-
bye to his prisoner. He just took off
down the stairs.

The police cars pulled up outside the
store at 11:25. Three of the cops burst
into the super market through the front
door. Officers Melemai and Matsukami
ran to the back. They were just in time
to spot Hillen plunging down the rear
stairs. They pounced on him, grabbed
the carbine, and had him handcuffed
before he knew what was happening.

Hillen’s capture was fast and blood-
less. It was his pal who was to provide
the blood and violence that would fill
the next hour.
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As Melemai and Matsukami were re-
turning to the front, Officers Eleneki,
Gilliland and Shinn, inside, were ap-
proaching the TV room where Socillio
was guarding the hostages.

Peter T. Mochizuki, manager of the
market, was flat on the floor with the
other help. He jumped up and grabbed
the bandit.

“Don’t shoot!” be yelled to the on-
coming policemen. “He’s armed and
there are women in here!”

The ex-con threw off the manager’s
grip, and turned his gun on the officers.
The revolver in his hand coughed out a
stream of leaden phlegm. One of the
slugs caught Lieutenant Benedict EIl-
eneki in the heart, and he toppled be-
hind a vending machine fatally shot.

Sergeant Opal (Gil) Gilliland, nicked
in the fleshy part of his left arm, ducked
for cover. A bullet hit manager Moch-
izuki in the abdomen, but he was able
to stumble out of the store under his
own steam. Detective Lieutenant David
Shinn miraculously escaped the lethal
spray of gunfire, ducked back, and got
safely outside.

The bandit’s gun continued to churn
out a swirl of bullets at the cops out-
side, who were sheltering behind parked
cars. Shinn radioed for tear gas, and
Gilliland called for an ambulance. The
officers were in the sorry plight of not
being able to fire back at Socillio. Lieu-
tenant Eleneki was still inside, and they
did not know that he was already dead.

They feared that one of their bullets
might strike him. The captive employees
were also still in the store.

Officers Melemai and Matsukami,
who had been on their way into the
store with their manacled prisoner,
were not caught in the gunfire. They
managed to duck out fast, leaving Hil-
len lying on the floor, just inside the
front door. They managed to get him
and carry him out at 11.48.

The tear gas equipment arrived, and
a barrage of tear gas was unioosed on
the store at midnight. Tear gas does not
work rapidly like gunfire. It took about
nine minutes for the fumes to permeate
the interior. It was quite evident just
when the gas became suffocating; the
two women among the hostages began
screaming.

Socillio, too, must have found the
fumes unbearable for suddenly he ap-
peared in the store's entrance.

He was not alone. Pushed ahead of
him as a shield was Mrs. Gladys Na-
gatani, one of the hostage staff. To leave
no doubt about his plans, Socillio held
the muzzle of. his revolver against the
woman's head.

The bandit had obviously not counted
on the marksmanship of the police. Say-
ing a prayer, Sergeant Herbert Panoke
took careful aim, drawing a bead on
the bandit’s exposed head. The officer
squeezed the trigger and a bullet thwack-
ed into Socillio’s skull. The bandit’s
hold on the woman loosened, and he

Officer stands over captured thug while battle with his pal continues to rage.
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Tear gas flushed the bandit from store. When he emerged he herded a hostage at gun-point as a shield.

fell away. With their target now fully
exposed, the besieging officers unleashed
a salvo of bullets. and two of the slugs
tore into Socillio’s stomach. Gladys
Nagatani made good use of her sudden
liberty by fleeing across the adjacent
parking lot to safety.

With Socillio a bleeding, huddled
heap in the entrance of the store, the
battle was over. Now it was time to
take the muster roll, count the dead.
and tend to the wounded.

Wearing gas masks, police went into
the market to tally the casualty toll.
Jiro Yamamoto was found wounded on
the floor of the TV room. An ambulance
rushed him away but he died in Kaiser
Hospital. Lieutenant Eleneki was al-
ready dead when an ambulance took
him away to Queens Hospital. Sergeant
Gilliland and Peter Mochizuki, the
store’s manager, were taken to Kaiser
Hospital where they were reported in
satisfactory condition. Socillio, still
alive, was bundled off to Kaiser Hospital
in the same ambulance with the mortally
wounded Yamamoto. He survived his
victim by 25 minutes, dying at 3:10 a.m.

All the loot was retrieved. $1,313 of
it was found in Hillen's pocket; the bal-
ance of $13,774 was in a paper bag on
the upstairs floor, near the safe, where
Hillen had dropped it.

Both bandits were paroled convicts.
Socillio had been free only 23 days after
serving four years and five months of a
40-year maximum sentence for armed
robbery. Hillen had been freed the past
January after serving five years of a
20-year sentence for burglary. *
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Store employee Jiro Yamamoto, shot in holdup, died later in hospital.
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Lieutenant Benedict Eleneki was killed instantly by a slug in the heart.

Police question prisoner after his pal was fatally shot. The two ex-cons almost got away with $15,000.
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WOMEN WHO WALKED THE LAST MILE

No. 2 in series

HOT LOVE &
GOLD DEATH

by Neil S. Wythe

Louisiana’s social set was rocked
when the dank
swamp yielded up the secret of the
adulterous wife
and her diabolical lover

* A SHOELESS YOUNG M AN dashed madly down the
almost empty main street of Morgan, Louisiana, that hot,
humid afternoon of July 6th. He didn’t stop running until
he came to an abrupt halt in front of Sheriff Charles
Pecot’s office. Then he stood there a moment or two try-
ing to catch his breath.

The perspiring young man opened the door and went
inside. The parish officer looked at him and knew right
away something was wrong,.

“Can I help you?" he asked pleasantly.

“A dead man—in Poulard Lake!” the youth gasped.

*I was frog hunting . . . My catamaran struck something
hard. There was a—a body under it!"

An hour later the sheriff and his aides were gathered at
the swamp water of Poulard Lake, a backwash of the
Mississippi River Delta country, not far from New Orleans.
About seventy-five feet from the shore and west of a little
schoolhouse, the fragile catamaran was visible and motion-
less where it had been abandoned by the terrified youth.

Carrying ropes, knives, and torchlights, the sheriff and
two of his men waded waist-deep in the shallow, muddy
water to the catamaran. The torchlights were essential as
dusk was already casting its deepening shadow over the
region,

The body was just as the boy had described it. Naked,
it gleamed fitfully through the water like some horrible
denizen of the primeval swamp country.

Murder was obvious to the sheriff as his fumbling fingers
felt a rope lashed about the body which was secured to a
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Romance beckoned already-married Ada LeBouef.

Sheriff's officers questioned Dr. Thomas Dreher.
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heavy railroad tie. The rope was cut, and the body and
the tie ragged to the bank.

The flickering torches endowed the macabre scene with
a glow of nightmarish eerieness. Washed of its muddy
shroud, the mutilated corpse was like a human sacrifice
offered up to a pagan god in an unholy, satanic ritual.

The face of the corpse was slit diagonally, and deep knife
gashes, from shoulder to waist, disfigured the torso. It was
death. but death with something added, something even
more sinister, something diabolical and unclean.

A screaming siren broke the spell of horror as a Morgan
City ambulance drew up. Life ends, but science and the
law pursue their inexorable course, and soon a youthful
medical examiner with the inseparable little black bag of
his trade was efficiently examining the body.

As he worked with machine-like calm, his voice method-
ically flashed out bits of information. ‘“Middle-aged . . .
shot in right temple and chest . . . mutilated after death
and thrown into the lake . . . incisions on body made after
death.”

IS work over, he turned to the sheriff with more detailed
information. "Curious thing about the killer. He seems
to be fairly well informed. Not many people know that it is
the gas in a body which bloats it and causes it to rise to
the surface of the water. This killer seems to have known
that. That's why the slashes. The killer seems to have

schoolhouse. No clue to the identities of the killer or victim
had been found. Pecot decided to block that section of the
take until morning as the torchlights proved to be of very
little help. ¢

He returned to Morgan City and drove to the. morgue
where an autopsy had been performed. It confirmed what
the medical examiner had said: the man was already dead
when the body was dumped into the lake.

The bullets had been extracted from the body and sent
to Daniel Robinson, the ballistics expert for examination.

Pecot now called Thomas Gilmore, assistant district at-
torney in Franklin, seat of the Parish Government, and
gave them the details of the grisly murder.

Early the next morning. the sheriff found Gilmore chatting
with the deputies and waiting for him at the schoolhouse.

*We couldn’t do much in the dark last night,” said Pecot,
“but maybe we’ll have better luck today. We've got to
identify that body.”

He assigned a group of men to the schoolhouse area, and
others to west of the shore line and east of the swamp shacks.
Pecot, Gilmore, and two deputies took two boats and began
dragging the bottom of the lake with grappling hooks.

Two hours passed before they obtained results. Then the
sheriff’s line came up with a black shoe. Upon examination it
proved.to be comparatively new, and custom made. It bore
the trademark: Fine Custom Made Shoes, New Orleans.

Within half an hour the left shoe was pulled up on

A frog hunter made shocking discovery in the swamp waters of Louisiana's Poulard Lake.

reasoned that the gas would escape through them and that
the body would stay submerged until decomposition.”

*Can you say, doc,” said the sheriff, “"how long the body’s
been in the water?”

“Less than twenty-four hours, I'd say,” the doctor replied.

While the medical examiner sped the body to the morgue
in Morgan City, Sheriff Pecot spread his deputies along the
shore in search of clues. “We'll meet at the little school-
house,” he told them.

It was nearly midnight when the deputies met at the
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Gilmore's line, and almost simultaneously there was a
further development at the schoolhouse to which the sheriff
was hurriedly summoned.

One of the deputies had discovered bits of burned-out
clothing in the firepit.

Even in its charred condition the sheriff could see that
the fabric was of an expensive type. If the victim had worn
it, he had apparently been a man of some means. The ex-
pensive cloth and the custom-made shoes with the New
Orleans trademark, added together, indicated a well-to-do
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Sheriff Charles Pecot with Dr. Dreher (l.).

man from New Orleans.

Cogitating on this, the sheriff told one of his deputies:
“Take a man with you and investigate those shacks,” he
pointed to the fringe of the lake. “See what you can find
out from those swamp rats. Tom.” he said to Gilmore,
“you and I are headed for New Orleans.”

HE New Orleans Police Headquarters assigned one of
its patrolmen to accompany Pecot and Gilmore to Fine
Custom Made Shoes in the French quarters.

“These shoes were made here,” said the sheriff to the
clerk in the small but distinctive bootery. “I'd like to
know for whom. You people keep a record?”

The clerk nodded and told them that they kept a record
of shoes they made, as well as the measurements and ad-
dresses of their owners. But he apologized for his inability
to be of service because the owner and manager who kept
the file in the safe was away on business and was not
expected back until the next morning.

The sheriff left the shoes with the clerk with instructions
to get in touch with him the moment the manager returned.

When they hit the streets again on their way to Morgan
City, the New Orleans afternoon papers carried a detailed
account of the gruesome murder with pictures of the muti-
lated body. The readers were asked, as Pecot had requested,
to identify the body and to communicate immediately with
the Morgan City sheriff, and to report any missing person.

An important development awaited Pecot and Gilmore
at Morgan City. The medical examiner, in making a check-
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Dramatic moment in trial when Mrs. LeBouef testified from hospital bed.

up of the body after the autopsy, had discovered false teeth
in the murdered man’s mouth.

Then began a systematic canvassing of every dentist in
the telephone directory. None was of any help except Dr.
Walter de Rivera, who contributed one important item.

“This type of plate is made by Acme Plates of Baton
Rouge,” he told the officers.

Dawn found Pecot and Gilmore in the Baton Rouge
Police Headquarters, despite the fact that neither had had
any sleep in nearly forty-eight hours. Within half hour they
got the name of an official of the Acme Plates who was
aroused from his sleep and brought to the manufacturing
plant.

The company executive examined the plates Pecot had
given him. “It’s our work, all right.”

“I'd like to know who they were made for,” said Pecot.

“If we made them,” assured the company official, “the
name and address of the owner are in our files.” Within
fifteen minutes he returned with the plates and a sheet of
paper.

“According to our records,” he said, “these plates were
made two years ago for James LeBouef.”

“James LeBouef!” said Sheriff Pecot. “Why, he's the
president of the Louisiana Utilities Corporation of Morgan
City!™

With the records and false teeth in his possession, Pecot
hurried back to Morgan City.

There, he phoned the office of the Louisiana Utilities
Corporation and asked for James LeBouef.

DETECTIVE CASES



B it

¥
—
e -~
- %
=
4
=
LS

Ralhe

L

A doubfe hanging inside the jail and a woman'’s body being removed in a coffin attracted a crowd outside.

“Sorry,” was the answer. “Mr. LeBouef has not been
in the office for the last three days.”

“Expect him back soon?”

“"We can't say. Mrs. 1.eBouef phoned us three days ago
that Mr. LeBouef was ill at home.”

No sooner had he hung up than a call came through
from the manager of Fine Custom Madc Shoes who in-
formed him that the shoes he had brought into the store
had been made for James LeBouef some six months before.

Pecot’'s next move was obvious. Either LeBouef was
stretched out on a slab in the morgue or he was home ill.
Hc hopped into his car and directed it toward Morgan City's
pretentious residential section. a luxurious area of stately
southern homes. green, shaven lawns, lush colorful shrub-
bery, all sleeping lazily in the shade of tall dignified
trees.
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Before one of the most palatial of the homes, he eased
his car to a halt, and a moment later was banging a shiny
brass knocker on a thick oaken door.

Silence . . . He knocked again. Soon the door opened
slowly and a maid stepped out cautiously.

“]1 want to see Mr. LeBouef,” Pecot announced.

“Mr. LeBouef is not at home,"” the maid replied, and now
the sheriff knew that James LeBouef’'s body was on that
hard, cold slab in the morgue.

“Is Mrs. LeBouef at home?”

The sheriff was ushered into a vast rectangular living
room exquisitely and richly furnished.

After waiting about five minutes, Mr. LeBouef's wife,
Ada, an attractive woman of about forty, came to meet
him. She appeared worried. and her hands shook.

“So glad you are here, (Continwed on page 50)
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Officers, digging in a churchyard, found a potato sack with these firearms and mask, which were linked to the killers.

MASKED KILLERS
OF THE
FARMER'S WIFE

by Sam Balderige

They blazed a trail of terror

before the police tracked them down
34

* THE CAR CAME Ilimping into
the outskirts of Asheville, North Car-
olina, ar midnight on Tuesday, No-
vember 10, 1964. One front tire
was flat, the rubber cut to ribbons by
the wheel’s rim.

City Patrolmen J. J. Moulds and
Tom McDevitt saw it from the window
of their prowl car. The approaching
automobile was moving slowly. A man
sat at the wheel and a woman slumped
in the seat beside him.

Officer McDevitt sprang out of the
police car and flagged down the flat-
tired vehicle. As he peered through the
window, he saw the driver, pale and
obviously distraught. The woman at
his side was either unconscious or dead.
She was wearing a blood-drenched
nightgown.

“I'm Charles Lunsford,” said the
driver. “*My wife's hurt. She's been
shot. I've got to get her to the hospital.”

McDevitt had a great many questions
to ask but, considering Mrs. Lunsford’s
condition, he postponed them.

“Follow us,” he said curtly. “We’ll
escort you to St. Joseph's Hospital.”
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He returned to the prowi car. Patrol-
man Moulds who was driving led Luns-
ford to the hospital. There. Mrs. Ovella
Lunsford was placed on a stretcher and
rushed to the emergency room. A mo-
ment later, a doctor announced that she
had been dead upon arrival at the hos-
pital. killed by a bullet wound in her
chest.

Charles Lunsford was so stricken by
this news of his wife's death that he
could not speak for several minutes.
Then, he told Officers Moulds and Mc-
Devitt that he was a dairy farmer who
lived on Pisgah Road. in Uppcr Hominy,
some 20 miles west of Asheville.

At about 11 o'clock that evening.
two men wearing masks had burst into
his home and attempted to rob him.
He and his wife had fought them off:
during the fray. Mrs. Lunsford had
been killed.

Since the murder had happened in
Buncombe County. beyond the Ashe-
ville city limits. Patrolman Moulds
promptly called the sheriff. Harry P.
Clay. Then, the city officers escorted
Lunsford to the sheriff's office.

The dairy farmer was questioned by
Sheriff Clay, and Captain A. G. Crown-
over and Lieutenant Eimer Gregg of
the sheriff’s staff.

“I was sitting in the kitchen. eating
a howl of cereal,” said Lunsford. “My
wife was upstairs in bed. All of a sud-
den a guy comes crashing through the
front door. He was wearing a Hallo-
ween mask: the mask of a lion. ! threw
a bowl! of apple sauce at him and rushed
him into a downstairs bedroom. We
fought and I was getting the best of
it when his pal came in through the
back door and slugged me on the head
with a gun.”

But that blow had put Lunsford out
of action only temporarily. After a
moment. his dizziness had left him and
he began to fight all over again. The
second assailant who also wore a Hal-
loween mask knocked the farmer down
on the kitchen floor and proceeded to
beat him.

Mrs. Ovella lLunsford came down-
stairs in her nightgown and headed for
a closet where a .22-caliber rifle was
kept. As she did so, each of the in-
truders whipped a gun from his pocket
and both fired. One slug went into the
floor. the other smashed against the
downstairs bedroom wall.

They both jumped Mrs. Lunsford
when they saw the rifle in her hand.
They wrenched it from her and the
thug who had entered by the back door
fired his pistol again. This time, the
bullet hit Ovella Lunsford in the chest.

“Then.” said l.unsford, “I guess they
panicked. They ran out of the house.
but one of them ripped the telephone
off the wall first. I got my wife. took
her out to the car to get her to the
hospital. But as soon as [ hit the road.
I realized that one of them had let the
air out of my tire.”
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Mrs. Ovella Lunsford tried to hold off the bandits with a rifle; she was slain.

“Did they ask for money?"” said the
sheriff.

Lunsford nodded. “They wanted to
know where my wallet was.”

“Were you carrying a large amount
of cash?” asked Lieutenant Gregg.

Again Lunsford nodded. *Several
hundred dollars.”

“Was that usual?™

*MNo. But 1 sold my hay on Monday.
The customers who came and hauled
it away paid me in cash. That money
was still in my wallet.”

HERIFF Clay picked up his tele-
phone and called his chief deputy,
Willis Mitchell, along with several other

officers, ordering them to meet him at
the Upper Hominy farmhouse as soon
as possible. Then, taking Charles Luns-
ford with them, the sheriff, Captain
Crownover and Lieutenant Gregg climb-
ed into two county cars and headed for
Pisgah Road themselves.

The kitchen and the lower floor bed-
room looked as if a tornado had blown
through them. Chairs and tables were
overturned. There were bloody foot-
prints on the floor and a set of crimson
handprints on the wall.

An examination of the bedroom re-
vealed bullet holes in the floor and wall.
Chief Deputy Mitchell dug them out
with a penknife. The slug taken from

Otficials removed boards from the Lunsford home so they could retrieve a bullet.




the floor was small; it -had apparently
been fired from a derringer. The bullet
from the wall was of .22 caliber.

“What about the rifle?” asked Sheriff
Clay. “The one your wife took from
the closet?”

“The killers took that away with
them,” said Lunsford.

The officers searched the house and
the ground surrounding it until day-
light and failed to come up with any
clue which might lead to the identity
of the killers. Then they fanned out,
calling at every Upper Hominy farm-
house to ascertain if any of Lunsford’s
neighbors had seen or heard anything
suspicious during the night.

In the meantime, Sheriff Clay asked
how the intruders had fled.

“Did they have a car? Did you see
what kind it was?"

But Lunsford had seen no car nor
heard one either. “Just before they
broke into the house,” he said, “I heard
a car on the road. But I didn’t see it
and I didn’t hear it when they ran off.
They just disappeared into the dark-
ness.”

By 9 o'clock on Wednesday morn-
ing, Sheriff Clay had been in touch
with North Carolina’s State Bureau of
Investigation at Raleigh. Fingerprint
men were on their way to Upper Hom-
iny. The slugs recovered from the farm-
house along with the one taken from
the body of Ovella Lunsford were for-
warded to the state capital for exam-
ination by the ballistics experts.

By noon, the body of Mrs. Lunsford
had been removed from St. Joseph's
Hospital to the Groce Funeral Home in
Asheville, and Dr. John C. Young, the
Buncombe County coroner, had per-
formed an autopsy.

The bullet which had pierced the
woman’s chest had just missed her
heart and had caused severe internal
hemorrhaging. She had probably been
dead for ten minutes before her arrival
at the Asheville hospital.

There appeared to be no clue at all
to the identity of the two men who had
attacked the Lunsfords. However, the
sheriff and his aides were inclined to
the belief that the killers were the same
men who, during the past couple of
months, had committed several other
armed robberies in the county.

The most important was the holdup
of Robert Bryson on September 10,
1964. Bryson, an employee of Bryson
Bus Lines, left his office shortly before
midnight. He carried with him some
$750 of the firm’s money in a brief
case which he put in the trunk compart-
ment of his car.

Then he got in behind the wheel and
headed home. As he braked for a stop-
light, two men, wearing Halloween
masks and holding guns, approached
him. Bryson was ordered out of the
cz;fr. The bandits took it over and drove
off.

The car was found on the following
day in downtown Asheville. The brief
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case and the money were gone.

Then, a month later, two men, again
wearing Halloween masks, entered Car-
son’s Grocery Store on Weaverville
Road. They confiscated all the money
in the cash register which, luckily for
the Carsons, came to only $10.

Then, again, a man had been dragged
from his car and robbed in nearby
Yancey County; he had also been beaten
up. The thugs, four of them, had fled
in their own car which bore Buncombe
County license plates.

Sheriff Clay, his chief deputy, and
other of his officers conferred. They
reached an obvious consensus.

“Obviously,” said Sheriff Clay, “it
must have been known that Lunsford
had a considerable amount of cash on
hand. Otherwise. it’s all too coincidental.
Why didn’t they try to rob one of the
other Upper Hominy farmers?”

“That’s true enough,” said Chief Dep-
uty Mitchell, “and the theory also ap-
plies to the Bryson holdup. Someone
must have known that Robert Bryson
was in the habit of taking the bus com-
pany’s receipts home with him late
at night.”

“Right,” said Sheriff Clay. *"Now it
seems to me that everyone at Lunsford’s
hayfield on Monday would have been
aware of the fact that he was collect-
ing a lot of cash. Let’s check on exactly
who was at the field. Then we'll ques-
tion them.”

HE CHIEF deputy, Lieutenant
Charles Brook, Assistant Chief
Deputy Gray Burleson and several other

officers left to obey the sheriff’s orders.
First, they talked to Charles Lunsford
and wrote down the names of his Mon-
day hay customers. Then, they checked
those persons out, one by one.

The officers returned to the county
building in Asheville at about 6 o'clock
that night. Most of those who had pur-
chased hay from Lunsford on the day
in question were Buncombe County
farmers. prosperous and respectable.
It was inconceivable that any of them.,
acting in concert, would attempt to rob
their colleague.

Sheriff Clay looked depressed but
then the chief deputy spoke. “Did any
any of you hear of a 16-year-old kid.
named Arrlie Fox?”

No one had.
“Well,” went on Chief Deputy Mitch-
ell, “neither did I. However, one of

Lunsford's hay customers brought Arr-
lie Fox along with him to help load the
hay he was buying. So young Arrlie
Fox knew that Lunsford had all that
cash.”

Someone asked, “Has Arrlie a rec-
ord?”

“Not to my knowledge,” said the
chief deputy. “But somehow his sur-
name is familiar. Wasn't the name of
Fox mentioned while we were investi-
gating fhat Robert Bryson holdup?”

“Check the records.” Sheriff Clay
told Lieutenant Gregg. Gregg did so.

What the lieutenant found proved
rather interesting. During the investi-
gation of the Robert Bryson robbery,
it had been learned that one Roy lLee
Fox had worked for the Bryson Bus

Sheriff Clay (left) watches Chief Deputy Mitchell (right) fingerprint a suspect.
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Officers say he waited near farmhouse.

He allegedly set up bus company heist.

Line a few weeks prior to the holdup.
Fox who was 27 years old had been
questioned at the time but could not
be connected with the stickup. How-
ever, Roy Lee Fox was the brother of
16-year-old Arrlie.

“Perhaps,” said Sheriff Clay, *“this is
more thag'a coincidence. Anyway, bring
in Arrlie Fox. I'd like to ask him a
few questions.”

The records showed that young Arr-
lie Fox lived on Route 3 in Weaver-
ville. The chief deputy remarked that
this was the place where Carson’s gro-
cery store had been held up.

Chief Deputy Mitchell and two other
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officers drove out to Weaverville only
to find that Arrlie Fox was not at home.
He had left earlier for Asheville. The
lawmen retraced their footsteps.

In the meantime, Sheriff Clay re-
ceived a telephone call.

The call was from a man who re-
fused to give his name and who re-
mains anonymous to this day. But the
information he gave was vital to the
case. There was, he told the sheriff, a
potato sack buried at the rear of the
Stoney Fork Church in Upper Hominy.

“You can dig it up easily enough.”
said the mysterious caller, “it’s buried
beneath that big tree in the middle of
the yard.”

Sheriff Clay wanted to know why he
should dig up the sack. “What’s in it?”

“Two Halloween masks.” replied
the caller, “two pistols, and a .22-cal-
iber rifle which, I believe, belongs to
Charles Lunsford.”

There was a click at the other end
of the wire as the informant hung up.

The sheriff instructed Captain Crown-
over and Lieutenant Gregg to pick up
a couple of shovels and some powerful
flashlights and to accompany him to
the Stoney Fork Church.

After some twenty minutes of hard
digging, the sheriff’s mysterious inform-
ant was proved to be right. The officers
unearthed a dirt-covered sack and
ripped it open.

Inside were two Halloween masks,
a derringer, a rifle and a .22-caliber
pistol of German make. There were
also two jackets and a shirt. These arti-
cles of clothing appeared to be blood-
stained.

By the time Sheriff Clay and his
aides had returned to Asheville, Chief
Deputy Mitchell had also arrived; he
had young Arrlie Fox in custody.

The chief deputy reported that, while
he had been looking for Arrlie, one of
the latter’s friends, who had been ques-
tioned about the youth’s whereabouts,
had stated that, early on Tuesday eve-
ning, Arrlie had been carrying a small-
calibered gun in his hip pocker.

Arrlie Fox was questioned for sev-
eral hours but he remained sullenly sil-
ent. It was almost dawn when he was
sent to a cell. Then Sheriff Clay dis-
patched the weapons found in the po-
tato sack to the ballistics experts at
Raleigh.

By noon of Thursday, the interroga-
tion of Arrlie Fox was resumed. In the
afternoon, Sheriff Clay informed the
press that he had just received a report
from Raleigh.

The slug taken from the bedroom
floor of the Lunsford house had been
fired from the derringer. The bullet in
the wall and the bullet which the cor-
oner had removed from the chest of
Ovella Lunsford had been fired from
the German pistol.

ATER, ABOUT 4 o’clock that same
afternoon, Sheriff Clay announced
that he had obtained a written state-
ment from Arrlie Fox. The statement
implicated three other men. Sheriff’s
deputies were already on the way to

make the arrests.
By dusk, the three arrests were made.
Brought into the sheriff's office were
(Continued on page 61)

Lieutenant Gregg and Assistant Chief Deputy Burcheson (left to right) look on as
Lieutenant Brooks fingerprints the suspect alleged to have fired the death slug.
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Details brought out at murder trial created sensation in jam-packed New York City courtroom.

a DC crime classic

The DOCTOR
and the MADAM

by Nelson Stein

% THE OLD SAW about doctors burying their mistakes
did not apply to Dr. Robert Buchanan. Perhaps he did
bury some, but not his wife. Her untimely demise was
no mistake. The doctor planned it that way.

Buchanan was a short, roly-poly man with liquid blue
eyes, a stubby moustache, and bouncing energy that found

expression in the wild, bizarre, and scintillating pursuit
of pleasures of the flesh.

His wife was sick in their home on West 11th Street
38

in New York City's Greenwich Village that day in April,
1892. Her face was a chalky white, her eyes covered with
grayish film. Her breath was coming in short gasps, and
cold sweat stood out on her forehead.

Dr. Robert Buchanan was practicing the delicate art
of murder.

Three years before, Buchanan had appeared in Green-
wich Village as a young doctor just starting practice. The
Village in those years was a staid, substantial community,
known as the old Tenth Ward, a world in itself. The artists
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and writers, pseudo and otherwise, had not yet flocked to
this quaint and pleasing section of the city to make the
attics and the rooms in the ancient three-story brick build-
ings the center of art and things not connected with art.

The fat, roly-poly doctor was happily married when he
arrived in the Village, but it wasn’t long before his good
wife, tiring of his wild and uncontrollable zest for other
women, divorced him and moved back to Hatifax, Canada,
which had been her home. The friends and cronies of the
doctor, whom he met with regularity in the taverns of the
Village, noted little expression of sorrow on the part of the
doctor over the divorce. Rather, he seemed greatly relieved,
and appeared to take a new lease on life and on his pursuit
of amorous adventure.

Indulging in this exciting pastime, he landed in Newark,
N. J., and here he met Mrs. Clarence Sutherland, the wife
who now lay so sick in bed. This much good can be said
about Mrs. Sutherland. She had started life on a pure and
Godly plane, being married at a young age to a minister
of the gospel. Just why and how she had departed from the
straight and narrow has never been known.

But when Doctor Buchanan first met her, she was a

Any woman who runs a house of
ill-fame should have
known men can’t be trusted

Mrs. Ann Sutherland ran
successful New lersey bordello.

Dr. Buchanan called for specialist when wife became ill.

madam of a bawdy, lusty, and highly profitable bordello in
Newark, with a tidy nest egg of fifty thousand dollars in
the bank. This nest egg had attracted the doctor even more
than the woman's talent at bawdy and exciting Jove. To get
his hands on the fifty thousand the doctor started a whirlwind
courtship that swept the usually cool and collected madame
off her feet.

The doctor had competition, and as he sat at her bedside
contemplating the profit that her death would bring to him,
he smiled at the memory of those hectic days. He had not
been alone in desiring this nest egg of fifty thousand. Horace
Smith, a quiet little man who worked by day as a bookkeeper
and spent the night hours in houses ‘of ill fame, was an
ardent admirer of Mrs. Sutherland. But Mr. Smith hadn’t
made much headway with the hard-headed business woman.
He deeply resented, and hated with white-hot anger, the
bouncing doctor who so easily usurped his place.

The climax of the courtship ended with Doctor Buchanan
throwing Mr. Smith over a back fence and eloping with the
madam. After the marriage, he talked her into buying the
house on West |1ith Street. So passionate had been the
doctor’s love that he had been able, even before the mar-
riage to have her execute a will leaving all her money and
property to him.

The marriage was not a success. Mrs. Sutherland’s coarse-
ness and her loud talk caused considerable embarrassment
to Doctor Buchanan, who was rapidly obtaining a good
practice among the well-to-do and staid families in the old
Tenth Ward. So he never took her out, and before many
months passed, he contemplated ways of getting this loathe-
some woman out of his life. ;
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Last will and testament of ill-fated woman played major role in real-life drama.

HE idea of murder didn’t frighten him. An overdose of

morphine could do the trick with dispatch and ease and
perfect safety. He had to get her sick first. That wasn’t
difficult. A little arsenic, not enough to be found in the
body, sent her to her bed, and the doctor confided to his
cronies that his new wife was suffering from Bright’s disease.
He never invited any of his friends to the home, giving as
an explanation the serious condition of his spouse.

He did it up in good style. A nurse, Mrs. Alice Connel,
was hired and a doctor was brought in for consultation.
It wasn’t difficult to fool the doctor by suggesting symptoms
indicating Bright’s disease, which in that year was one of

This carpetbag contained evidence police were looking for.

the dread diseases of middle-aged people.

And now. . . .

The little doctor watched the white face of his wife. In
his pocket was a vial of morphine. He was a physician and
naturally had a supply of morphine on hand. One large dose
and his wife would sleep away to her death. There would
be no traces of poison. The symptoms of death would
indicate a cerebral hemmorhage. He had dropped sugges-
tions of this possibility, saying that his wife’s father and
mother had died of the same thing.

He rose, took the vial of morphine from his pocket.
Nurse Connel was in another room. Buchanan had been
the sorrowing grief-stricken husband when she was around.
She was a good-natured soul and easily fooled.

His wife stirred in the bed, trying to say something. The
doctor leaned over her, caressed her forehead tenderly.

“My dear, you must take it easy,” he said kindly. “In a
few weeks you will be all right. Now it is time for you to
take your medicipe.”

He poured a large dose of morphine into a glass, added
water and some pepsin to take away the bitter taste. Giving
her the lethal dose by mouth would be more effective. An
overdose injected into the arm might leave telltale swelling.

He raised his wife’s head up gently. Her eyes opened. A
look of terror came into them, as if instinctively she sensed
what was about to happen. She tried to shrink back but
Doctor Buchanan’s arm was around her neck and he held
her.

“Take this, my dear,”
feel better.”

He put the glass between her lips a little roughly in his
haste to get the morphine down her throat. She gagged once
and he rubbed her neck. She swallowed the remainder and
he let her head fall back on the pillow.

She lay on her back, her eyes wide open and staring up
at the ceiling. Then a muscle in her cheek twitched, then
another jumped a little. A shudder passed over her body.
The gray film came back over her eyes. She was struggling
to keep them open, but the lids drooped down slowly until
the eyes were closed.

Doctor Buchanan turned away from the bed. There was an
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he said softly. “It will make you



Condemned man was one of first to pay supreme penalty in new-fangled electric chair.

old-fashioned carpet-bag near the dresser. Quickly he drop-
ped the vial of morphine in it. He picked up several other
bottles on the dresser and tossed them inside. Then he closed
and locked the bag and carried it into another room.

He wondered how long he would have to wait until the
morphine did its work. His head was clear. It might be an
hour or it might be five. It didn't make any difference. Her
heavy breathing and the flush that would come to her tace
would be symptomatic of a cerebral hemorrhage.

Nurse Connel entered the sick room. Doctor Buchanan
could see her through the door. She looked at her patient
and at first apparently didn't notice anything wrong, but she
suddenly took a second look.

“Doctor . . . Doctor,” she cried. “Come quickly! Some-
thing has happened to Mrs. Buchanan!™

OCTOR BUCHANAN bounced into the room knowing
what to expect and what to do. He leaned over his
wite, spoke in a tenderly soft whisper, calling her name in
endearing words. She didn't answer. Her face was flushed.
Her eyes closed. Her respiration was coming so rapidly now
that it couldn’t be counted. Large beads of sweat stood
out on her cheeks.
“Get Doctor Fordney at once,” Buchanan shouted to the
nurse. “It’s a cerebral hemorrhage, the thing I feared most.”
Doctor Fordney was old, fat, and moved with some
effort. He had practiced medicine for years in the Village.
His face was red, with veins sticking out of the skin on
his cheeks and nose. His mental processes had slowed down
considerably, a fact Doctor Buchanan had noted before
calling him on consultation.
Doctor Fordney laboriously examined the unconscious
woman. The pulse was wild, almost impossible to take. The
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blood pressure had fallen so low it didn’t even register on
the mercury. The respiration was over a hundred. Every-
thing pointed tn a cerebral hemorrhage, and Doctor Bu-
chanan kept up a flowing conversation to keep Doctor
Fordney's mind oft any symptoms that might point to
morphine poisoning.

Five hours later, at one o'clock on the morning of April
22nd, the stricken wife died without regaining consciousness.
Doctor Fordney promptly filled out the death certificate,
giving cerebral hemorrhage as the cause of death. Nurse
Connel, who had seen many people die of a stroke, didn't
suspect that there was any other cause of death.

The undertakers came and took the body away. A few
of Doctor Buchanan’s friends called to offer their sympathy.
He had trouble acting the part ot a bereaved husband, ana
after the first three or four had come and gone, he locked
the doors, pretending great grief, and went to his room.
He didn't sleep. The knowledge that at last he had his hands
on the fifty thousand dollars was too exciting for slumber.

One thought was playing through his mind. His first wife.
She was beautiful and he wanted her badly. With fifty
thousand dollars and fervent promises of reform, he might
succeed. So he decided that as soon as the funeral was over,
he would visit Halifax and court his’ first wife again.

The funeral was held two days later. 1t was a solemn oc-
casion, and he wept the proper amount, being careful not
to overdo it. Since few of his friends had ever seen the
portly and bawdy Mrs. Sutherland, the whole affair was a
little detached for them. It was a bright, sunny day and when
Doctor Buchanan was retuming from the cemetery he felt
in such exuberant spirits that he couldn’t resist stopping off,
on his return home, to visit {(Continued on page 52)
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* THE CROWN HEIGHTS area of
Brooklyn has been a source of mount-
ing trouble for the New York City
police ever since the spring of 1964.
This normally quiet middle-class
neighborhood near Prospect Park ad-
joins the teeming Bedford-Stuyvesant
district, scene of recent racial dis-
orders. In spite of police efforts to
patrol the area effectively, young
hoodlums armed with switchblades
have continued to stalk the streets of
Crown Heights.

The rising tide of robbery, rape and
violence prompted the organization by
public-spirited citizens of a vigilante-
type organization known as the Mac-
cabees, to aid the police in keeping or-
der and making Crown Heights safe
for the hundreds of decent, law-abiding
citizens who live there.

Soon after the founding of the Mac-
cabees, however, one of the most sav-
age crimes of all occurred. On May
29th, 1964, a 38-year-old Brooklyn
schoolteacher, Charlotte Lipsik, was
trapped in the elevator of her Crown
Heights apartment building by a vicious
slayer.

Halting the elevator between floors,
he subjected the teacher to a beating so
savage that her jaw was broken in three
places. After tearing off her clothes and
sexually assaulting the helpless woman,
he stabbed her three times in the ab-
domen and once in the back. Then he
seized the money from her handbag and
fled.

Tenants of the building found Miss
Lipsik lying near death on the elevator
floor and rushed her to Kings County
Hospital, but she died there without
making a coherent statement.

The slaying, which occurred only
three blocks from the headquarters of
the newly organized Maccabees, caused
such a furore in Crown Heights that
scores of extra police were rushed to
the district. Patrol cars kept a 23-hour
vigil on the area while detectives on
foot sought the slayer from door to
door. Armed policewomen trained in
judo walked the streets alone, attempt-
ing to lure the rapist-slayer into an at-
tack.
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This strategy seemed effective on the
whole, and over the summer months
the wave of violence in Crown Heights
subsided somewhat. Then on September
20th a 17-year-old youth was picked up
in the Bronx after .being spotted by a
Bronx woman who had been raped in
a self-service elevator on August 2nd.

This youth, Anthony Spencer, had
been an inmate of a state school for
mental defectives. He was found to
have a long record of sexual crimes be-
ginning with an arrest at the age of 11
for molesting a five-year-old girl. Dur-
ing questioning by police, he admitted
two elevator rapes and the rape-murder
of an 8l-year-old widow, Mrs. Mary
Payne, in her Bronx apartment on
September 8th.

Then he admitted the slaying of Char-
lotte Lipsik while on an excursion to
Crown Heights. After being charged
with the two slayings, he was sent to
Bellevue for psychiatric tests prior to
further legal action.

With the confessed slayer of Char-
lotte Lipsik out of circulation, residents
of Crown Heights felt more secure

again. Housewives who had refused to
open their doors to anyone during their
husbands’ absence became a little less
frightened. Office girls walked from sub-
way stations to their homes after dark
with less fear of being waylaid on the
streets.

But this new feeling of security was
short-lived. On September 29th, just
nine days after Spencer’s arrest, a 58-
year-old housewife who lived on Wash-
ington Avenue telephoned the police.
She was on the verge of hysteria and
said that while her door was momen-
tarily open a young man had slipped into
her apartment, threatened her with a
knife and raped her. He had then fled,
she said, after robbing her of $35 and a
wristwatch.

She described her assailant as a well-
dressed Negro in his late twenties, who
had close-cropped hair and a thin mus-
tache. She said he was about 5 feet 10
inches tall and weighed 160 pounds.

Once again police activity in the area

was stepped up. A score of men answer-
ing to the general description of the sus-

Although 81, Mrs. Mary Payne (below
was attacked and killed in her home.

Vigilante-type band didn't stop rape
and death of Charlotte Lipsik (left).
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pect were picked up and questioned,
though all were later released.

Then on October 7th, attempts at rape
were made on two women living several
blocks apart in Crown Heights. In both
cases, the women were able to frighten
off their attackers by screaming.

The descriptions they gave of the man
tallied exactly with that of the man who
had raped the 58-year-old housewife

Then again on October 19th, a man
fitting the same description assaulted a
woman who lived in an apartment on
nearby Eastern Parkway.

OW AT last the residents of Crown

Heights were up in arms once
more. Scores of citizens telephoned the
police demanding additional protection,
and as a result 61 more police were as-
signed to the relatively small area of
Brooklyn. The Maccabees held an emer-
gency meeting at which more citizens
pledged their time and the use of their
cars for patrol duty

This move seemed not to discourage
the rapist in the least. On October 28th,
just nine days after his last crime, he
struck again in the most vicious attack
of all.

At 2 o'clock that afternoon, 4 l-year-
old Shirley Green was hanging curtains
in her new apartment on Washington
Avenue, just across the street from the
Brooklyn Botanic Gardens. She was
feeling very happy that day, and for a
good reason. The petite brunette, who
had worked for many years as a sec-
retary in an office, had just given up
her job. She was to be married the
following week.

Shirley and her future husband had
just picked out their new apartment,
and she was decorating and furnishing
it, so that they would have a place to
move into after their honeymoon.

As she climbed down from a step-
stool to survey the bright new curtains,
there was a ring at the doorbell of the
apartment. Thinking it must be the
superintendent, the only person who
knew she was there, Shirley opened the
door.

In the hallway stood a well-dressed

Negro. “I’ve come about the venetian
blinds,” he said.

Shirley was puzzled. She knew noth-
ing about any venetian blinds. But as
she hesitated, the man pushed his way
in. He grinned at her mirthlessly, then
seized her by the throat. .

Unable to scream, the girl clutched

at his strong hands, but she was unable
to prevent him from dragging her into
a bedroom. There he began to beat her.
Then he tore off most of her clothing
and raped her.

In the course of the assault, Shirley
Green lost consciousness. When she re-
vived and discovered that she had been

The prisioner seen (right) in custody of a
policeman has been identified as rapist
by women victims in Crown Heights area.
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assaulted, she began screaming.

The rapist was across the room,
rifling her pocketbook. He turned on
her with a muttered curse and knocked
her to the floor with one blow. Then
he kicked her and stomped her until
she lost consciousness again.

When at last she regained conscious-
ness a second time, she was bleeding
from the attack and in an agony of
pain. Her attacker was gone. At last
other tenants heard her screams and
came to investigate.

They immediately called for an am-
bulance and telephoned the police. The
expectant bride was rushed to Kings
County Hospital, where it was found
that she was suffering from several
broken ribs in addition to facial lacera-
tions. Her condition was described as
serious but not critical.

Shirley Green had escaped with her
life. But her wedding plans would have
to be postponed until she had fully re-
covered from the savage assault.

Police responded promptly to the call
and made an immediate search of the
neighborhood. They found a suspicious
character who was apparently trying to
hide from them in the shrubbery near
the Botanic Gardens. He was taken into
custody, and the following morning he
was brought before Shirley Green as
she lay in her hospital bed. After gazing
at him a long time, however, she said
that he was not the man who had as-
saulted her.

Apparently the rapist had made good
his escape. He was still at large and
could be expected to continue his bru-
tal assaults on helpless women until the
police could capture him.

News of this fifth and most vicious
assault in the current series was broad-
cast over the radio and television and
published in the following day’s news-
papers. Once again an atmosphere of
terror spread over the Crown Heights
area. The brief respite that had oc-
curred after the capture of Charlotte
Lipsik’s alleged slayer was forgotten.
Another and equally dangerous sexual
psychopath was at large, and his next
attack against a helpless housewife
might well prove fatal.

Again women refused to answer their
doorbells. Some of them carried stout
canes when they went out alone, even
in broad daylight. Others refused to
venture forth on shopping trips except
in pairs.

EANWHILE, Assistant Chief In-

spector James E. Knott, in charge
of Brooklyn South detectives, visited
Shirley Green at her hospital bed. The
petite brunette, her chest swathed in
bandages, managed a brave smile as
Knott asked her for a detailed descrip-
tion of her slayer.

Her description tallied with that
given by the four previous victims. The
rapist was between 25 and 30 years old,
had close-cut hair, was 5 feet 10 inches
tall and weighed about 160 pounds.
She added that he had deep-set, piercing
eyes.

The previous four victims were taken
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to the Empire Boulevard station and a
police artist was called in. From their
recollections and the description given
by Miss Green, the artist drew a com-
posite sketch which all five women said
was a good likeness of the rapist.

Hundreds of copies of this sketch
were run off and circulated to police
officers on duty in the area. Copies of
the drawing were also furnished to the
Maccabees and other public-spirited cit-
izens who requested them. It was diffi-
cult to see how the suspect could roam
the streets much longer without being
spotted.

But on the morning of November
4th, while the entire community hunted
the rapist, another savage attack oc-
curred on Sterling Place, only four
blocks from the apartment of the last
victim.

Mrs. Janice Cartwright, the mother
of three children, had just sent two of
them off to school and was in her kitch-
en washing the breakfast dishes. Her
three-year-old daughter was playing in
another room. Mrs. Cartwright did not
realize that the school-bound children
had left the door of their second-floor
apartment unlatched on their way out.

Janice Cartwright heard a noise in
the foyer of her apartment and went to
see what it could be. There she found
a man rifling her pocketbook. She had
just cashed a check and knew that her
wallet contained $130.

A courageous woman, she was more
indignant than frightened.

“What are you doing here?” she de-
manded.

Without a word, the man sprang at

{Continued on page 58)

To combat the wave of crime in Crown Heights area a local sect of orthodox Jews
formed band to patrol streets in cars with two-way radios; they don’t carry guns.
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BALLAD OF THE “BLOODY BARROWS”
(Continued from page 23)

On December Sth, after eluding the
Missouri authorities, Clyde, Bonnie, and
Frank Hardy were attempting to steal a
car in Belton, Texas, when they made
another kiil. Doyle Johnson, the car’s
owner, ran out into the street after
observing the trio force the door of his
Ford. Frank Hardy aimed a quick shot
at Johnson, but missed. Johnson hurled
himself on the gunman and attempted to
throttle liim. Either Bonnie or Clyde
shot Johnson through the throat and
killed him.

In Bay City, Michigan, the police
picked up Ray Hamilton, the Barrow
henchman who had been with the pair
in the first wild days of their crime
spree. Differences of opinion—plus a
dislike for Bonnie—caused Hamilton to
strike out for himself. Ray Hamilton
was returned to Texas where the au-
thorities threw the book at him and
handed out enough raps to keep him in
jail for 263 years!

Ray had a sister living in Hillsboro.
Her home was usually open to friends
of her brother. In January of 1933,
deputies from the Hill County sheriff’s
office staked out this home in an effort
to capture a bank bandit named Odel
Chandless. Chandless didn’t show up,
but Clyde Barrow and Bonnie Parker
did!

Realizing who had walked into their
trap, the officers began to fire. Clyde
opened up with a shot-gun and blasted
one of the deputies to kingdom come.
Bonnie, bent low over the wheel of the
getaway car, headed east on another
long flight across the state border.

There followed another round of
small and large robberies and the ab-
duction of a Missouri- motorcycle pa-
trolman, Thomas Persell, before an
event made the pair more lethal.

As was mentioned before, *“Buck”
Barrow, Clyde’s older brother, got out
of jail in March of 1933. He was given
a fine sendoff by the prison officials
and a clean bill of health by the Texas
authorities. Much of the groundwork
for his release resulted from the efforts
of Buck’s prettv wife

Buck Barrow, ana his wife, decided
to catch up with Clyde and Bonnie.
Perhaps the reason for the visit was
some futile hope at reforming the pair.
It didn’t work out that way. By then,
according to Bonnie's Ballad, the Bar-
row gang had gone beyond the point of
turning back:

“When you make up your mind

That the roads are all blind,

And that refuge is nowhere in sight,

Then it's kill or be killed

And the coward, weak willed,

Is the first one to fall in the fight.”

UCK and Blanche managed to trail
Bonnie and Clyde to Joplin, Mis-
souri. Here, in a small apartment above
a Freeman's Grove garage, the two
couples took up light housekeeping. For

the most part, their luggage consisted
of firearms and ammunition. They
dusted their shooting irons, but for
certain they did no laundry. It was a
delivery man for a local cleaning estab-
lishment who tipped the police that
something peculiar was going on in the
Freeman’s Grove garage.

Bonnie never let the delivery man
come up the stairs, she always met him
in the hall. Believing that the occupants
of the apartment were distilling moon-
shine liquor, the delivery man spoke
with the police.

On April 13th, a raiding party got
as far as the garage when one of the
Barrow boys spotted the uniformed
officers. There was an immediate fusil-
lade and when the police charged into
the withering fire, they found they were
up against five outlaws armed with
everything from pistols to Browning
automatic rifles. Two officers, Con-
stable Wes Harryman and Detective
Harry L. McGinnis, were Kkilled in the
gun duel. The bloody Barrows and one
henchman escaped in a Marmon sedan
with Texas plates. It was believed that
the henchman was badly wounded in the
exchange.

In the apartment, which was care-
fully scoured by the police for leads,
was found a veritable arsenal of high-
powered rifles which the fugitives had
left behind. Also, along with Buck’s
marriage license and his pardon cer-
tificate, a search of a bureau yielded a
roll of exposed Kodak film. The photos
were developed and proved to be recent
pictures of Bonnie, Clyde, Blanche, and
Buck in various poses with components
of their store of firearms. These pic-
tures were multiduplicated and rushed
to key points throughout the southwest
for incorporation into police “wanted
bulletins.”

The Barrows and their wounded
henchman stole a half dozen cars in
their flight north. They wound up in
Cleveland, Ohio, where, on April 18th,
they held up a couple of gas stations.
The Ohio police looked for the fugitives
in vain-a little dubious because of the
extreme swing north which seemed a
little out of the usual Barrow orbit. A
week later, Louisiana officials began to
hunt for the Barrows, and they too were
surprised at the deviation in the pattern
of the gang’s peregrinations.

It was true enough that the restless
predators were ranging far from their
usual haunts. Perhaps, as Bonnie sang
in her song, they were looking for a
quiet place to settle down:

“When we tried to act like citizens

And rented a nice little flat,

Cops came in the night

With a challenge to fight
And machine guns that went rat-tat-tat.

The doggerel is bad enough to have
been more truth than poetry. But the
Barrows found the sultry Louisiana
climate a little too hot for them. They
stole a car, kidnapped the owner and
ais friend, and dropped them off near
Magnolia, Arkansas. The search shifted
again to the Ozarks and nearby Okla-
homa.
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But the Barrows were on the prowl
and remained in this general area long
enough to hold up a filling station in
Broken Bow before they swung high
and wide up to Fort Dodge, lowa. Here
they stole a car and headed for Min-
nesota.

Bonnie, herself, led a raid on the
First State Bank in Okabena. The out-
laws plowed out of town behind a cur-
tain of hot lead which obviated any
possible opposition. The fugitives turn-
ed in a wide circle and began to burn
up the highways back to their original
stamping grounds in Texas. They were
more at home in Texas than anywhere
else. Besides, Clyde Barrows had a
weakness for real Mexicali chili, and
that was one dish which was not to
be found in any other state.

It was in Texas, while driving a
getaway car from a robbery in Well-
ington, that bad luck struck for the first
time at the Bloody Barrows. Bonnie
was driving, and she piled up on an
embankment. The car caught fire and
blazing gasoline spattered the diminu-
tive blonde.

Shrieking in pain, the half-pint jeze-
bel crawled out of the wreckage. She
was a mass of livid burns and was suffer-
ing horribly. Passersby who attempted
to get her to a doctor were shot for
their trouble. One escaped and sum-
moned police. When the officers arrived,

gether and escaped in the sheriff’s
county car!
N their dash to Oklahoma, the

Bloody Barrows considered Bonnie’s
serious condition. They decided to lay
low for a few days until her burns began
to heal. They hid out for ten days, stole
a doctor’s medical kit, and then robbed
a bank in Alma, Arkansas.

The Alma job was unique in that they
first kidnapped the town marshal whom
they handcuffed to a pillar in the bank,
forcing him to witness their brazen
looting.

Hoping to trap the desperados along
their new route of march, the marshal
directed the setting up of a roadblock
not far from Fayetteville, Arkansas. He,
himself, drove over a shortcut and was
present when the car came barreling
into the trap. There was a brief and
particularly vicious gun-duel. The
marshal, H. D. Humphrey, who, earlier,
had faced the bandits’ guns in Alma,
was blasted to his death by those very
same weapons. The brave officer’s sacri-
fice did not deter the killers long. The
gang had killed for the eighth known
time and managed, as always, to escape.

Bonnie was badly burned and still
needed medical attention. She was be-
lieved to be holed up somewhere near
Enid, Oklahoma. Clyde was with her.
Buck, Blanche, and another male com-

Buck drove into a police trap near
Winslow, Arkansas. He was with one
companion at the time. He took the
wrong turn and headed into a dead-end
lane. With the posse closing in behind
him, he and his buddy took off on
foot. There was no time to stop for the
rifles. Buck snatched up a couple of
revolvers and plunged into the-woods.

As the cordon began to close in
around the two trapped men, news came
to the possemen that Clyde Barrow
had just raided the National Guard
Armory at Enid and escaped with fifty
army automatics, and four filled am-
munition cases. While the possemen
fully expected an immediate mass at-
tack by the Barrow gang to relieve the
pressure on Buck and his companion,
they had no intention of letting their
quarry escape.

Whatever the intention of the posse,
Buck Barrow and his pal were not taken.
In some manner the desperados man-
aged to elude the constricting cordon.
They got out with whole skins, and
less than a month later, were again
raiding gas stations and restaurants in
Fort Dodge, Iowa.

Doubling south, Bonnie Parker and
the Bloody Barrows headed back to
Missouri. They were seen in Platte
City on July 18th. They evidently
hoped to remain for awhile in the
Kansas City environs, actually renting

they were tricked and disarmed by the

gang who handcuffed the officials to- on their own.

panion were foraging and campaigning

a pair of cabins on the outskirts of
town. But Bonnie was too well known
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to long escape detection. Paying bills in
nickels and dimes, loot from one of the
gang's recent stickups, she attracted the
attention of the police to her suburban
hideaway. Sheriff Holt Coffey of Platte
County asked a few questions and
learned that Bonnie's arms were still
swathed in bandages—the burns were
healing slowly. He was now certain of
the identity of the strange tenants of the
cabins on the edge of town.

An armored car spearheaded the at-
tack on the hideaway, but the Barrows
were expecting trouble. Coffey and his
son were shot in the ensuing gun duel.
So was Deputy George Highfill. The
gang escaped, although the officers were
certain that this time the law's fire had
drawn Barrow blood.

The United States Bureau of Investi-
gation, in on the case since the raid on
the National Guard Arsenal at Enid,
alerted a nationwide network of federal
agents. Radio appeals were broadcast
on a regular schedule to an alarmed
public who were asked to come for-
ward with any scrap of a lead which
might bring the police to a show-down
fight with the outlaws.

Of this period, Bonnie wrote in her
ballad:

“The way grew darker and darker

By then, we hardly could see—

The drama got starker and starker

We knew we would never be free . ..”

CTUALLY, the gang had long be-
fore been committed to an eventual
last-ditch stand when the chips would
be on the side of law and order. Flight
had become the one key to survival
Each day had a number, and the num-
bers were fast running to a close.
""Numbers on a turning wheel,
Numbers spinning fast,
And every day we woke we'd say—
Today might be our last . . .”

The trail of the Barrows led to
Iowa, again. A Barrow campfire was
spotted by a passing farmer on the
morning of July 23rd. Sheriff Knee of
Adel, the Iowa national Guard, dozens
of vigilante-men, the Iowa State Bureau
of Investigation—all peace officers who
could be quickly summoned to duty,
responded to the call.

Through powerful binoculars, the key
officials watched for movement around
the campfire. They finally saw Blanche,
Buck, Clyde. and Bonnie move into
the field of vision. The cordon began to
close in.

Bonnie spotted the movement of a
posseman and the gang rushed for their
guns. Clyde sprayed lead from a Brown-
ing automatic rifle into the surrounding
trees. He was answered by scattered
rounds of withering fire from all direc-
tions.

“Get to the car!” he yelled. “They’re
here in numbers!”

The outlaws rushed to their car
while Clyde backed them up, spitting a
deadly hail with the Browning. But the
car had become a magnetic target
which drew fire from scores of police
weapons. The outlaws rushed out and
tried to scramble for cover. Clyde was
hit in the arm, but he led the rush
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into the woods. Bonnie ran after him,
and the possemen hurtled close on their
heels in swift pursuit.

Buck and Blanche fared worse.
Caught in a ring of fire, the bullets of
the possemen cut the older Barrow
brother down. Screaming, Blanche threw
herself on her fallen husband’s body.
Dr. H. W. Keller, a National Guards-
man from Des Moines, rushed in to
close with Buck. The guardsman emp-
tied his revolver into Barrow's chest
and the outlaw fell back, wilted.

State Agent Forbes and City Marshal
Dutch Baldon captured Blanche, beau-
tiful in white riding breeches and knee
high riding boots. She fought and
screamed like a tigress, but was finally
subdued.

Bonnie Parker and Clyde managed,
by their devil's luck, to evade capture.
They stole a car at gunpoint and man-
aged to escape, even though the roads
were honey-combed with roadblocks,
and the skies bristled with low flying
radio-equipped search planes.

FRESH?

You betweare!
Nobody beats
DETECTIVE CASES
to the stands with
current stories!

One thing was certain, however,
Clyde was badly wounded. Bonnie was
hurt even worse. It was not expected
that the fugitives could long hope to
remain undetected. They were too shot
up not to require medical care.

All physicians in a two hundred mile
area were asked to be on the alert for
gun-shot cases. Clyde actually made an
attempt to secure a doctor in Denni-
son, Iowa. The F.B.I. was notified, but
Clyde, by that time, had given his
would-be captors the slip. He disap-
peared, along with the blonde Jezebel,
as if the earth itself had swallowed them
up.

Buck was not dead, although his life
was ebbing fast. Questioned at Adel, he
spoke littte and said less. Blanche
wasn't talking, either. However, a brief
sojourn in a cell in the Des Moines
County Jail seemed to soften her up—
if only a little.

The chips were down, and Blanche
was nearly as tough as the rest of the
Barrows. She named one Herbert
Blythe as the mysterious third man who
usually traveled with the murderous
crew, but she said little else. She did
intimate, however that Clyde and Bon-
nie would spring her from jail. “They’ll
get me out of here,” she promised all
who sought to question her. “Just see
if they don’t.” The officials were quite
ready to agree that if it were at all

possible, such an attempt would actually
be made. They took all precautions to
guard the young tiger woman closely.

Blanche had a good laugh at the
officers’ expense when they finally ar-
rested Herbert Blythe who turned out
to be a police character, but not the
murderous companion of the Bloody
Barrows.

Buck, meanwhile, was sinking. He
confessed to the crimes with which he
was charged, but he told the police
very little of what they really wanted
to know. He mentioned no names of
persons who had befriended the outlaws.
He claimed to know none of the Bar-
row mobsters who had figured in any
of the killings or in any of the gang's
major brushes with the law.

UCK died on July 29th. He was

true to his code. He said nothing
which could do any of the gang, still
at liberty, substantial harm.

Bonnie in her ballad wrote some
esoteric symbolism into Buck's death:
“The good die young, so they tell me,

And the bad beyond power to save
Hear the sound of their heartbeats re-

maining

Thud like sods on a dead gunman's

grave . . ."

What this meant to Bonnie, no one
can say. Buck's death, certainly, must
have touched her deeply.

Blanche Barrow was given ten years
in the Missouri pen. Half of the com-
bine was accounted for. The officers of
the southwest now concentrated their
efforts on nabbing the wounded Bonnie
and Clyde. There was a long and wel-
come lull which broke the tempo of the
Barrow raids. The officers began to
hope that perhaps Bonnie and Clyde
were dead of an overdose of lead
poison, administered the hard way.
They were wrong.

On September 25, 1933, Clyde and
his blonde sweetheart began a new
reign of terror which nearly eclipsed
their former rampaging. Sheriff R. A
Schmid of Dallas survived a gun duel
with the pair when he sought to trap
them near Sowers on November 22nd.
The Barrow luck was still as phenom-
enal as ever, since the desperados man-
aged to survive the gun duel, too.

On November 23rd, the police cap-
tured W, D. Jones, a seventeen-year-old
gunslinger, who was positively identi-
fied as the mysterious henchman who
had figured in nearly every Barrow
job in over a year. Young Jones told a
fantastic story of a forced apprentice-
ship to the master killers and seemed
happy to be safely in jail, away from
the retribution of the gang.

But not even jails were safe from
Bonnie and Clyde. The pair needed the
services of another iron-nerved gun-
man. They looked the field over and
decided that no one then at liberty
deserved the privilege of raiding with
the Barrows. They decided to spring
their early boon companion, Raymond
Hamilton.

Clyde had served a stretch at East-
ham when he was still little more than
a kid. He knew the jail layout like
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the palm of his hand. He also knew the
routine of working prisoners on the
road under the close supervision of
mounted guards.

On July 16th, Ray Hamilton—in for
263 years as the result of his connec-
tions with the Barrows—got the tipoff
that he was about to be delivered from
imprisonment. He and two other case-
hardened cons found three revolvers
which Clyde had hidden for them in
the brush. At the height of the ensuing
gun-battle, the presence of Bonnie and
Clyde, slinging lead from a nearby
ravine, turned the tide. Hamilton and
four prisoners escaped. Major lJoseph
Crowson, leader of the guards, was shot
from his horse and killed.

With Hamilton again in their service,
the diabolical pair started off on a
series of raids which shocked the na-
tion to its core. When it was learned
that the outlaws might be operating from
a refuge in Oklahoma's Cookson Hills,
the oil state took elaborate measures to
end the criminals’ sway once and for all.
On February 19th, a thousand police
officers including four separate com-
panies of the Oklahoma National Guard
surrounded the Cookson Hills. They
were out to make either a capture or a
kill. It looked as if the Barrows had
come to the end of a long and bloody
trail.

In those days, Bonnie was certain that
the end was near. Not that she ever
expected to live a long and untroubled
life. Actually she was well aware of
the score and the coming of a day of
reckoning,.

“l don’t think we're too tough or des-
perate,

! know that the law has to win.
We've been shot at before, and we do

not ignore

That death is the wages of sin . . .

But death was not yet ready to claim
Bonnie and Clyde. They somehow slip-
ped out of the Cookson Hills through
the closest cordon they had yet en-
countered and rcturned to their native
Texas. Here they robbed banks and
filling stations, and, on March 3lst,
killed Texas State Patrolmen E. B.
Wheeler and H. D. Murphy.

Fleeing to Oklahoma, Clyde and Bon-
nie machine-gunned Constable Cal
‘Campbell on the road near Commerce.
Kidnapping Chief of Police Percy Boyd,
who had been with Campbell, Bonnie
and Clyde headed for Kansas where
they released their captive.

On April 25th, officers in Lewis-
ville, Texas, arrested Ray Hamilton who
swore he had not been with the Barrows
for months. The police had enough on
Hamilton—in his own right—to make
certain that he would mcet an early
death in the electric chair. They were,
however, no closer to capturing Clyde
and Bonnie than ever before.

But the gun-crazy duo was closer to
the end of the trail than to the be-
ginning. They were due for a change
in their luck. They could not hope to
continue their careers in crime without
making that last fatal turn into the one-
way street whch would mean death.
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The end came, finally, in Louisiana.
Sheriff Harrison Jordan of Bienville
Parish had a pretty good idea that
Bonnie Parker and Clyde Barrow would
turn up in his bailiwick. It was a reason-
able assumption, since the pair were
traveling with a killer named Henry
Methvin, whom they had sprung from
the prison farm at Eastham. Methvin’s
brother lived in a farmhouse east of
the village of Sailes, eighteen miles
southwest of Arcadia.

Sheriff Jordan and deputies soon
learned that their hunch was a good
one. Bonnie and Clyde had. been seen
in Shreveport. Henry Methvin actually
came to visit his brother Ivan. When
Bonnie and Clyde visited there also, it
was decided to bait a trap on the Gibs-
land-Sailes road.

On May 23rd, a six-man posse hid in
the brush on this stretch of roadway.
Ivan Methvin was the bait. Officers
compelled him to stand next to his
truck and to act as though he were re-

pairing a damaged tire on the vehicle.

At 9:15 in the morning, a Ford V-8
nosed up the road and stopped. In this
car were the two most sought after
outlaws in the United States.

“Hi, Ivan, got a flat?” Barrow called
out.

“Sure do,” Ivan answered.

The posse leaped from cover. Barrow
started to shoot, but lead poured into
him from all directions. Bonnie slumped
to the floorboards, a pistol in her right
hand which was nearly severed at the
wrist by the officers’ gunfire. The au-
thorities later counted twenty-five sep-
arate bullet holes in the dead bodies.

Thus ended the saga of America’s
cruelest killers and most notorious
lovers. It had been as Bonnie foretold
it in her song:

“Some day we will go down together,

And they’ll bury us side by side;

To a few it means grief,

To the law ir's relief,
But death to Bonnie and Clyde.” %
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HOT LOVE AND COLD DEATH
(Continued from page 33)

sheriff,” she greeted him. “Jim has not
been at home in three days. I was just
about to call you.”

Pecot said: “Haven’t you read the
papers?”

“No. Why?”

“I called Mr. LeBouef at his office,”
he said. “His secretary said you had
called three days ago saying Mr. Le-
Bouef was ill at home.”

Mrs. LeBouef looked at Pecot. Tears
came to her eyes, then she sank in an
armchair and started to sob. “Yes. I
did call the office. I said Jim was ill ...
It was a lie.”

“What happened, Mrs. LeBouef?”

“Last Tuesday night Jim left the
house saying he was in financial trou-
ble,” she began. “He said he had gam-
bled heavily and lost. He was going to
see some men in Houston, Texas, about
it. I-I haven’t seen him since.”

Sheriff Pecot was silent an instant,
then said gently, “I'm afraid I have
some bad news for you, Mrs. LeBouef.
I believe your husband is dead—mur-
dered.”

“Murdered! Not Jim! I-I-I can’t be-
lieve it.”

“We have a body at the morgue
which we believe is his. In fact, we are
practically certain. This is going to be
hard for you, Mrs. LeBouef, but you
will have to come and make an identi-
fication. There is still the possibility
we may be wrong.”

In the presence of the medical ex-
aminer, several deputies, and Gilmore,
the sheriff gently uncovered the body
on the morgue slab. One look at the
mutilated corpse sufficed, and the white-
faced woman fainted. The body on the
slab was LeBouef’s.

The sheriff saw the bereaved woman
to her home and there he asked her,
“Who is your family doctor, Mrs. Le-
Bouef?”

“Dr. Thomas Dreher,” she replied
numbly.

“Better call him in,” he advised.

Just then the maid called Pecot to
the phone. He listened intently, then
said, “That’s swell. Hold everything. I'll
be right there.”

An hour later Pecot and Gilmore
alighted from their police car on the
shore of Lake Poulard, about one hun-
dred and fifty feet from the littie school-
house where a group of deputies were
gathered around a rowboat.

“It belongs to Sam McCoy, the
swamp man who lives in that shack,”
said a deputy pointing to a broken
down shack seventy-five feet inland.
“We found the boat way out in the
marshes. There’s blood stains in it. We
questioned him. Says he knows nothing
about it.”

Pecot and Gilmore examined the
bloodstains in the boat and then walk-
ed up to the shack, followed by the
deputies.

McCoy was seated on the porch
guarded by two men. He was in his
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sixties, lean and weatherbeaten. “You’d
better tell the truth,” wamed Pecot, “if
you know what’s good for you.”

The swamp man did not answer.
Rather, he looked at them with insolent
eyes.

“There’s blood in your rowboat.
James LeBouef’s blood. What about
it?” said Pecot.

“That blood in my boat proves noth-
ing,” said McCoy. “I went duck hunt-
ing. You can’t prove I shot James Le-
Bouef.”

Pecot and Gilmore looked at each
other. Then the sheriff turned to the
swamp man.

“How do you know LeBouef was
shot?” asked Pecot. The swamp man
bit his lip and his eyes shifted uncom-
fortably. “Nobody said anything about
LeBouef having been shot. You knew
because you shot him.”

“I don’t know nothing, I tell you,”
said the swamp man clamping his jaws
shut.

The sheriff turned to his deputies.
“All right, boys. Search the shack.”

A search of the shack soon revealed
an envelope containing five hundred
dollars in twenty-dollar bills.

The money in his hand, Pecot turned
to Gilmore. “Even if the swamp men
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here pooled their resources,” he said,

*‘they wouldn’t be able to put up half

of this amount.”

McCoy was taken into custody as a
suspect and brought to Franklin’s jail,
although he insisted he knew nothing of
the murder. Back in Morgan City, Pecot
decided to pay a visit to Mrs. LeBouef.

When the maid ushered him in, Dr.
Thomas E. Dreher, a distinguished-
looking medical man in his late fifties
and a highly influential doctor among
the wealthy families in the city, was
about to leave. He wore an expensive
white linen suit and an equally expen-
sive panama hat.

“How’s Mrs. LeBouef?” Pecot asked
him.

“Much better,” the doctor assured
him. “The shock was too much, natural-
ly. Even for me. I just can’t believe Jim
was murdered.”

“We've just arrested a suspect,” said
Pecot. “A swamp man—Sam McCoy.”

“Has he confessed?” asked Mrs. Le-
Bouef.

L O. BUT we have enough evidence
to convict him,” assured Pecot.
“We believe he was hired to do the
killing. We found five hundred dollars
in his shack. And that brings me to the
reason why I am here. Mrs. LeBouef,
perhaps you can help us.”
“I'll do everything I can, Sheriff,”
she said.
“You mentioned that your husband
left the house Tuesday evening, saying

he was going to Houston to see a group
of men about an alleged gambling loss
he had sustained.”

llYes?"

“Have you any idea how your hus-
band gambled? Stock market? Horses?
Roulette? Have you any idea who was
associated with Mr. LeBouef in his
gambling venture?”

“Jim never let me worry about any-
thing,” moaned Mrs. LeBouef. “I knew
nothing of his gambling until that
night.”

“Dr. Dreher,” Pecot said, “I under-
stand you've been the family doctor
many years. Perhaps you can throw
some light on Mr. LeBouef’s personal
habits?”

The physician shook his head sadly.
“I'm afraid I can’t help you, Sheriff. But
you've got the killer. Hang him.”

“He’ll hang all right,” said Pecot.
“And those who hired him to do the
killing for them, too.” Thanking both
Mrs. LeBouef and Dr. Dreher, Pecot
drove to Franklin determined to break
down McCoy’s resistance.

“Look, McCoy,” began the sheriff.
“We know you killed Mr. LeBouef. And
we’ll guarantee you clemency if you'll
tell us who hired you to kill him.”

“I don’t know nothing, I tell you,”
said the swamp man. “And you can’t
prove anything. You have no evidence.”

“Folks around here liked Mr. Le-
Bouef,” said Pecot, “and there’s a lot of
wild talk going around about you, and
a mob is collecting. If that mob ever
gets out of hand, anything can happen.
Right now they think you did it. But
if you know better, you’d better talk
fast. It may be too late to talk later,”
he added significantly.

“You can’'t let a mob get me,” whis-
pered McCoy. “I-I didn’t do it.”

“If you didn’t, you know who did,
and sometimes mobs are not partic-
ular.”

McCoy was completely cowed. His
ashen lips trembled. His eyes were the
eyes of a hunted animal.

“All right,” he said, “I'll talk. It was
Dr. Dreher.”

“You must be crazy, McCoy!” Pecot
ejaculated.

“Dr. Dreher shot Mr. LeBouef, I tell
you,” insisted McCoy desperately. “I
saw him shoot Mr. LeBouef twice.”

Then the swamp man signed the fol-
lowing confession: “I had weorked for
Dr. Dreher on various odd jobs for
some time. Two weeks ago he came to
my shack saying he had a job that
would pay five hundred dollars. I said
I'd kill a man for that much dough. Dr.
Dreher promised to have the money
ready when he wanted the job done.
Last Monday evening he came to iny
shack again with five hundred dollars
in an envelope. He said it was mine.
Then he gave me Mr. LeBouef’s tele-
phone number and instructed me to call
him right after dinner Tuesday evening,
to say that his wife would be boating on
Poulard Lake with Dr. Dreher at ten
that evening. That he should meet me
at that little schoolhouse and I'd show
him where to find them in each other’s
arms.
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“Dr. Dreher said he’d be at the little
schoolhouse to point Mr. LeBouef out
to me. The understanding was that once
I had Mr. LeBouef in my boat, I had to
stab him and throw the body over-
board. I followed Dr. Dreher’s instruc-
tions. At nine-thirty Tuesday night I
was standing by my rowboat behind the
little schoolhouse. Soon a boat came
swishing my way. In it was Dr. Dreher.
At ten minutes to ten the headlights of
an automobile stabbed the darkness.
Dr. Dreher said it was Mr. LeBouef’s.
He promised an extra bonus if I did a
‘clean job,” and took to his boat. Five
minutes later Mr. LeBouef came toward
my boat. I called out to him. He asked
no questions, merely wanted to be taken
to his wife’s rendezvous. I motioned
him to the boat and felt the stiletto in
my pocket. At that moment something
happened inside of me. This man loved
his wife, I could tell, and was walking
into a trap innocently.

“I went soft and couldn’t go through
with the deal. Instead of jumping in the
boat after him, I let him go out alone
giving him a fake direction. I then took
to the catamaran on the beach behind
the schoolhouse and instinctively fol-
lowed him. A low hanging mist made
visibility poor. But I saw a boat pull up
to Mr. LeBouef's from the opposite
direction. Then I heard Dr. Dreher’s
voice: ‘Is that you, Jim?’ and Mr. Le-
Bouef answered. ‘What are you doing
here with my wife, you dog!”

“By this time I was close enough to
see Dr. Dreher raise his hand and fire
twice without warning. Mr. LeBouef fell
forward into the boat. Dr. Dreher leap-
ed into the dead man’s boat and then I
heard the swish of another rowboat
pushing out trom the fringe of low
hanging trees. There was a woman in it.
She asked: ‘Is he dead?’ And the doctor
looked up angrily. ‘Ada! What are you
doing here? I told you to wait at the
boathouse.” Mrs. LeBouef answered: ‘I
want to see with my own eyes that my
husband is dead.

“By now they had seen me. I wanted
no part of it and started to row away.
Dr. Dreher called me back, threatened
me with his gun, said I had bungled up
the job and was in it with him to the
end or he’d see that I'd swing for it,
for who would not believe the words of
Dr. Dreher and Mrs. LeBouef. Then he
told Mrs. LeBouef to return to the boat-
house and wait for him there as he
intended driving her to the litile school-
house where she would pick up her
husband’s car and drive it to the house.

“Mrs. LeBouef went back to the boat-
house. Dr. Dreher and myself rowed to
the shore, toward the railroad tracks. I
helped him strip the body of its clothes.
We picked up a loose railroad tie,
bound it to the body and rowed out to
the lake again. Dr. Dreher made long
cuts on the body with a knife before he
dumped it into the muddy water. He
told me to burn the clothes and warned
me to keep the terrible secret if I cared
for my neck. Finally he dropped the
gun in the lake and we parted. After I
burned the clothes, I discovered Mr.
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LeBouef’s shoes on the railroad bed
and pitched them into the lake.”

TAUT, oppressive silence greeted
the end of McCoy’s confession.
The sheriff was exhausted but he still
had work to do. He had been on the go
for over sixty hours without a wink of
sleep. But, now, it was his painful task
to arrest Dr. Dreher and Ada LeBouef
and bring them to the jail in Franklin.
When Morgan City and Franklin
woke up the next morning, which was
Saturday, the news of the arrest of the
doctor and Mrs. LeBouef swept over
the towns like a storm.

And before the sun reached its meri-
dian Pecot was in possession of many
facts and ugly rumors about the doctor
and Ada LeBouef carrying on a clan-
destine affair.

Investigation revealed that Ada Le-
Bouet had left her home that fateful
Tuesday evening, at eight, and that Dr.
Dreher had left his home at about the
same time. Too, the boathouse care-
taker. had accidentally seen’ them take
to their boats the night Mr. LeBouef
was murdered.

On July 18th, Assistant District At-
torney Gilmore and Sheriff Pecot se-
cured first-degree murder indictments
against the three suspects.

When the trial began, the courtroom
was stormed by thousands of people
seeking admission to the sensational
murder case. Judge James D. Simon
presided, with tough District Attorney
John Gagan handling the prosecution.

Despite a savage cross-examination,
McCoy’s story stood up. But the tales
of the other two defendants were often
conflicting and their alibis were smash-
ed. The most telling blow against them
was the testimony of the ballistics ex-
pert who proved that the slugs extracted
from LeBouef's body were discharged
from a gun owned by Dr. Dreher.

The doctor broke down under the or-
deal and made a full confession. He said
that LeBouef had learned about his
wife’s affection for the doctor, and had
threatened to expose them publicly.
Ada could not stand the thought of
scandal, and it was then the doctor
planned the murder.

“I was bereft of all reasoning power
when I planned the killing; I was ac-
tually insane,” he said. In an attempt to
save Ada’s life, he assumed all respon-
sibility for the crime.

But the jury had other ideas. Its ver-
dict was, “Murder in the first degree for
Mrs. Ada LeBouef and Dr. Dreher; life
imprisonment for Sam McCoy.”

An appeal to Governor Huey P. Long
resulted in a stay of execution until the
United States Supreme Court could rule
on the case. On January 28th, 1929, the
Supreme Court of the United States de-
cided that the trial had been conducted
properly and that it had no jurisdiction
in the case.

At daybreak on February 1st, 1929,
Mrs. Ada LeBouef and Dr. Thomas
Dreher were marched out of their cell
into a cold, bleak prison yard to a grim-
looking scaffold, and there they paid for
their unholy crime. *
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THE DOCTOR AND THE MADAM

(Continued from page 41)

a house of ill fame he had known well.
He spent an uproarious night there, ar-
riving at his home the next morning,
ready to probate the will at once and
to get on his way to Halifax.

Nobody questioned the will. It was
a natural, legitimate document, and
Doctor Buchanan was whistling to him-
self as he walked out of the building
that housed the Surrogate's Court. Then
quite suddenly he stopped whistling.
and for one brief second he experienced
a feeling of terror and fear.

Standing at the curb, as if he had
been waiting for the doctor to come out
of the courthouse, was Horace Smith,
the unsuccessful rival for the fifty-
thousand-dollar nest egg of Mrs. Suth-
erland and the man whom Buchanan
had thrown over the fence. Mr. Smith
stared at the doctor, who stopped sud-
denly. Then Smith smiled. It wasn't a
smile of friendship; neither was there
any warmth in it. It was cold and mock-
ing, as if the inoffensive Mr. Smith
wished to convey to Doctor Buchanan
that he knew exactly what had hap-
pened.

That smile cut through the fat, roly-
poly Doctor Buchanan like a sharp
knife. He turned on his heel and
walked hurriedly down the street, with-
out once looking around.

It haunted his dreams that night.
The small Mr. Smith scemed to be
standing over him. a taunting nemesis.
But when morning came, Doctor Bu-
chanan had thrown off that vague fear.
With all the medicines used during his
wife'’s sickness stuffed in the old-fash-
ioned carpet bag, he left for Halifax,
Nova Scotia, to court his first wife
again.

This courtship, taking the whirlwind
course it had with Mrs. Sutherland, was
successful, and three weeks after arriv-
ing in Halifax, he and his first wife
were remarried. The day after the wed-
ding they returned to New York City.

Doctor Buchanan hadn't expected
any reception and he was both flattered
and a little puzzled when he was greeted
at the station by a number of newspaper
reporters. Pictures were shot of him
and his wife. The reporters began ask-
ing questions. Some of the questions
made the doctor decidedly nervous, as
they concerned the death of Mrs. Suth-
erland. He passed them off without any
definite answers and hurried away.

He would have been more than
puzzled if he had watched the reporters
leave the station and meet Mr. Smith
outside.

The two men who talked the longest
and the most earnestly to Mr. Smith
were Paul Leary and Jake Benton of
the old New York World, a paper
known then for its great reporters and
its fearlessness in pursuing a story.

“He acted nervous all right,” Leary
admitted to the righteously angry Mr.
Smith. “But it will take more than
nervousness to get District Attorney
Nicoll to even listen to us.”
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“I can only tell you this,” Mr. Smith
replied. “I knew Mrs. Sutherland for
several years and I knew her—er, quite
well. She was not a sick woman. She
never had Bright's disease or anything
like that. That fat-faced quack wanted
her money and by God, he's got it
now, and he murdered her to get it!”

“That's all fine,” Jake Benton, one of
New York’s most famous reporters,
thundered, “but old Nicoll is a hard
guy to convince. We go up and tell him
that Buchanan wanted her money and
killed her and admit that’s all we know,
we’'d land out of that office on our
ears.”

Leary said: “It won't hurt anything
to see what we can learn.”

Before they started, the two reporters
made a deal with Smith to work ex-
clusively with them. Smith had enlisted
the support of reporters from the other
papers, but he discarded them and
threw his lot in with Leary and Benton.

OR two weeks the three men

prowled about in the Village haunts
of Doctor Buchanan. They asked ques-
tions of everybody. They didn't learn
much, except that the bouncing littlc
doctor was quite a man with the women
and well-known in a number of bor-
dellos along the waterfront as a ‘“house
breaker,” a name given to obstreperous
patrons when they got drunk.

The fact that none of his cronies
seemed to know anything about Mrs.
Sutherland struck Leary and Benton as
strange. After two wceks of this ques-
tioning, Leary and Benton decided that
maybe in his riotous outbursts of pas-
sion the doctor might have done more

talking in the houses of ill fame; so
they started making a round of these
places.

While they were doing this, Mr.

Smith was playing the part of being the
nemesis of the doctor in a very effective
and terrifying manner. He spent all his
time in the neighborhood of | Ith Street
and whenever the doctor walked out of
the house Mr. Smith was always some-
where in sight to smile very knowingly.

This was bad enough for the doctor,
but it wasn't long until he began to hear
from his friends about newspapermen
visiting taverns and barrooms and ask-
ing a lot of pointed questions.

At the end of a week Doctor Buchan-
an was haggard and his nerves were
jumpy. He stayed in his office. He didn’t
make any calls. His wife tried to find
out the trouble. He would only stare
ahead and say nothing when she ques-
tioned him.

Then one night he paced the floor.
News had come to him that the news-
papermen were visiting the houses of ill
fame. He wanted to flee, but he knew
wherever he went the haunting smile of
Mr. Smith would be there to greet him.

HEN the shades of dawn broke
through the East, he was still
pacing the floor. He peered out of the
window. The misty gray covered the
streets like a blanket. He went to his
room, threw some clothes in a suitcase.

His wife was sleeping and he tried not
to awaken her.

He slipped out of the rear door and
into the garden behind his house. He
scaled the low fence, sneaked into the
rear of the house facing 126th Street,
went through the basement hallway and
out on 12th Street.

He was jittery as he hurried down
this street. At any moment he expected
to see the thin face of Mr. Smith come
out of a doorway.

But Mr. Smith didn’t appear. On Sixth
Avenue Doctor Buchanan got a street
car and didn’t get off until he arrived
at 42nd Street and Sixth Avenue, which
in that year was the location of the
Reservoir for New York City. Around
it were houscs of not too excellent fame.
The doctor got a room in a house near
Fifth Avenue. He threw himself across
the bed, and, completely exhausted, he
fell into a deep sleep.

It was late in the afternoon when he
awoke. He felt better. Mr. Smith would
never find him there. He took stock of
his situation. It wasn’t good. He had no
way of knowing what he had said in the
bordellos along the West Side water-
fronts where the reporters were ques-
tioning the girls.

Late in the evening he went out and
got something to eat. When he returned
to his room, he was still nervous and ex-
hausted. He had a bottle of whiskey. He
drank enough to put him to sleep and
he didn't wake until morning.

His plan of action was well thought
out. He knew of a detective agency
whose reputation wasn’t the best. He
went to them, hired two men to watch
his wife's grave in Woodlawn Cemetery.
They were ordered to report to him the
minute anybody appeared to exhume
the body.

Then he risked travelling downtown
to talk to his lawyer. He planned to be
very frank with this gentleman, but
when he got in the office, his nerve failed
him. He mumbled something about
enemies trying to cause him trouble by
having his wife's body exhumed. He
hastened to add that the exhumation
wouldn’t disclose anything but it could
ruin his reputation.

His story didn’t go over well with the
lawyer, who rather bluntly advised him
to stop stalling around and tell the truth.
The lawyer was noticeably noncommit-
tal in his advice. The doctor left the
lawyer’s office promptly, wishing very
much he hadn’t gone there.

The next day when he walked out of
his rooming house, he was wearing a
disguise. He had written his wife a
note, saying that he was called away on
important business and would keep in
touch with her. In his disguise he wan-
dered back in the Tenth Ward neighbor-
hood, trying to check up on what the
reporters were doing. His two men were
guarding the grave. He planned to flee
the minute any move was made to ex-
hume the body.

Down in the old World Building on
newspaper row, in the City Hall section
of New York City, Leary and Benton
were getting whole-hearted support from
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Joseph Pulitzer, father of modern yellow
journalism and a man who could smell
a good story a mile away and who was
never known to miss a scoop. Special
investigators were hired to help l.eary
and Benton, who by this time had picked
up enough information in the bawdy
houses to be sure that Mr. Smith knew
what he was talking about.

Mr. Smith, in the meantime, was very
unhappy at losing his prey, and although
he stalked the streets daily to confront
the man who had run away with his
love and added insult to injury by throw-
ing him over a board fence, he saw
nothing of him. But he didn’t give up
his search and he proved to be an alert
and successful bloodhound before many
Jdays passed.

The special investigators hired by
Pulitzer went to Philadelphia to check
up on the story Doctor Buchanan had
told about the father of Mrs. Sutherland
dying of a cerebral hemorrhage. They
learned that he apparently had died of
a hemorrhage, but not a cerebral one.
His hemorrhage was caused by too
much whiskey in the stomach at one
time, his final demise being brought
about through an effort to drink all the
whiskey in a waterfront saloon in Phila-
delphia to win a ten-dollar bet.

The investigators stopped off at New-
ark on their way back to New York
They talked to Mrs. Sutherland’s doc-
tor. He was emphatic that she never had
Bright's disease or any other affliction

that would have put her to bed so soon
after her marriage to Doctor Buchanan.

lL.eary and Benton were hot on the
trail of Nurse Connel in New York.
They had some difficulty finding her,
but when they did. she said: *“I remem-
ber now seeing Doctor Buchanan giving
his wife some medicine just before 1
went into the room and found her face
flushed and her pulse so fast I couldn’t
measure it."”

“What medicine did he give her?"

Nurse Connel shrugged. "l couldn’t
tell you that because when I got my
senses back after the sudden turn for the
worse on his wife's part. I found that
every bottle of medicine had been taken
from her room.”

l.eary and Benton didn’t ask her any
more questions. They reported back to
the World. Pulitzer. who had taken per-
sonal charge of the story, instructed
them to go to District Attorney Nicoll
and ask for Doctor Buchanan's arrest.

The investigators went with the two
reporters. District Attorney Nicoll was
a veteran of murder cases. He listened
to the stories told by Leary and Benton
and by the investigators.

“All right,” he countered. “You say
Doctor Buchanan poisoned his wife.
Thinking that and proving it are two
different things. The testimony of the
nurse might be good but it isn't enough.
Get me proof and I'll do something.”

The two newspaper reporters looked
at each other and shrugged.

“You want proof.” lLeary said. “Ex-
hume the body. If you find poison, you
have a case, and if you don't have one.
we'll get it for you.”

The district attorney wasn’t greatly
impressed, but he promised to get a
court order to exhume the body.

Mr. Smith, who had wandered the
streets for some days in abject misery,
made a startling discovery that same
afternoon. He saw a short roly-poly man
with a huge beard walking down Sixth
Avenue. The face wasn’t familiar, but
that rolling gait was. He followed the
man, boarding a street car when he did,
and got off at 42nd Street. He kept on
the man’s trail when he entered a room-
ing house.

An hour later the same man came
out but he wasn't wearing a beard. He
was Doctor Buchanan. Mr. Smith used
strong will power to resist the tempta-
tion of smiling at him and disappeared
before the doctor saw that his nemesis
had spotted him.

Smith rushed downtown and reported
his discovery to Leary and Benton, who
in turn passed the information on to the
district attorney. Two detectives, Pat
Karvich and Jim Holding, were assigned
to keep the doctor under surveillance.

HE next morning other detectives
and grave-diggers journeyed to
Woodlawn Cemetery to exhume the
body of Ann B. Sutherland Buchanan.
The two detectives Buchanan had sta-
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tioned at the grave raced for a street car
to get downtown to tip the doctor off.
But in that year it took some time to
get from he Woodlawn Cemeery to 42nd
Street, and before this was accom-
plished, the body had been dug up and
was on its way to the city morgue.

Detectives Karvich and Holding saw
the two men hurry into the rooming
house, and a few minutes later they saw
Doctor Buchanan come out with them,
carrying a suitcase. The detectives acted
without waiting for orders from the dis-
trict attorney. They arrested Doctor
Buchanan and took him down to the
district attorney's office.

Things had happened with such ra-
pidity that the doctor was somewhat
dazed as he sat facing the district at-
torney. But although dazed, he felt
strangely calm and collected, and the
horror of having to see the smile on Mr.
Smith’s face was completely gone.

The feeling of relief was almost over-
whelming and he wondered why he had
run away. He knew that even with the
body exhumed, and the morphine found,
there would always be a question as to
whether his wife had died of morphine
poisoning. The traces of arsenic, which
had weakened her stomach, liver, and
kidney, preparing her for the final blow,
would never be found in suthcient quan-
tities to establish the fact he had fed her
arsenic. The embalming fluid had ar-
senic and that would cover everything.

“Doctor Buchanan,” District Attor-
ney Nicoll said, “we are holding you
until a post mortem is performed on
your wife's body. We believe we have
enough evidence to make this exami-
nation.”

UCHANAN smiled. It was obvious
that the district attorney was nerv-
ous and not very sure of his ground.

"I am perfectly willing to await the
results of the autopsy,” the doctor an-
swered, beaming in a way that fidn’t
add to the comfort of the district
attorney.

The autopsy was performed quickly.
The brain and vital organs were sent to
Professor Witthaus’s laboratory. Doctor
Prudden. famous as a pathologist in that
year, assisted in the examination of the
brain and the vital organs. He found an
edema of the brain, a condition brought
about by an overdose of morphine. Mor-
phine was found in the stomach and
liver, as well as in the brain. The dis-
covery of it in the stomach established
that it had been given by mouth rather
than by injection.

This information didn't increase Dis-
trict Attorney Nicoll’'s optimism. The
World had come out in its June 7th
morning edition with the screamer head-
line that Doctor Buchanan had been
arrested, and under this headline was
the subtitle giving the World all the
credit for amassing the evidence that
brought about the arrest. It was con-
sidered in that year one of the great
newspaper scoops.

But the district attorney had little in-
terest in a newspaper scoop. He faced
Leary and Benton and Detectives Kor-
vich and Holding.
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“It's fine for the World,” Nicoll said,
“but we have a case with a hundred
loopholes and Buchanan can slip out
through any of them—if he is smart.”

“But is he smart?” Leary asked. “He
may take the witness stand.”

“Suppose he takes the witness stand?”
Nicoll theorized. “Where does that get
us?”

“If he takes the witness stand,” Leary
answered, “I think I know one question
you can ask him that will bust his whole
case into a cocked hat.”

The Buchanan case became, over-
night, the great news sensation not only
of New York City but of the entire
country. -The other New York papers,
caught napping by the World. threw all
their resources into the story, and since
the World was interested in proving the
doctor guilty, the rival papers naturally
adopted the other side, trying to ridicule
the World for its great scoop.

In the taverns of the Village where
Buchanan had so long been a familiar
sight, people took sides and the argu-
ments often ended in fistic encounters.

He liked it, and when he talked to his
lawyers he wasn’t frightened. The first
wife he had remarried remained loyal
to him, coming every day to his cell,
bringing him excellent food and clean
shirts and underwear. Gifts began to
reach his cell from admirers all over the
country.

His trial started on March 22, 1893.
The wheels of habit and industry seemed
to stop in every city and hamlet of the
nation. The telegraph stations were
equipped to bring the latest development
of the case to the most remote corners
of the country.

The State’s case was admittedly weak.
Doctor Prudden took the stand. He was
a dignified witness and he refused to be
caught in the trap of conflicting theories
set by the battery of defense lawyers.
Nurse Connel wasn’t a great success on
the stand. She got mixed up and changed
her story and the supporters of Doctor
Buchanan cheered so lustily that the
judge almost ordered the courtroom to
be cleared.

Doctor Buchanan watched the pro-
ceedings with avid interest. The adula-
tion of the public almost made him be-
lieve that he was innocent.

So supremely confident was he, and
so carried away by his importance, that
he angrily demanded of his lawyers that
he be permitted to take the witness
stand. They protested for the simple and
excellent reason that they had their case
won and why take a chance? But he was
going to give it to them.

For half an hour Nicoll took him
through the events of his wife’s death,
catching him time and again in lies. His
lawyers squirmed nervously in their
chairs. They had the apprehensive feel-
ing that somewhere over their heads the
fuse of a lighted bomb was burning
rapidly.

Then suddenly Nicoll said: “Doctor
Buchanan, when you left for Halifax,
you were carrying a carpet bag?”

“Sure, I was carrying one,” the doctor
replied. “A man can't travel without a
bag, can he?”

He laughed at his implied joke. His
lawyers didn’t.

Nicoll asked: “Doctor, when you re-
turned from Halifax, you didn’t have
that carpet bag?”

Buchanan felt a sudden foreboding
that all wasn’t well. In the excitement of
courting his first wife, he had forgotten
about that carpet bag. He had left it in
Halifax.

Before he could collect his senses,
Nicoll had jumped up and grabbed the
carpet bag and was standing in front of
the doctor.

“Is this your carpet bag?” he shouted.

The defense lawyers leaped to their
feet and yelled objections. The bomb
over their heads was about to explode.
The district attorney had led their client
into a trap. Only by his identification on
the witness stand could the State estab-
lish the ownership of the carpet bag. If
he had never taken the stand, the dam-
aging piece of evidence could never have
been introduced.

“Is this your bag?” Nicoll thundered.

The doctor’s mouth was dry. Then in
a hushed whisper he said: “Yes, that is
my bag.”

The district attorney turned to the
judge. “Your Honor,” he announced tri-
umphantly, “the State wishes to have
this carpet bag—and its contents—en-
tered as an exhibit. It is the contention
of the State that Doctor Buchanan fled
with the medicine from his wife’s room
stuffed in this bag. The medicines are
all there and they will establish beyond
any reasonable doubt that his wife was
both poisoned by morphine and slowly
poisoned by arsenic.”

The judge admitted into evidence the
carpet bag and the vials that had con-
tained the morphine and the arsenic.

Doctor Buchanan’s case collapsed.
The jury was out only four hours before
returning a verdict of guilty of murder
in the first degree. Judge Davis sen-
tenced Doctor Buchanan to die in the
electric chair.

As he stood up to receive his sen-
tence, the pleasure-loving doctor was too
stunned, too dazed to know what he was
doing. He asked for a drink of whiskey,
swallowed it in one gulp. Then he said:
“An innocent man is about to die.”

The World carried their triumphal
story under great banner headlines.
They told how Leary, grabbing for one
thing to break the defense case, had
remembered that Doctor Buchanan
didn’t have the carpet bag when he re-
turned remarried to his first wife. Nurse
Connel had told him the Doctor had
this bag when he left.

Leary had gone to Halifax where he
found the family of Mrs. Buchanan not
favorable to the doctor or the remar-
riage. They found the carpet bag in the
room Doctor Buchanan had used after
his successful courtship of his first wife.
The telltale medicine was still in the bag.

OR two years the lawyers for the
doctor waged a losing battle to save
him from the electric chair. Public in-
terest in the case remained at fever
pitch. Great crowds lined the Hudson
River on the day set for the execution.
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Arrangements had been made for a
black flag to be hoisted when the doctor
died.

The flag was never raised. The war-
den thwarted this public display of mor-
bid interest by setting the hour of ex-
ecution at midnight when the flag
couldn’t be seen, and in doing this he
established the now accepted custom of
electrocuting men at midnight.

Pale and only a shell of his former
self, his liquid eyes dull and lifeless, the
amorous doctor walked into the death
house at midnight on July S, 1895. He
was still dazed and stunned and he
didn’t seem to know what he was doing.
He sat down and helped the guards
with the straps.

Three minutes later the prison doctor
pronounced him dead.

BACHELOR PARTY, DEADLY GUESTS
(Continued from page 25)

or just gate-crashers. But he was a cor-
dial, good-hearted man and he wel-
comed everybody.”

Lieutenant Castro jotted down the
names of as many of the guests as Perez
could remember. Most of them were
local businessmen and their wives who
belonged to Fisher's crowd. Others were
customers to whom Fisher had sold in-
surance. A few were casual acquaint-
ances whom the executive had appar-
ently met in bars.

Among the latter. Perez said. were
two American seamen whom he had
never seen before. and a number of
young Puerto Ricans, some of whom
brought their girl friends.

“It would appear.” said Lieutenant
Castro. “that the men we want entered
the apartment with other guests and
remained behind until everyone else
had left. Have you any idea who they
could be?"

Perez said he had not. He had left at
11 o'clock, he said. and there were still
at least twenty guests present.

“Who is the young man who was
killed in the bathtub?” the lieutenant
asked.

“He worked for Mr. Fisher from time
to time. but I only know him by his
first name—Miguel.”

Lieutenant Castro sent Detectives
Samuel Soto and Fructuoso Rodriguez
to interview some of the guests whose
names Perez had given him.

Castro remained at the apartment
while the two crime experts dusted the
bedroom and bathroom for fingerprints
and searched for other evidence that
might point to the identity of the slay-
ers. Nothing of any consequence was
discovered. however. and the lieuten-
ant returned at last to his office.

A check with the motor vehicle
bureau established that Charles Fisher's
car bore license plates number 869-289.
The missing vehicle, almost certainly
stolen by the slayers, seemed to offer
the best chance of tracing them. The
white Thunderbird sports car would be
highly conspicuous, even in the crowded
streets of San Juan.

IEUTENANT Castro issued a pick-
up order on the car to police officers
throughout the island. He also directed
patrol cars in the San Juan area to
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check service stations and garages.on
the chance that the driver of the Thun-
derbird had stopped by somewhere for
gasoline.

The lieutenant then put through a call
to the state police of North Carolina,
asking them to notify Fisher's relatives
in Canton of his death. The police called
back later with some routine informa-
tion about the victim which Castro had
requested. Charles Fisher had gradu-
ated from Duke University in 1951,
and then taught school in Canton until
he was called up for military service
during the Korean War. Upon his dis-
charge. he had taken a job as an insur-
ance salesman for his present employers.
He had risen rapidly in the company
until, in 1955, he was put in charge of
their Puerto Rico branch. A company
official described him as a man of ex-
cellent character with whose work the
company was entirely satisfied.

Later that evening Detective Soto ap-
peared at headquarters with a blonde
young woman in her twenties who, he
said. had been a late guest at Fisher's
party.

“My husband is a representative for
a tobacco company here,” she said. “He
and I are both from North Carolina and
we knew Charlie Fisher very well. My
husband had quite a lot to drink at
Charlie's party last night. He doesn’t
remember much about what went on,
but I do. We stayed past midnight, until
there was no further doubt about who
won the elections. We were among the
last to leave.”

“Who were still there at that time?”
Lieutenant Castro asked.

“Only four other people,” the blonde
housewife said. "A young Puerto Rican
couple whom we know slightly. They
work for the government, but they both
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belong to the Puerto Rican Independ-
ence Party. They were involved in a
heated political argument with Charlie,
who favored statehood for Puerto Rico.
When we left, they were still arguing.

*I thought you ought to know about
it,” the young woman continued, “though
this couple are both quiet-mannered,
educated people and I can’t imagine
them murdering anybody.”

Lieutenant Castro made a note of
their names. “You said there were two
other guests there when you left,” he
prompted the woman. “Who were they?”

“Two American merchant seamen.
They were strangers to me but Charlie
seemed to know them. They spent most
of their time drinking Charlie’s rum
and playing his hi-fi set. Charlie had
a fine collection of American rock-
and-roll records, and they sat listening
to them.”

Castro questioned his informant
carefully about the seamen.
“They were young, nice-looking

chaps,” she said. “They were of aver-
age size and build and they both had
dark, crew-cut hair. They certainly
didn’t look like criminals. That’s all I
can tell you about them, though I think
I'd recognize them if I saw them
again.”

Though it was late at night, the bars
were still open, and Lieutenant Castro
issued a directive to patrol cars in the
waterfront district to question Ameri-
can seamen of the description the wom-
an had given. This resulted in the tem-
porary detention of a score of seamen,
and four men were held overnight.

In the morning, police drove the
blonde housewife back to headquar-
ters. The seamen were brought to Lieu-
tenant Castro's office and she was asked
to view them.

After regarding them carefully, she
shook her head. “No, none of these
men were at Charlie’s party,” she said
positively.

The seamen were released. But later
that morning a call from detectives re-
ported that, though Fisher had owned
an expensive hi-fi set, not a single
record for it could be found in the
apartment. Apparently the business-
man’s killers had stolen not only his
car but his phonograph records.

The detectives had made another
interesting discovery at the apartment;
several cigarette butts had been ground
out on the floor of a large walk-in
closet adjoining Fisher's bedroom.

This evidence suggested that his slay-
ers had hidden in the closet until the
other guests left, then had appeared
suddenly and attacked Fisher as he was
preparing for bed. They might have
been in hiding there for several hours
before the party broke up.

During the morning, the detectives -

who had been interviewing the other
party guests reported their findings.
Everyone they had talked with seemed
above suspicion in the brutal murders.

The Puerto Rican couple who had
been arguing local politics with Charles
Fisher said they had left at I a.m. and
gone to a lunch room for hamburgers
and coffee. They had been noticed there
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by a counter man, who assured the po-
lice that they were perfectly poised and
relaxed and could not possibly have
just been involved in a violent double
murder.

NOTHER development occurred

that morning, however, which
Lieutenant Castro believed was directly
connected with the crime. A detective
telephoned him from a service station
in the Dorado area, and Castro drove
there at once.

The young Puerto Rican manager
of the station told him about some-
thing that had happened during the
early morning hours of Wednesday,
November 4th.

“Two young men drove into my
station in a white Thunderbird sports
car,” he said. “They told me to fill the
gas tank. I was alone at the time and
I didn’t like their looks, but I had to
wait on them.

“l gave them 14 gallons of gas and
then I began to wipe the windshield.
The driver started the motor sudden-
ly. He drove away without paying me—
so fast that he almost knocked me over.
And so I lost the price of the gasoline,
but 1 didn’t report it to the police.
Such things have happened to me be-
fore and I've learned to take them in
my stride.”

The station manager described the
men as Puerto Ricans. He said the driv-
er was in his mid-twenties and the
other man was younger. Both were well-
dressed, but they looked tough and
they had been drinking. He said that
before he could get the license number
the car had vanished into the darkness.

Castro was convinced that the car
was Fisher’'s and that the two young
men were his murderers. He directed
patrol cars to the Dorado area to search
for other persons who might have seen
the car.

And then, when the newspapers
reached the streets that morning with
stories of the savage double slaying,
e police received a call from a hys-
terical middle-aged woman who identi-
fied herself as a relative of a young man
named Miguel Angel Sanchez.

“Miguel works as a houseboy for
wealthy people,” she said. “He often
worked for Mr. Charles Fisher, and I
read in the newspapers that Mr. Fisher
and a young man were both murdered.
I am afraid that the young man was
Miguel.”

Castro sent a police car to pick up
the woman and drive her to the morgue.
Sobbing uncontrollably, she formally
identified the second murder victim as
Miguel Angel Sanchez, 18 years old.

She said that he had never been in
trouble with the police, and this was
later confirmed. The woman added.
however, that Miguel had a number of
tough friends of whom she did not ap-
prove. In reply to Castro’s questions,
she said that he might have told some
of his friends that he was going to work
at Fisher’s party that night. She
thought they might have gained access
to the party in order to rob Fisher—
and that after murdering him they had

killed Miguel too so he could not iden-
tify them.

The youth came from Rio Piedras,
and Castro sent two men in a car to
that district to make inquiries.

But. before he heard from them. a
telephone call came that evening from
a post of the Puerto Rican National
Guard at the Punta Salinas Naval in-
stallation near San Juan. An officer
there reported a tragic incident which
had just occurred.

“A sentry on duty at the main gate
saw a young man crawling along the
road toward him on his hands and
knees, apparently seriously injured,”
the officer said. “He ran to help the
man and found that he had been
stabbed several times in the chest and
back and was critically wounded. We
called an ambulance at once. While we
were waiting for it to arrive, he tried to
talk to us. He muttered something
about two men in a white sports car
who he said had attacked him.”

The officer said that the young man
had been rushed to the Hospital Uni-
versitario at San Juan for emergency
surgery. Lieutenant Castro telephoned
the hospital at once and learned that
the surgery to close his wounds had just
been completed and that the patient
would no doubt survive. He was still
under an anesthetic, however, and
would be in no condition to be ques-
tioned until the following day.

In a lucid moment the patient had
identified himself as Victor Acevedo
Rivera, 18 years old, of Dorado.

Dorado was where the two men in a
white Thunderbird had stolen 14 gal-
lons of gasoline. Lieutenant Castro
waited impatiently until Friday morn-
ing, when at last a call came from the
hospital that Acevedo Rivera had re-
gained consciousness and might be
questioned.

The young man was sitting propped
up in bed, his chest swathed in band-
ages, when Castro arrived. He man-
aged a weak smile as he began his ac-
count of what had happened.

“I had been spending the day in San
Juan and I was waiting for a bus to
take me back to Dorado,” he said. “A
big white sports car came along and
stopped beside me, and I recognized
the two men in it. They were from the
town of San Jose, and one of them is
called ‘El Italiano’, while the other is
known as ‘Tarzan’. | don't know their
real names. They were both drunk and
they greeted me as an old friend and
offered to drive me where I wanted
to go.

“I was glad to accept a ride,” the
youth continued. “They handed me a
bottle of rum and told me to drink all
I wanted, because they had lots more.
I drank from the bottle. and they drove
on. They blew the horn at all the pret-
ty girls. 1 was having a wonderful
time."”

Victor Acevedo Rivera said that,
when he asked them where they got
the car, they were mysterious about it.
He said Tarzan told him that El Italia-
no had just returned from New York
City and that he had learned many
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things there. One of the things he had
learned was how to use a knife.

“I already suspected that they had
stolen the car,” the youth continued.
“and when they mentioned a knife I
got frightened. 1 asked whether they
had killed somebody to get the car.
They would not answer me, so I told
them to stop the car at once and let
me out.

“We were near the Naval station, and
El Italiano stopped. But, instead of let-
ting me out. he drew a knife. He was
very drunk and he began to curse me.
He said I was a stool pigeon and was
planning to turn them in to the cops
for murder so as to get the money. He
stabbed me. again and again. 1 yelled
and managed to jump out of the car,
but he followed me and knifed me
again. Then I fell down and I guess
they both thought I was dead. They got
back in the car and drove off, and I
crawled to the Naval station.”

The youth apparently knew nothing
of the Election Day murders, but Lieu-
tenant Castro was convinced that his
assailants in the white sports car were
Charles Fisher’s slayers.

ASTRO immediately ordered all

available police to the town of San
Jose. While some of the officers went
around to the bars and cafes, attempt-
ing to learn the identity of Tarzan and
El Italiano, others searched the area
for the white 1963 Thunderbird.

The car was found near the road in
a forested area at the edge of town. It
was obvious why it had been aban-
doned. The seat, the floor, and the in-
strument panel were heavily splashed
with blood, evidently that of Victor
Acevedo Rivera.

In the back of the car the officers
found a tall stack of rock-and-roll rec-
ord albums and half a dozen unopened
bottles of rum, presumably stolen from
Charles Fisher’s apartment.

The police had little difficulty in
learning the identity of the wanted men.
“El Italiano” was the alias of a 24-
year-old neighborhood tough whose real
name was Roberto de Jesus Cabrera.
The nickname “Tarzan” belonged to
a |7-year-old delinquent named Julio
Alfredo Antas Sanabria. Both youths
had local police records for petty crimes
and acts of violence.

Detectives immediately staked out
their homes. El Italiano was captured
just before dark on Saturday, Novem-
ber 7, 1964, while Tarzan*'was taken
into custody on Sunday morning.

Both men were driven to San Juan,
where reports of their arrest had pre-
ceded them. There they posed for news
photographers, smiling cheerfully. Both
seemed delighted at the publicity they
were receiving.

Even as they faced the questioning
of Lieutenant Castro and a battery of
detectives, they seemed to have no con-

ception of the seriousness of their
plight. According to the police, both
youths made full statements in which
they admitted the murders of Charles
Fisher and Miguel Angel Sanchez.

Police later released the following
account of the murders, based on their
alleged statements:

The two youths met Miguel Angel
Sanchez, whom they knew slightly, in
San Juan on Election Day, and he men-
tioned that he would be working at
Fisher's party that evening. They de-
cided to crash the party. They were
well dressed, and Fisher apparently
thought they were somebody's friends
and was cordial to them.

When they had had several drinks,
they decided to rob their host. After
sizing up the apartment, they went and
hid in the walk-in closet, where they
waited patiently until the sounds of the
party died down. At last they heard
Fisher go into the bathroom, take a
shower, then enter the bedroom. Be-
lieving him to be alone in the apart-
ment, they sprang out at him, threat-
ening him with a knife.

He attempted to seize the knife, but
in the ensuing struggle they overpow-
ered him and knocked him unconscious.
Then they bound and gagged him and
tied him to the bed. His wallet con-
tained only $ i1, which they stole. Then
they found his car keys. Angered at
the small amount of money, they de-
cided to steal his car and his phono-
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graph records, since both were fond
of rock-and-roll.

Then they heard sounds from an-

other room and realized they were not

alone with Fisher. Miguel Angel San-
chez had been told by Fisher to go to
bed and clean up the house in the
morning, and he had already retired to
a small bedroom.

The houseboy had heard Fisher's
cries, and the two young toughs found
him huddled in bed in terror. Since he
knew them and could identify them to
the police, they took him into the bath-
room. While one of them allegedly held
his head under water in the tub until he
drowned, the other carved the Maffia
inscription on his leg in an effort to
mislead the police.

When the youth was dead, the pair
realized for the first time that Fisher,
who had had a good look at them,
might be able to identify them as the
murderers of his houseboy. So they re-
turned to the bedroom where the busi-
nessman lay, trussed up and helpless.
In spite of his pleas for mercy, they
allegedly tightened a belt around his
neck and strangled him to death.

They had a few more drinks to
bolster their courage. Then they turned
out the lights. locked the front door and
fled in the car with the phonograph rec-

ords and a reserve supply of rum.

Even after they had made their state-
ments and were informed of the charges
they faced, the youths seemed unper-
turbed. Roberto de Jesus Cabrera boast-
ed about his stay in New York. brag-
ging that he had learned to live with-
out work, to love rock-and-roll music
and to handle a knife effectively. Nei-
ther he nor Julio Alfreda Antas Sana-
bria displayed any remorse over the
deaths of their two victims, and they
posed cheerfully with the police for
more newspaper pictures.

On Monday, November 9, 1964, both
were formally arraigned before District
Judge Miguel Melandez Acosta on two
counts of first degree murder and va-
rious lesser charges. De Jesus Cabrera
was then confined to San Juan district
jail to await indictment and trial. Antas
Sanabria, a minor, was sent to the youth
wing of La Princessa jail until it is de-
termined whether he will face legal
action in a juvenile court or as an
adult.

In any case, justice is as severe in
Puerto Rico as elsewhere. And, in spite
of their cheerful grins. both men are
unlikely to be free to go on another
spree of robbery and murder in that
peaceful island for a long time to
come.

MAD RAPIST OF CROWN HEIGHTS
(Continued from page 44)

her and began to punch her.

Knocking her to the floor. he jumped
on her and grabbed her by the throat
with one hand. With the other hand he
tore at her dress. Mrs. Cartwright
fought back and managed to utter a
piercing scream. This attracted her
three-year-old daughter, who ran into
the foyer and began to scream too.

“If you don’t keep that baby quiet,
I'll kill her!” the man threatened.

The child kept on screeching and
Mrs. Cartwright knew a moment of
abject terror as the man seemed to hes-
itate, uncertain what to do.

Then he sprang to his feet, seized her
pocketbook containing the wallet, and
fled out of the door.

Mrs. Cartwright staggered to the
apartment of a neighbor. “Call the po-
lice,” she gasped. Then she collapsed
from shock.

The neighbor summoned an ambu-
lance, and the victim was taken to Long
Island College Hospital, where she was
treated for bruises. Her injuries were
found not to be serious, however, and
she was soon released.

That afternoon, Inspector Knott
showed her the police sketch of the man
who had already attacked five other
women in Crown Heights. She regarded
it carefully.

“The man who attacked me had a
mustache and he looked something like

that but not exactly.” she said. “For one
thing, his eyes were closer together.”

Mrs. Cartwright had had a good look
at her assailant, and as a result of her
description an artist drew another
sketch. There was now some doubt in
the minds of the police whether this
man was the same one responsible for
the five previous attacks. For the mo-
ment, however, they proceeded on the
assumption that he was the same man.

Fifty additional detectives were now
poured into Crown Heights as appre-
hension continued to mount. At the
same time the Maccabees called for
volunteers with cars to organize a day
patrol to supplement their night patrol.

And still the assaults on women con-
tinued. The next one occurred only five
days later, on the evening of November
9th.

The victim was Mrs. Theresa Coch-
ran, an attractive brunette widow of 38
who lived alone in a sixth-floor apart-
ment on Maple Street. At 9:30 P.M.,
Mrs. Cochran left her door open while
she took garbage to the incinerator in
her building.

A few minutes after returning, she
went into her bedroom to get some-
thing. She thought she noticed the win-
dow draperies move slightly. Then she
froze in terror as she saw a man’s legs
beneath them.

Her first thought was to run out of
the apartment. But the hidden man
sprang out and lunged after her. He
seized her around the neck from behind
with one arm. With the other hand he
held a knife before her eyes.
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“If you scream, I'll kill you,” he
muttered.

He flung the terrified woman onto a
bed, punched her almost to insensibility
and raped her. He left her sobbing with
pain. Seizing her handbag from a living
room table, he ran out of the apartment.

At last Mrs. Cochran found the
strength to scream. Neighbors came to
investigate. The victim was hurried to
King’s County Hospital, where she was
treated for shock and bruises.

HIS latest assault raised the tempers

of the people of Crown Heights
to the boiling point. In response to
calls from scores of outraged citizens, a
virtual state of siege was declared.
About 150 additional police officers
were sent in from nearby districts to
provide an almost constant watch on
every street.

Other police made the rounds of
bars, poolrooms and other hangouts in
the Bedford-Stuyvesant district, search-
ing for possible suspects. In the next
few davs several hundred men in the
area were questioned, while a city-wide
check was made of men with past rec-
ords of criminal assault.

The police also established a special
phone number, SL 6-3219, for use by
persons believing they had information
of value in the investigation.

Meanwhile a mass meeting was called
by nearby residents in the lobby of an
apartment house on Crown Street. More
than 100 persons gathered under a huge
sign that read: “Our lives are at stake!
Protect yourself and act!”

As plans were put into operation for
extending the scope of the citizens’
patrol, two car rental agencies donated
the use of six new vehicles for this
project.

During the next few days, the police
received calls at the special number
from scores of citizens who offered tips
as to the identity of the rapist. All of
these were followed up but none pro-
duced any result.

In Manhattan, two women got off an
IRT subway train at the 34th Street
station and told a police officer that a
passenger on board looked like the
sketch of the Brooklyn rapist. The of-
ficer telephoned ahead to the Times
Square station. There the train was
halted and searched, and the man was
taken to the West 47th Street police
station for questioning. He proved to
be an innocent citizen on his way to
work and was understandably indig-
nant.

On Saturday, November 14th, how-
ever, the all-out police work seemed to
have paid off at last. Two patrolmen
working in the Bedford-Stuyvesant area
came upon a Negro in a barroom who
bore an almost exact resemblance to the
man pictured in the second police
sketch—the one drawn from the de-
scription furnished by Mrs. Janice Cart-
wright.

When taken to the Grand Avenue
station house, the suspect identified
himself as a 29-year-old unemployed
car washer.

A police tar picked up Mrs. Cart-
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wright and drove her to the police sta-
tion. There the suspect was put into a
lineup with other men of similar age
and appearance and she was asked
whether her assailant was among them.

She pointed to the suspect at once.
“He’s the man,” she said.

The police had already talked with
two other women in Mrs. Cartwright’s
building who said they had seen a man
in the corridor on the morning of the
assault. When these women were
brought in, they also picked out the
car washer as the man they had seen.

Deputy Chief Inspector Joseph J.
McLaughlin, who was handling this
phase of the investigation, questioned
the car washer intensively, but he de-
nied knowledge of the robbery and at-
tempted rape. Still Inspector McLaugh-
lin and the other officers believed that
at last they had the Crown Heights
rapist in custody.

The six other assault victims were
now brought to the station and asked
to point to the man who attacked them.

To the bitter disappointment of the
police, not one of them picked out the
29-year-old suspect. Later, after hearing
him speak, each of them said that he
was not the man.

Still the police were satisfied with the
identification of the car washer in the
Cartwright attack. He was charged with
attempted rape and burglary in that
case and held in $25,000 bail for further
legal action.

Inspector Knott pointed out that
there had been some doubt in his mind
at the time as to whether Mrs. Cart-
wright’s attacker was the rapist wanted
in the previous assaults.

And so the month of November wore
on with one assault case solved but six
more, including the recent attack on
Mrs. Theresa Cochran, still wide open.
During the next few weeks, however,
there was a lull in the attacks and the
police wondered whether the rapist had
been frightened into inactivity or had
perhaps even left town.

The respite continued into the early
days of December. Then on the after-
noon of December 11th, 1964, it ended
in more violence.

At about 12:40 p.M. a call came in
onthe special telephone number from a
woman who said she was a tenant of
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a large apartment building on Maple
Street.

“There's a man out in the corridor
and he’s trying all the doors,” she re-
ported. “He has a little mustache and
he looks like the police sketch.*

Inspector Albert A. Seedman, who
took the call, came instantly alert upon
learning the caller’s address. It was di-
rectly across the street from the building
where Mrs. Theresa Cochran, the bru-
pette widow, bad been raped on the
evening of November 9th. The inspector
ordered two radio cars dispatched to
Maple Street at once.

The cars drew up in less than a min-
ute before the building from which the
informant had telephoned, and the four
officers quickly mapped a plan of ac-
tion. While Patrolman Lester Frank re-
mained in the lobby, Patrolman Michael
Klein went to the fire escape at the
rear of the building.

Meanwhile Patrolmen Harold Ka-
mien and Dominick Sansotti rode to the
top floor in the elevator. There they
split up and each came down one of the
building’s two stairways, checking each
floor on the way.

While they were descending from
floor to floor, a man who had appar-
ently heard them, came racing down
the stairs and started across the lobby.
He saw Patrolman Frank, turned and
started up again.

The patrolman sprang after him
and collared him halfway up the first

60

flight. He was a Negro in his twenties
who was neatly dressed in a gray sport
coat, white shirt and dark trousers. He
offered no resistance.

“What were you doing in this build-
ing?” Patrolman Frank asked.

“l was on my way down from the
roof,” the suspect replied vaguely. “I
wasn't doing anything wrong.”

But when he was shown to the tenant
who had called the police, she said that
he was the man she had seen trying the
doorknobs.

The suspect was driven to the Empire
Boulevard police station and taken be-
fore Inspector Seedman. He identified
himself as John Edward Patterson, 25
years old, and said he lived on St.
John’s Place and worked at Caledonian
Hospital, both in Crown Heights.

Identification in his wallet verified
these statements. In a jacket pocket,
however, the officers found a large col-
lection of small change-—quarters,
dimes, nickels and pennies.

Inspector Seedman noticed a strik-
ing resemblance between the suspect
and the first sketch of the rapist, which
had been drawn from descriptions furn-
ished by Shirley Green and four of the
assault victims. The chief difference
was that in addition to the mustache,
Patterson had a small goatee. But he
might have grown this recently.

T THE moment there was nothing
definite against the man except the

tenant’s statement that he had been
trying doorknobs. Still Inspector Seed-
man conferred with Chief of Detec-
tives Philip J. Walsh and it was decided
to bring all six of the assault victims
to the station house and see whether
they could identify him.

But before this could be done, In-
spector Seedman had another telephone
call from a highly excited young man.
He was calling from the building on
Maple Street.

“My wife just telephoned me and 1
rushed home,” he gasped. “A prowler
trailed her from the grocery store. He
followed her into our apartment and
raped her!”

Inspector Seedman and other officers
hurried over to the apartment, where
they found the young woman, 21-year-
old Dorothy Springer, under the care
of her family physician. He said that
she was four months pregnant.

Mrs. Springer had bruises on her
face and neck and was suffering from
shock. When given a mild sedative,
however, she was able to tell a coherent
story of her experience.

“When I got to my apartment, that
man was right behind me,” she said
in a halting voice. “He followed me in
and started choking me. He said, ‘Don’t
scream or I'll strangle you good!

“He pulled me into the bedroom,
kept one hand on my mouth and as-
saulted me. He kept saying, ‘If you tell,
I will kill you’

“When he was through with me, he
tied me up with my husband’s neck-
ties. Then he looked around for money,
but I had very little in my purse. So he
broke open a piggy bank and scooped
the change into his jacket pocket.”

Mrs. Springer said that after he left
she finally freed herself from her bonds.
Her first thought was to telephone her
husband, who worked nearby. He rush-
ed home and immediately called the
police.

But John Patterson was already in
custody as a result of the phone call
from the other tenant of the building.

Inspector Seedman recalled that a
large amount of loose change had been
found in the suspect’s pocket. Evidently
it was from Mrs. Springer’s piggy bank.

When she had recovered somewhat
from her terrible experience, Dorothy
Springer was taken to the Empire Boul-
evard station. There she identified a
door key and several other small articles
from Patterson’s pockets as having
been stolen from her apartment.

District Attorney Aaron E. Koota
had arrived at the station house, and a
lineup was prepared. Ten Negro detec-
tives, all of whom had mustaches and
resembled the suspect, were asked to
take part in the lineup with John Pat-
terson.

Mrs. Springer picked out Patterson
at %gce as the man who had raped her.

e six other victims of the Crown
Heights rapist, who had been brought
to the station, were then asked to pick
out their assailant. Detectives reported
that three more of them were able to
identify Patterson as the man.

Assistant Chief Inspector Knott told
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news reporters later that evening that
the police had “positive evidence” link-
ing Patterson with all seven of the
rapes.

“Patterson is the Crown Heights
rapist,”” Inspector Seedman said flatly.

After a conference between police
and the district attorney, it was decided
that the evidence against Patterson was
strongest in the December 11th rape of
the pregnant 2l-year-old wife and in
the September 29th assault on the 58-
year-old housewife who lived on Wash-
ington Avenue.

Accordingly, John Edward Patterson
was brought before Judge Thomas E.
Rohan on December 12th, 1964, and
charged with two separate counts of
felonious assault, robbery and rape. He
has denied all of the charges and re-
fused to make any statement.

Assistant District Attorney Edward
A. Panzarella asked that the exception-
ally high bail of $100.000 be set for
Patterson, and the judge granted it.
Patterson was then confined to jail to
await legal developments.

Checking further on the rapist sus-
pect, the police learned that he was
married and the father of two children.

He had been employed in July as a
porter at Caledonian Hospital and had
recently been promoted to morgue-
keeper, a job paying $1.60 an hour.
Hospital sources said they had been
well satisfied with his work.

It was found that Patterson had been
slipping in and out of the turnstile of
Justice ever since he was 13 years old.
In 1952, at the age of 16, he was
charged with petty larceny for purse
snatching and sent to the reformatory.

Then at the age of 25, he was
charged with rape, robbery and burg-
lary. He pleaded guilty to second degree
attempted assault and robbery and was
sentenced to the penitentiary. He was
released on parole in 1963 and had been
at liberty ever since.

The high bail set by Judge Rohan
has assured, however, that Patterson
will not soon be free again to roam
the streets—and once more the resi-
dents of Crown Heights can breathe
just a little bit easier.

Editor's note: The names Shirley
Green, Janice Cartwright, Theresa
Cochran and Dorothy Springer are fic-
titious.

KILLERS OF THE FARMER'S WIFE

(Continued from page 37)

Roy Lee Fox, young Arrlie’s brother,
Donald Fox, a cousin and Carson Mc-
Mahon, a 19-year-old friend of the
Foxes.

The three fresh suspects were ques-
tioned for several hours. Then, at mid-
night, Sheriff Clay called the Buncombe
County coroner, Dr. John C. Young,
and asked that the doctor convene a
jury for a coroner’s inquest to be held
at 9 o'clock on the following morning.

Just prior to the inquest, the sheriff
announced that he now had written
statements from each of the four sus-
pects. All agreed in each detail. Their
story. according to the sheriff. was as
follows:

On the previous Monday, Arrlie Fox,
while loading hay at the Lunsford farm,
had observed that the dairy farmer’s
customers were paying him in cash.
Arrlie reported this to his brother. his
cousin, and Carson McMahon on the
following day. Then the conspirators
made their plans.

At about 11 o'clock on Tuesday
night. the four had climbed into Roy
Lee Fox's pickup truck and set out
for Upper Hominy. Pisgah Road was
deserted when they turned in toward
the Lunsford place. The truck slowed
down and Arrlie and Donald Fox jump-
ed down to the road. The truck moved
on and waited for the two men about
a half mile down the road.

Arrlie and Donald donned their Hal-
loween masks. Arrlie entered the house
by the front door as Donald went
around to the rear. Arrlie was the first
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inside the house. It was he with whom
Charles Lunsford grappled.

Lunsford had Arrlie down on the
floor when Donald Fox charged in and
struck the farmer on the skull with his
pistol.

Donald Fox was still beating Luns-
ford when Mrs. Lunsford, wearing only
her nightgown. rushed down the stairs
and made for the closet where the rifle
was kept.

But, when Ovella Lunsford grasped
the gun, she apparently froze. She stood
there uncertainly. Donald Fox closed
in on her and seized the rifle barrel.
Arrlie grabbed the stock. Together they
wrenched the weapon from her.

Then Donald fired his pistol. Mrs.
Lunsford cried out to her husband,
“I'm shot! I think I'm dying!” Blood
gushed from her mouth.

At that point Arrlie aand Donald
panicked. They fled toward the back
door, stopping only long enough to
tear the telephone from the wall.

Outside they saw Lunsford's parked
car. Using a knife, Arrlie let the air
out of one of the front tires. Then the
pair of killers ran down the road to the
spot where Roy Lee Fox and Carson
McMahon waited for them in the pick-
up truck.

They were properly concerned with
the fate of Mrs. [unsford as they
headed home. Donald remarked that he
thought he had shot her in the arm.
Arrlie took a graver view.

“She was bleeding at the mouth,” he
said. "I think she’s badly hurt.”

On the following morning, when
they had heard the news of Ovella
Lunsford’s death on the radio, the con-
spirators were seriously worried. They
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had planned only on robbery, not mur-
der.

Moreover, the plot had failed com-
pletely. All the time they had been in
the farmhouse they had been fighting
with Lunsford. They never even got
around to getting his wallet.

“So,” said Sheriff Clay, “we have
four confessions. From reading them
it seems clear that Donald Fox actually
pulled the trigger of the gun which
killed her. But. of course, under the
law they are all equally guilty.”

The sheriff went on to say that, in
addition to the murder confessions, the
quartet had admitted the Bryson Bus
Lines holdup.

When Roy Lee Fox worked for the
bus company, he had observed that,
on many occasions, Robert Bryson
worked late and, upon going home, took
the evening’s receipts along with him.
That was the genesis of the plot to rob
Bryson.

It had also been one of the gang

who had held up Carson's grocery store
in Weaverville. He had donned a Hal-
loween mask and entered the store car-
rying a gun, while his three companions
waited outside for him.

Moreover, the four young hoodlums
also admitted the beating and robbery
of a Pensacola man in nearby Yancey
County. All four had participated in
this outrage.

The victim. a businessman in his mid-
dle fifties. had been dragged from his
car, gratuitously beaten, and robbed of
his wallet, his money and his credit
cards.

As the thugs jumped into their own
car and sped away, a witness had ob-
served that the getaway truck bore
Buncombe County license plates: how-
ever, he had been unable to memorize
the numbers.

Sheriff Clay announced that some
twenty of his aides had worked steadily
since the time of the murder report.
Many of them had slept for less than

six hours; they had lived on hamburgers,
black coffee and glasses of milk.

The sheriff also stated that congratu-
lations were in order to the North
Carolina State Bureau of Investigation
at Raleigh. There, both the ballistics
department and the chemistry section
had put in a great many overtime hours
on the case. They had kept in constant
telephonic touch with the Buncombe
County authorities.

Sherifl Clay, several of his deputies.
and dairy farmer Lunsford testified at
the coroner's inquest.

After hearing the evidence presented,
the coroner’'s jury reached the unani-
mous verdict that the four defendants
should be held without bond on a
charge of first degree murder. to await
action by the Buncombe County grand
jury.

Sheriff Clay kept the robbery charges
in abeyance. There will be time enough
to press them after the quartet has faced
the homicide indictment. *

ADULTERERS AND DOUBLE-CROSS

(Continued from page 13)

in their early thirties, both had round
faces, both appeared to be of ltalian
ancestry. They looked very 'much like
men who could handle themselves in
the most difficult situation. They asked
for Robert Pitz.

The bartender-bouncer was called.
He approached the strangers and said,
“Yeah? I'm Pitz.”

The bigger of the two men extended
his hand. “Hi,” he said. “I'm Sam. My
friend here is Mike."”

Pitz shook each hand heartily and
led his guests to an isolated table at the
rear of the room. He ordered beers
all around.

“*Now,” said Sam, “what seems to be
your trouble?”

~I got a friend,” said Pitz. “A female
friend who's having some trouble with
her husband.”

“What kind of trouble?” asked Mike.

“This huband won’t give her a di-
vorce and he's driving her crazy. If
someone would knock him off, she’d get
the insurance money, house, automobile
and other items of value. The whole
deal would amount to about $50.000.”

“How much are you offering us to
get rid of him?” asked Sam.

“Well.” said Pitz. “I guess my friend
is willing to pay from $750 to $1.000.”

Sam and Mike exchanged glances and
faughed in unison: the laughter con-
tained no mirth.

Mike said, “Our standard price for
a job like this is two grand.”

Pitz demurred. He was very frugal
with Paul Johnt's insurance money.
However, eventually, a compromise was
reached. Mike and Sam agreed to han-
dle the job for $1,500, plus $200 as a
“tip!” Pitz was prepared to make a
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deposit of $75 right now and to deliver
another 3100 prior to the killing. The
remainder of the cash would be paid
after Johnt's insurance had been col-
lected.

Pitz took $75 from his wallet and
handed it over to Mike. Then a second
appointment was set up for the follow-
ing Friday, December 4th. Everything
would be set up early that night and
Paul Johnt would be liguidated just
before midnight when he set out for
the bowling alleys.

T 7 P.M. ON Friday, Mike and

Sam met Pitz and Peggy Jo Johnt
outside Rusty’s place. They all got into
Pitz’s car. Pitz drove some distance
down Bailey Avenue and turned into
an empty, darkened parking lot which
was used only during the day to park
the cars of business people.

Peggy Jo, it appeared, must have
been an extremely efficient secretary.
Certainly, she was a most efficacious
conspirator. First, she produced two
pictures of her husband which she gave
to Sam and Mike.

There was no sense in killing the
wrong man. That would be only a waste
of time and money. To clinch matters,
Peggy Jo told Sam and Mike that when
they picked up Johnt later that night,
he would be wearing a red hunting
jacket and a pair of new, black slacks.

In addition to this. Peggy Jo, a girl
with an addiction to detail, had written
notes on the time of her husband's de-
parture from his home, the route he
would take, and the make, color and
license number if his car.

At this point. Pitz handed the hired
assassins another $100 on account. Now
it was all over but the killing. Paul Johnt
would leave his house at 11:30 that
night and head for the Milsher Bowling
Lanes on Military Road in the town of
Tonawanda. Somewhere along the way

he would be intercepted by Sam and
Mike.

Robert Pitz then went to his job at
Rusty's. Peggy Jo went home. Sam and
Mike prepared to kill a few hours be-
fore they went to work.

Paul Johnt, a man who was rarely
suspicious of anything, did not think
it odd that night when his wife requested
that he wear his red hunting jacket to
the bowling alleys because it was sure
to turn cold.” Or that she suggested
he don his new, black slacks because
“they look so nice.” A dutiful husband,
he did as he was told.

Johnt left the house on schedule, car-
rying $21 in his pocket. However, Peggy
Jo was prepared to tell the police when
they arrived that Johnt had well over
$100 with him. The motive for the
murder was to be robbery, at least as
far as the law was concerned.

At exactly 11:45. Paul Johnt was
intercepted by Mike and Sam as he
reached the Seneca Street entrance to
the throughway.

At 12:30, the telephone rang in the
Johnt house. Peggy Jo answered.

A voice said guardedly, “This is Sam.
He's been killed. Be prepared for an
intensive investigation by the police.
Act convincingly.”

“This better work.” said Peggy Jo.
“I've had a funny feeling all night that
it was going to be a dud.”

“Don’t worry.” said Sam. “He’s dead.
We expect the rest of the money in
about six weeks.”

“How did he die? Where did you
kill him? Where is the body?”

“You'll find all that out when the
cops get there,” said Sam. “It's not
smart to discuss these things on the
phone.”

Peggy Jo delivered herself of a heart-
felt sigh. “Great,” she said. “I can
finally start living again. 1 feel twelve
years younger.”
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At 2 o'clock on Saturday morning,
the bell rang in the Johnt house on Hop-
kins Street. Peggy Jo opened the door
to find a man and a woman on the
threshold. They identified themselves
as Detective Sergeant M. Ervolina and
Policewoman Margaret Barba.

“Your husband.” said the sergeant,
“has had a little unfortunate accident
but there's nothing to worry about.”

Peggy Jo burst into tears. “What’s
happened?” she cried. “My dear hus-
band—something must have happened
to him!"

Policewoman Barba put her arm
around Peggy Jo, spoke consolingly and
asked the presumed widow to please
accompany Ervolina and herself to
headquarters. Mrs. Johnt made the trip,

drenching two handkerchiefs with tears
" on the way.

HERE, Sergeant Ervolina said,
“Mrs. Johnt, your husband is dead.

He was shot in the head.”
Peggy Jo uttered a banshee’s wail.

“Oh."” she said, “I loved him very dear-
ly. In fact, I think I'm going to have
his baby."

This. as it happened, was a lie—an
excusable one: a sudden widow is, of
course, overwrought.

Ervolina asked Peggy Jo if she
thought the motive may have been
robbery. She nodded her pretty, calcu-
lating head. “Probably. I know he had
money on him—more than $100.”

Now Peggy Jo seemed to verge on
hysteria. She wept copiously; again and
again she murmured the name of her
husband: Then, while the bereaved
woman cried pitifully, two men walked
into the room. Peggy Jo looked at them,
blinked and looked as bewildered as a
3-year-old who has just been told that
Santa Claus is a lie. For standing before
her were Mike and Sam.

After a stunned moment, Peggy Jo
said. “What are you guys doing here?”

“We belong here,” said Mike. “I'm
Assistant Chief Detective Michael Ami-
co and Sam, here, is Detective Sergeant
Samuel Giambrone.”

"Your husband is alive,” said Ser-
geant Giambrone. “This whole deal,
arranged by you and your boy friend,
has been a hoax.”

“That's right,” said Assistant Chief
Amico. “Your husband was never in
any danger. The ‘professional killers’
that you and Pitz hired were police
officers.”

Peggy Jo achieved a remarkable re-
covery. “I'm glad it happened this way.”
she said with a show of heartfelt relief.
“I'm so glad. I want to see my husband.”

But she was not permitted to see her
husband at that particular moment al-
though he too was being held, tempor-
arily, in the police station.

Assistant Detective Chief Amico
made the explanation. It seemed that
when Moley had set out to pass the
word that an assassin or two were need-
ed for a murder job, a police informant
had notified the assistant chief detective.
Amico had then arranged that he and
Sergeant Giambrone be introduced to
Moley who, in turn. recommended them
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to his pal, Robert Pitz, the bartender.

Under questioning, Peggy Jo admit-
ted that, after she had received the
phoney telephone call from Sam ap-
prising her of the death of Paul Johnt,
she had called Pitz at Rusty’s and told
him that their plan had been success-
fully carried out.

“Well."” said Sergeant Ervolina, “I
guess, Mrs. Johnt, that Robert Pitz will
be at least as surprised as you are when
Mike and Sam call on him.”

It was 3 o’clock on Saturday morn-
ing. December 5th, when Chief Amico
and Sergeant Giambrone entered .Rus-
ty's place. Robert Pitz was behind the
bar but, when he saw his pals come
in, he threw his apron on the bar and
went forward to greet them.

He smiled and extended his hand.
So did Sergeant Giambrone. But. as they
shook hands, something cold and far
more impersonal than a handshake
touched Pitz’s wrist and he heard a
faint, odd, clicking sound. All of a
sudden, Robert Pitz was wearing hand-
cuffs.

“We are police officers,”
geant Giambrone.
rather obvious.”

Robert Pitz took the situation well
but without the brazenness of his ac-
complice.

“You really had me fooled,” he said.
“l assume that Paul Johnt wasn't killed.”
“You're quite right,” said Amico.

Pitz was escorted back to police head-
quarters and, like Peggy Jo, put into
a cell—not, of course, the same cell.

Now, if Pitz and Peggy Jo had been
totally surprised at this turn of events,
Paul Johnt was absolutely stunned. In-
formed of the entire plot, he reacted
with utter disbelief.

“Everything about it all is unbeliev-
able,” he said. *‘I just can't believe this
could happen. I'll do anything I can to
help my wife.”

Johnt spent six hours talking to the
police. and when he was taken home
he said, “I've told them everything
I could. This thing hurts more than I
can say.”

He told the police that he and Peggy
Jo had attended grammar and high
schools together, that both were life-
long residents of South Buffalo. They
had been married four years ago when
she was |18 and he was 2I.

Johnt also said that he had no money.
He did not own his house or any other
real property.

“My life insurance policies,” he said,
“amount to something between $9,000
and $10,000. Neither of them were
recently issued and I don't think that
the double indemnity clause applies if
I had died in a holdup that way, so
I'm only worth about so much.

“Mrs. Johnt,” he went on, ‘‘appeared
to be in shock when she was questioned
by the police. I don’t think she realizes
what she has been trying to do. I just
don’t know what to say. I don’t want
to talk about it any more. Maybe it’s
all a bad dream.”

said Ser-
“But I guess that's

ELL, IN A way, it was nothing
more than that. But, if Moley
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had truly found a pair of professional
killers instead of Sam and Mike of
Buffalo’s police department, it would
have been something more than a bad
dream. Paul E. Johnt might have been
an extremely final corpse.

On Saturday morning, December 5,
1964, Peggy Jo Johnt and Robert C.
Pitz of Schuele Avenue, Buffalo, were
taken into City Court before Judge
Arthur J. Cosgrave and charged with
conspiracy to murder Paul E. Johnt.

Judge Cosgrave set bail for each de-
fendant at $5,000 cash or $10.000 in
property deeds. Neither of the sus-
pects was able, immediately. to produce
the bond. Both were taken to the Erie
County jail and held for later arraign-
ment.

Assistant Detective Chief Amico an-
nounced that he was shocked by the

_callous and cold manner of the young
housewife and her boy friend.

“Although,” said Amico, ‘“‘we are
hardened through experience to meet

any conditions, we felt somewhat fright-
ened when we realized that we were
dealing with two individuals who show-
ed no fear or remorse.”

Amico went on to say, that under
New York law, the crime with which
Peggy Jo and Pitz are charged is a
felony but that the punishment is not
fixed in the state penal law. Apparently,
he added, punishment is left to the dis-
cretion of the court.

Later, on that same day, Paul Johnt
spoke to some newspaper reporters.

“No doubt,” he said, “my wife needs
psychiatric treatment. I'm ashamed to
admit it but I still love her. It is difficult
to believe that this could happen. 1
never knew nor had reason to believe
that my wife had a boy friend.”

He went on to say that Peggy Jo
had only been 18 at the time of her
marriage, but he didn’t explain why
this not particularly unusual fact in
our culture should have started her
thinking of homicide.

“We had our domestic squabbles,”
said Paul Johnt, *“and. while she had
quite a temper. she quickly got over
it. She apparently didn’t realize what
she was doing. I feel that she needs
medical help and I hope that the author-
ities see that she gets such help.

“I don't have any plans for the future,
All I can say is that. if the police let
her go, I would gladly take her back,
provided she got medical help.”

Asked about Robert Pitz, Johnt said
that he had never heard of the bouncer-
bartender. Shown a photograph of Pitz
at police headquarters, Paul Johnt shook
his head and said, “I never saw that
man before.”

Well, the plot has failed. No one has
been murdered and Paul Johnt seems
strongly inclined to forgive every one
involved.

No one has asked Johnt’s insurance
company for its opinion. Which is just
as well. This is the sort of plot which
nettles insurance executives.

SLAYING OF BLONDE ON HORSEBACK

(Continued from page 19)

tall. He said the man had sunken cheeks
and a prominent ridge on his nose.

“He was wearing a waist-length red
jacket and a red-brimmed plastic hat
with ear flaps, and I noticed that he had
on black pointed shoes,” the Harden
boy went on.

Winchester was impressed with the
care with which the youth had observed
the stranger and asked whether he could
identify him if he saw him again.

Dwain Harden nodded. “Yes, I'm sure
I could.”

“Well, you’d better come with me,”
the sergeant said. “Perhaps you’ll be
able to help us find this man.”

The youth was taken to the state
police office in Eugene. There he re-
peated the description to Sheriff Mar-
lowe and District Attorney William
Frye. Then a police artist was sent for,
and for the next several hours Harden
sat with him as he drew a sketch of
the suspect under the boy’s instructions.

Later that afternoon, a local resident
reported to the police that while driv-
ing on the back road near the scene of
the murder he had noticed a small
truck parked by the roadside. He de-
scribed it as a late-model red-and-white
Ford pickup with an aluminum cab-
high canopy. He said it was equipped
with a “brush-bar”—a device used to
knock down brush in front of the ve-
hicle.

The police believed that the pickup
truck might have belonged to the hunter
and that he had driven to the region
from elsewhere. The following morn-
ing, Eugene newspapers carried a full
description of the truck and man, to-
gether with a reproduction of the sketch
drawn by the police officer. The authori-
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ties urged citizens having information
about either the man or the truck to
contact the state police in Eugene im-
mediately.

Y LATE Thursday. the police had

received 45 telephone calls from
persons throughout western Oregon who
believed they could identify either the
hunter or the pickup truck. The state
and county authorities called for help
from the police departments of Eugene
and Springfield, and each of these tele-
phone calls was followed up by per-
sonal investigation.

A few tentative suspects were ob-
tained from this operation—men of
doubtful background who could not
give a clear account of their activities
during the late afternoon of Monday,
November 2nd. But after further investi-
gation all of these men were cleared.
It was learned later that the pickup
truck was the property of a respectable
citizen who had parked it during a brief
excursion he had made into the bushes
by the road.

While police still sought the mysteri-
ous hunter in the red jacket described
by 15-year-old Dwain Harden, a tele-
type message was received at the state
police office in Eugene. It was immedi-
ately called to the attention of Corporal
Winchester, who had been named as
the coordinating officer in the investi-
gation. The message, relayed from Port-
land, concerned a native of that city,
John M. Stelle, 24 years old, who had
just been picked up by the police of
Eureka, California.

Stelle was wanted by the Portland
police for armed robbery. He had fled
to Eureka, where he had continued his
criminal career. He had just been appre-
handed by Humboldt County authorities
and booked on charges of burglary, as-
sault with a deadly weapon, and rape.

Stelle had allegedly raped two

housewifes in suburban Eureka, one
21 years old and the other 24. Both
had had to be treated at Eureka General
Hospital. The husband of the second
woman had returned home just as Stelle
was fleeing in his car. He had notified
the police. who acted promptly and
captured Stelle.

There was reason to believe that this
alleged sex criminal might have driven
to California from Portland by way of
Eugene. Corporal Winchester immedi-
ately telephoned the police of Eureka
and gave them the details of the Orla
Fipps murder, asking them to question
John M. Stelle about his whereabouts
on the afternoon of November 2nd.

While the corporal was awaiting fur-
ther word from Eureka. however, a call
came in from a local man who said he
was telephoning from a service station
along the highway south of Eugene.

“I just had a very frightening experi-
ence,” the man reported. “While I was
driving south from the city, I picked
up a hitchhiker. He was a nice-looking
chap. I thought perhaps he was a col-
lege student. But as soon as he got
in the car I realized my mistake. He
started asking me questions about my-
self—where I lived, what business I
was in—and he kept looking at me
strangely. I could see that he was sizing
me up.

“I believe he was armed and that he
was planning to rob me and steal my car
—perhaps even worse. But I didn’t
give him the chance. I turned into the
first gas station I came to. grabbed my
keys and jumped out of the car. I told
him that was as far as I was going.

“When the station attendant came
to wait on me, the hitchhiker got out
and gave me a nasty look, then started
walking away along the road. That was
only a few minutes ago. I thought may-
be he could have had something to do
with that Fipps murder. He can’t have
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gotten very far away yet.”

It was a slender lead, but Corporal
Winchester notified a radio car to pick
up the hitchhiker. Half an hour later,
the two officers stood before him, and
between them was a slender, darkhaired
young man with shifty eyes. He gave his
name as William Berry and said he was
from Seattle. Washington, but had no
fixed address there.

One of the officers produced a hunt-
ing knife in a sheath. “We found this
concealed under his armpit.”

Apparently, the motorist’s fear that
the hitchhiker might rob him had been
soundly based. Also. the knife was of
the general type which had been used
in the murder of Orla Fipps.

Winchester sent the knife at once
to the Lane County identification bur-
eau. Then he and the two officers sub-
jected Berry to intensive questioning.

The young man said he was hitch-
hiking south to a warmer climate for
the winter. He denied vigorously that
he had been anywhere near Springfield
on the afternoon of the murder, saying
that he was still “somewhere in Wash-
ington” on that date. He said that he
carried the hunting knife for protection
while hitchhiking and insisted that had
been involved in no criminal activity of
any kind.

But the police were not satisfied with
his story. Berry was booked for vag-
rancy until they could check on him
further—and until a report was received
on the knife he had been carrying.

The police were particularly inter-
ested in this report because the autopsy
had just established that the murder
weapon had apparently been a heavy-
bladed hunting knife. The autopsy phy-
sician had also confirmed that the pretty
high school junior had been raped by
her slayer.

N SATURDAY, Corporal Win-

chester had a phone call from
Eureka. The police there said they had
been able to trace John Stelle’s itinerary
south from Portland. He had arrived in
Eureka the previous Sunday and he
had told them he had spent all day
Monday at the home of relatives. The
police had checked on this statement
and found it to be accurate.

This eliminated John Stelle as a sus-
pect in the Fipps slaying. Both Sheriff
Marlowe and Corporal Winchester still
clung to the hope that the hitchhiker,
William Berry, might be connected with
the crime.

This hope faded too, however, when
the autopsy physician said that the
wounds in the girl's neck had been in-
flicted by a knife with a thinner blade
than Berry’s hunting knife. And further
questioning of Berry seemed to estab-
lish that he had told the truth about still
being in Washington on the day of the
murder. The police still believed he
had given a false name, however, and
he was held until it could be determined
whether he was wanted for any other
crimes.

And so on Monday, November Sth,
one week after the murder of the blonde
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teen-ager, the police were left without
a prime suspect in the case. In the
meantime. ironically, the people of
Oregon had expressed their opinion
that the death penalty was no longer
needed as a deterrent to murder in that
state. They had voted by a substantial
margin on Election Day to abolish capi-
tal punishment.

Governor Mark Hatfield thereupon
commuted the death sentences of three
convicted slayers in Oregon’s state peni-
tentiary to life imprisonment. Among
them was Jeannace Freeman, who
would have been the first woman to
go to the gas chamber in Oregon. She
had been convicted of murdering two
young children in 1961 because they
interfered with a homosexual relation-
ship she was carrying on with another
woman.

The brutal sex slayer of Orla Fipps
would now face a maximum penalty of
life imprisonment, but the police were
none the less determined to bring him
to justice. All efforts to locaté the hunter
in the red jacket continued to fail. how-
ever. in spite of the fact that the sketch
of him, as he had been described by
young Dwain Harden. was posted in
every police station in Oregon.

Sheriff Marlowe and Corporal Win-
chester now began a careful review of
their work on the case up to that point.
The area around the crime scene was
subjected to an even more thorough
search, and this time samples of soil
and vegetation were taken for study in
the crime laboratory, in the hope that
like specimens might later be found
on the slayer’s clothing if he was caught.

Corporal Winchester also re-examined
the statement made by Dwain Harden,
the key witness in the case. He was
again impressed by the boy’s remark-
able powers of observation. He had even
noticed that the hunter he had seen
wore “pointed black shoes.” This seemed
a rather unusual type of footwear for
a sportsman to be wearing, particularly
on a day when the ground was soft and
muddy.

Dwain Harden, who was a friend of
Orla Fipps’ younger brother, had taken
part in the search for the young girl
and in the subsequent hunt for her slay-
er. He had cooperated fully with the
police from the beginning. Still, he was
the only person who was actually known
to have been near the scene of the
murder when it occurred.

It had already been determined that

the youth had no police record in the
area, but Winchester decided to invest-
igate him a little further. He paid a
visit to Springfield Junior Academy,
where the boy was in the ninth grade.

From Dwain’s teachers, Winchester
learned that the Harden family had lived
in the Cedar Flats community, near
Springfield, for only about a year. Dwain
Harden was said to be “a very coop-
erative boy and very nice to his fellow
students and faculty members.” How-
ever, although he had always made
good grades in physical education, it
was reported that he was inattentive in
his classroom work and that his grades
as a whole were below average.

Not everyone does as well, but T. N. CODY,
who started a business of his own, reports
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Harden had not been in school since
Monday, November 9th, when his
mother called up to report that he had
the fu.

ONE OF this information seemed

to have much bearing on the in-
vestigation. Still, on November 16th,
Winchester decided to pay another visit
to Dwain Harden.

Finding the youth still at home but
apparently recovered from his illness,
he asked him to go over his activities
on Monday, November 2nd, step by
step. This Harden did, and his account
varied little from his previous state-
ment.

“How well did you know Orla Fipps?”
Winchester asked.

“1 didn't know her well at all,” he
said, “but I knew her brother and I'd
been over to their house for dinner a
few times.”

*“And was Orla there then?” the cor-
poral asked.

“Yes.”

“Didn't it occur to you that she was
a very attractive girl?”

“Yes, I always thought she was very
pretty.”

*Did you know that she went horse-
back riding every afternoon after
school?”

The youth hesitated, and to Winches-
ter’s surprise he said he would not
answer that question without speaking
to his lawyer.

“Your lawyer?” the corporal echoed.
“How does it happen that you have a
lawyer?”

“Well, my parents hired him for me
the day after Orla died,” he replied.
“And he advised me not to say any-
thing more than what I'd already told
the police.”

This seemed a very unusual procedure
on the part of the youth's parents, since
young Harden had not been under any
real suspicion in the case.

Winchester broke off the questioning
and returned to Eugene, where he talked
with Sheriff Marlowe and District At-
torney Frye. It seemed possible to all
of them that Dwain Harden’s manner
or the condition of his clothing when
he returned home that Monday after-
noon had caused his parents to believe
that he knew more about the girl's
death than he pretended.

It was also possible that the mysteri-
ous hunter whose picture had been
widely circulated by the police was a
figment of the youth's imagination.

As a result of the police conference,
a cloak of secrecy was drawn around the
investigation at this point. The follow-
ing day a search warrant was issued and
Corporal Winchester returned to the
Harden home with Deputy Sheriff Phil-
lip Esminger. The two men spent sev-
eral hours making a thorough search
of the premises.

The nature of their findings was not
disclosed. However, they drove at once
to the Portland crime laboratory where
the samples of soil and shrubbery from
the crime scene had previously been
taken.

At 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday after-
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Police in Hamburg, West Germany, are using “agua cars” to pursue fugitives
on land and water without waiting for help from conventional police boats.

noon, November 18th, Corporal Win-
chester and Deputy Esminger returned
to Dwain Harden's home and placed
him under arrest. Taken to the police
station, he was booked on a charge of
murder during the commission of rape.

When questioned again, Harden de-
clined to make any further statements
“on the advice of his lawyer.” Since
the youth was only 15 years old and
would not be 16 until December 20th,
he was still a juvenile and had to be
treated as one. He was therefore taken
to Skipworth Juvenile Home in Eugene
for detention.

The following day, District Attorney
Frye announced that Dwain Lee Hard-
en’s arrest for murder had been “on the
basis of findings by the University of
Oregon Medical Schoo! crime labora-
tory at Portland.” He declined to re-
veal the nature of the findings. He said,
however, that Harden had denied the
charges against him.

During the days that followed, the
police returned to Harden’s home for
a more exhaustive search. They con-
tinued to gather evidence, and finally on
Monday, November 30, 1964, District

Attorney Frye brought the case before
the Lane County Grand Jury. They
promptly indicted Harden on a charge
of first degree murder.

At this point the case was automatic-
ally rcmanded to the Juvenile Court by
Judge Edwin Allen. since Oregon law
does not permit persons under |6 years
old to be prosecuted in an adult court.

District Attorney Frye is determined,
however, to see Dwain Harden tried as
an adult for the rape-murder of the
16-year-old schoolgirl.

“On the basis of the grand jury’s
indictment,” he has announced. “I will
ask the Juvenile Court to continue Hard-
en in custory until December 20, 1964,
on which date he will be 16 years old,
and then remand him to the Circuit
Court for trial.”

If he is tried as an adult and found
guilty by a jury, Dwain Harden will
face a maximum penalty of life <mpri-
sonment—as decreed at the polls by
the people of Oregon on the day after
Orla Fipps' murder.

Editor's Note: The name William Berry
is fictitious.
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In Bloomington, lllinois, Miss Maryann Ropp, restaurant employee, hands coin
dealer Fred Vollmer his coffee through a hole conveniently left by burglars.

HOODLUM EMPIRE

(Continued from page 17)

satisfy the bank. The shylock would
then approach the victim and make his
deal.

“This was the only way those pepole
could get any money,” explained the
witness. “Without the shylock they
were dead.”

“And with the shylock?”’ asked the
committee counsel.

“They were almost dead,” replied the
witness.

Now it might be thought that the only
victims of this vicious lending racket
are the gullible, the fools, and those
afRicted with expensive, compulsive
vices. But consider the case of Russell
Calise.

Russell Calise was a S56-year-old
Yonkers bookmaker and no one has
ever considered a member of that illegal
profession naive. He had gone into
business in 1946 and had made a com-
fortable living from those who firmly
believe they can predict the speed of a
horse.

Then. in 1961, Calise made what he
thought was an attempt to enter the
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upper ranks of the hoodlum class. He
wasn’'t fool enough to borrow money
from the shylocks. He lent it. But that
proved to be as big a mistake as if he'd
been a borrower.

Specifically, Calise lent $8,000 to
Nutch Birritella who handed it over to
Tommy Manzo who used it as capital in
the loan shark racket. Calise was repaid
at a rate of $60 a week until he had re-
ceived a total of $1.075. In 1962 the
payments ceased altogether.

Calise waited a year before taking
any steps to recover his cash. Then, in
1963, he approached Tommy Manzo.
He told the loan shark that he was about
to send his son to college and that he
was badly in need of cash.

Manzo ignored him so Calise en-
listed the services of James DeMasi, a
shylock from New York City.

A week later, Calise was roused from
his bed at 3 o'clock in the morning. It
was by a phone call from Manzo who
was indignant and profane. His wife,
it appeared. had been telephoned by
DeMasi and the latter had used some
vile language.

Calise was intimidated. He paid De-
Masi $500 for his trouble and called
him off the case.

Now, at this time. Calise was actually

out $6,925 on his original loan, but the
shylocks treated him as if he were the
borrower. not the lender.

One afternoon a machine gun blast
was fired into his parked car. This ac-
tion was followed by a telephone call in
which Calise was warned, “Next time
it will happen to you.”

The windows in his bookmaking
establishment were smashed and the
power lines into his home were cut.
Calise called Frank Sacco. another
hoodlum, who, according to Calise. was
Manzo’s boss. Sacco wasn’t too encour-
aging.

“Manzo owes me $12,000," Sacco
told the bookmaker. “When 1 get that,
maybe you’'ll get what's coming to you.”

But Calise still didn't get paid. How-
ever, he was called into the presence of
Sacco and Manzo and was given a note
signed by Manzo, promising to pay
Calise $4,000 over a period of two
years. This was about a 50% payment
on the original investment. Moreover,
Calise was forced to pay another $1,500
in cash before he was handed the note.
He was also given a Florida telephone
number, just “in case there was any
trouble.”

There was. One day two armed hoods
approached the bookmaker.

“We hear you're in trouble with the
shylocks,” one said. “Give us $15,000
and we’ll help you.”

Calise, frightened and thoroughly
fed up, called the Florida number he
had been given. From Miami he was
told, "Go see Joe the Wop on Mulberry
Street. He'll fix you up.”

Calise did so. Joe the Wop made an-
other phone call to Florida, a call for
which Calise was forced to pay.

Then Joe said, “Okay, go home.
Everything's fixed up.”

It didn’t appear to be fixed up very
well. That night three rifle bullets
smashed through the front door of the
Calise home.

Shortly after that. the desperate book-
maker was haled before a kangaroo
court where he was ordered to pay
$1.000 for an arbitrator who would
handle the entire matter.

In short. Calise never got his invest-
ment back. In essaying to join the loan
sharks. he was treated like a delinquent
customer.

NOTHER Yonkers resident also had

some trouble with Manzo. This was
a male nurse who, unfortunately, was a
losing horse player.

He first borrowed $1,500 from ome
Samuel A. Santora. After he had paid
back about $2.500, he found he still
owed the loan shark another $2,400.
Then he borrowed $1,000 from Manzo
in order, as he said. “to quiet Santora
down.”

After he had paid Manzo $800. he
found that he still owed all the principal.
He was, suddenly, in deep trouble.

His wife said that, in the beginning,
she knew nothing at all of her husband’s
difficulties.

“But,” she said, "“a fellow who called
himself Sammy kept telephoning me. He
insisted that he get his interest. He got
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very angry when I objected to the high
payments.

“He told me that the payments were
high because he was a shylock and he
asked me if I knew what that meant.
Then he said that if my husband didn’t
pay him off that I'd be putting flowers
on my husband’s grave.”

Well. that wouldn't have been the
first time that flowers had been put on
the grave of a loan shark’s victim.

It is impossible to estimate the annual
take of the hoodlums who operate this
nation-wide racket. Many authorities
state that it is in excess of a billion dol-
lars. This cash is used to operate other
illegal enterprises. It is also used to per-
mit the racketeers to muscle into legi-

timate businesses and take them over.
Legal experts strongly recommend
that the law on usury be beefed up.
Several sugestions have been put for-
ward:
Force all money lenders to be
licensed.

2. Make usury a felony, not the mis-
demeanor it is in most states.

3. Grant immunity to witnesses SO
that they can be compelled to
testify.

4. Permit wiretaps in order to obtain
evidence aainst the loan. sharks.

These are all good ideas. But the shy-

locks are a persistent breed. It will not
be easy to put them out of their lucra-
tive business. *

TWO DEAD FOR BEDROOM SLASHER

(Continued from page 11)

where the body lay.

There was no evidence that the house
had been broken into. Apparently the
front door had been left unlocked and
the killer had wandered in from the
street, taking the young actress by sur-
prise. Captain Weysham recalled that
two years previously, during the Christ-
mas season, an unknown assailant had
entered another house in the same quiet
neighborhood and assaulted two women,
though not fatally.

HE HOMICIDE captain assumed

the unpleasant duty of notifying the
victim's parents of the tragedy. Donna's
mother. who worked as an assistant to a
doctor in the neighborhood, collapsed
upon learning the tragic news.

Her father. mechanical foreman in a
New Orleans garage. was driven home
in tears by the police. By the time he
reached the house. a suspect had been
taken into custody and was under guard
in a police car outside.

“I talked with Donna briefly on the
telephone at 10 o’clock and she was ali

right then,” he told the police. I said,
‘Happy birthday, honey. I'll see you
later’ and she replied, ‘Thank you.
daddy.” "

From the questioning of neighbors it
was established that the slayer must
have entered the house sometime after
10:30. A woman next door had been
hanging out clothes until that hour and
had seen no one. Another neighbor had
passed the Trussell house at 9:30. Mrs.
Trussell said she had left at 9:10 and
might have left the front door unlocked.

Then. when the victim's 15-year-old
brother returned from school at noon. it
was learned that the killer had escaped
on the boy's bicycle. He had left it stand-
ing alongside the house and it was now
missing.

[.ynne Buillard told the police that
Donna Trussell could hardly have been
known to her attacker. The lovely Don-
na had been in New York City studying
modeling. She had come to New Orleans
to spend the holidays with her relatives
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and was due to return north that after-
noon.

While in New York, Donna had lived
in Miss Buillard’s own apartment there.
Donna had previously shared an apart-
ment with her other cousin, Lynda Lee
Mead of Mississippi, the former Miss
America.

It was Donna’s father, a gifted actor
himself, who had done most to encour-
age her acting ambitions. They had
acted together in a local production of
Lillian Hellman’s play, “The Little
Foxes”, and had received rave reviews.
He had made it possible for her to go
to New York and to study modeling as
a means of livelihood while furthering
her dramatic career.

While Detective Hand and other
police continued to search the house and
question neighbors, Captain Wevsham
escorted [.ynne Buillard and her friend
to the Second District police station. Al-
though both had seen the killer at clos~
range, neither had had a look at his face.
Still they were both sure that the sus-
pect already picked up in the neighbor-
hood was too young to be the man they
had seen.

During the afternoon, when a 16-
year-old boy with a minor police record
was brought in, they also eliminated
him. They were less certain, however.
about three other suspects apprehended
later in the day. One of these men had
blood in his hair. All three were held
overnight. but were later released after
they had been given lie detector tests.

Late that afternoon, the bicycle be-
longing to Donna Trussell's young
brother was found abandoned in the
2800 block on Washington Street. It was
sent to the crime laboratory to be check-
ed for possible bloodstains, and officers
were sent to that neighborhood to look
for the man who had discarded the
bicycle.

Meanwhile, police had been combing
through the files of men who had rec-
ords for assaults on women. Teams of
detectives were dispatched throughout
the city, and those men who could be
found were carefully questioned.

By the following day, suspicion had
centered on a man with a record as a
rapist who had escaped from a mental

LEARN MODERN G!.AMD[IR

UPHULSTERING;

# Make Money 10 Different Ways!

* Big Pay Jobs * Automation Proof
Career *Part time at Home g
Now * Full Time Later

i

Learn 1o tur® old h.nmh.re wor eaumm
aelew dunars n\n b a h mu
3 u;e\.ea a ‘.

NOW_YOU can make the truiy modem conversation
pieces — the breathtakingly beautifui sofas, armchaus, S
attomans, built-ins, headboards, corrfices seen in Write for
color photos in HOYSE BEAUTIFUL, AMERICAN HOME .3 FREE
AND SUNDAY MAGAZINES. Make slipcovers, draperies, ZRRITIMIESIA ]
cushions Work o n home furnishings, cars, boats, ZHEFacuisy
teaiterst Learn MO OERN UPHOLSTERY AND YOU CAN CUIDEBDOK
MAKE MONEY TEN DIFFERENT WAYS' FAST, EASY, =
AT HOME. NO OVERHEAQ! Card or letter ta:
MODERN UPHOLSTERY INSTITUTE 3
Box 899-JS, Orange, California

F' am
REACHES US
IN ONE DAY

is included)

MEN-This wonderful, new discovery can be used in
the privacy of your home to restore health and
virility. MASSAGIQUE treatments are guaranteed to
bring relief to sufferers of urinary troubles, fre-
quency, burning, getting up nights, rectal discomfort
and bleeding, colitis, constipation, impotency, back-
ache, pain in hips and legs, and many other
disorders caused by prostate gland inflammation.
$21.95 postpaid. New Products Co., P.O. Box 1612,
Oklahoma City, Okla,

KENNESS

DO YOU WANT RELIEF?
Ruins Health, Happiness. Break
the Drnking Cycle QUICKLY
-INEXPENSIVELY! bae new
ALCOREM. the amazing liquid
that promotes aversion (dislike) to-
ward ALL intoxicating drinks. Not
classed as a Treatment or Cure but
it iS a recognized method of with-
drawal of afcohoi, Interrupts drink-
cycte and causes many to turn
from liquor. May be ta{en in secret. New ALCO REM
eliminates desire for more alcohol for varying pe-
riods, GUARANTEED Pure. Aversion treatmentisrecog-
nized by Medical Authority. Comes ready to use—-sim-
ple tnstructions inciuded—need not cause time out from
work. One happy ALCOREM user writes: '‘1 took
ALCOREM 9 years ago, and | have not taken or
wanted adrinksincethen. Pleasesend me ALCOREM
for a friend of mine who is a heavy drinker.””—Mrs.
. Princeton. Ky. As an additional helpwe send .
FREE' 21 PINKIES with order of ALCOREM.
Speaal Formula capeuics to help nervous and digestive
systems. Also WEIGHT CHART to guide reformed
drinker to proper weight.

DO NOT DELAY « ORDER NEW ALCOREM NOW
SATISFACTION OR MONEY BACK. We rush
ALCOREM, PINKIES, Weight Chart in plain wraeper.
Pav postman $9.95 plus C.0.B. and postage. To SAVE
$1.20 10 C.OD. & postage.send $9.9Swithorder
Known world wide since 1948
MIDWEST HEALTH AIDS . Suite S07-DC 3,

147 W. 42 St., New York, N. Y. 10036

SUBSCRIBERS READ
Detective Cases
WEEKS IN ADVANCE
OF RELEASE DATE-

BROOKSIDE ENTERPRISES, INC.
1472 Broadway, New York, N. Y. 1003C

| want the next twelve issues of DETECTIVE
CASES earlier! Enclosed is $4.20 for my (new)
(renewal) subscription.

NAME
ADDRESS




SAGGING STOMACH?

SLIM-R buoys you up firmly yet gently-—gives
you that welcome ‘‘rested’’ feeling that lets you
work or play without nagging, energy-robbing
discomfort. Broad, powerful high-grade elastic
belt pulls in sagging stomach muscles—makes
you appear inches slimmer. While wearing
SLIM-R, minor aches and pains caused by back-
strain are relieved. No-gouge stays prevent
wrinkling, rolling. Comfort-design pouch gives
that extra lift many men want. Snap-on pouch
detaches for easy laundering. Satisfaction guar-
anteed or money back if garment returned in
30 days postpaid. Send waist measure. $4.98
plus 25¢ postage. Buy two--one for change-off—
get tkird pouch support free.

Piper Brace Co.
Dept. BK-ISR
811 Wyandotte St.
Kansas City, Mo. - L S

:Piper Brace Co., Dept. BX-35R
1811 Wyandotte St.,, Kansas City, Mo.
| Send me....... _....Pi Peer SLIM-R belts |

lat $4.98 each. Waist size.................inches.
) (Add 25c¢ for postage, handling) h
'Tenclose $ .........0 Check [J Money Order
I'T understand you guarantee complete satisfac-

| tion or money back if gzarment is returned in )
| 30 days postpaid. i

.,
i
'
'
[
)
'
i
|
|
'
1
T
ax oy

institution three months previously. He
had been reported seen in New Orleans
but police had been unable to track
him down.

While the search for him continued,
officers in Jefferson Parish arrested a
man attempting to board a freight train
in the Illinois Central yard. He was
wearing tight-fitting dark trousers like
the man seen by the witnesses. and he
became a suspect when it was found that
he had scratches on his wrists. The
autopsy had revealed traces of skin un-
der the fingernails of the dead girl, and
the police were sure that she had
scratched her assailant.

Taken to headquarters, the suspect
denied any knowledge of the murder,
saying that he had received the scratches
several days previously when he was at-
tacked and robbed. He was cleared of
suspicion in the slaying when the two
witnesses said the man they had seen
was younger and not as tall.

As the week wore on with no definite
progress in the case, Captain Weysham
realized that the murder was of the type
that, if not solved quickly, might never
be solved. There was the probability,
however, that a sexual psychopath cap-
able of such a heinous crime would
strike again. Such a new foray might
bring about his capture.

The man might already have left the
area. But Weysham thought that some-
where, sooner or later, the police would
pick up his trail again. He had circulars
printed giving the details of the grue-
some birthday murder and the sketchy
description the police had of the slayer.
These were circulated throughout the
South and law enforcement agencies
were asked to question all such men
arrested for sex crimes about the Donna
Trussell case.

OR NEARLY four months this strat-

egy brought little result. Then, on
April 27, 1964, Captain Weysham had
a telephone call from the police of
Houston, Texas. They said they had just
arrested a 42-year-old Negro as a rapist
sought in a wave of six recent assaults
on women in their homes.

The suspect, who described himself
as an itinerant preacher, had been shot
in the leg several days previously by a
police officer who had attempted un-
successfully to arrest him on the com-
plaint of a rape victim. He had been
spotted limping along a street on April
26th by two officers in a patrol car.

When these officers tried to capture
the suspect with the help of a passing
citizen, he put up a furious battle. Offi-
cer Paul Hensley and the citizen were
both bitten by the enraged man and
had to be treated at a hospital. The sus-
pect also seized Hensley’s gun and tried
to shoot him.

After being overpowered and taken
to the police station, the self-styled
preacher was identified by three of the
rape victims. The Houston authorities
then informed the New Orleans police
of the possibility that he was the man
wanted in the murder of Donna Trussell.

The suspect denied that he had ever
been in New Orleans, however, and in-

vestigation later established that he was
in Houston on January 2nd. He was
therefore cleared in the Trussell slaying.

Again the murder of the teen-age ac-
tress seemed to have reached a stale-
mate. There were no further develop-
ments until October 17, 1961—and
then a savage assault was committed on
19-year-old Bonnie Jean Norton in her
New Orleans home by a Negro. She
told the police that he threatened her
with death if she resisted and said:

“I'm an ex-convict and I don’t mind
dying for what I'm doing.”

During the assault, Bonnie Jean's 12-
year-old brother heard her screaming
and came running into the room. The
attacker forced him to remain and wit-
ness the rape of his sister. But at last
the boy managed to get away and sum-
mon his father, who was outdoors.

The father armed himself with a
butcher knife and broke into the room.
He threw himself on the intruder and
stabbed him in the shoulder.

The attacker broke away from him,
however. He jumped to the ground from
a second-story porch and escaped.

Soon afterward, an informant called
the police to report that a man he knew
named Roosevelt Hughes had stopped
by his house to change his clothes,
which were covered with blood. Hughes
was discovered in bed at his home near-
by, nursing a shoulder wound. Taken
to the police station, he admitted the
attack on the 19-year-old girl, and Bon-
nie Jean identified him.

Hughes denied any knowledge of the
Trussell slaying. but the circumstances
were similar and he was booked for
suspicion in that crime too.

Captain Weysham had Lynne Buil-
lard driven to the police station to see
whether she could identify him. The
police were doomed to disappointment,
however.

“He doesn’t look like the man I saw
with Donna,” she said. “No, I'm sure
he’s not.”

Though Roosevelt Hughes was jailed
on the rape charge, the suspicion of
murder charge against him was dis-
missed.

Once more the police were at a dead
end in the birthday slaying, but thev had
no intention of giving up their efforts.
As the months went by. scores of men
arrested for rape and other crimes of
violence were questioned in the unsolved
Donna Trussell murder. One by one
they were eliminated.

The year 1962 passed without de-
velopments, as did 1963 and the spring
and summer of 1964.

Then, on November 10. 1964. New
Orleans was shocked by another horrible
rape-murder.

Shortly after 2 o’clock that afternoon.
Mrs. Lillian E. Harris. who lived in a
fashionable duplex house on Louisiana
Avenue Parkway, drove to a neighbor-
hood supermarket. There she cashed a
check for $40 and spent a leisurely
hour shopping for groceries.

RS. HARRIS, 41 years old, was the
wife of Louis S. Harris. vice-presi-
dent of two companies in the engineer-
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ing field. He and his wife had come
from New York City to make their
home in New Orleans about eight years
previously.

Lillian Harris had taken a strong in-
terest in local civic affairs. She had be-
come known to political, educational
and religious leaders as a determined
fighter for good government and the
rights of the underprivileged. She had
hundreds of friends and was respected
by people in high places throughout the
city. Still, she had always led a quiet
life, considering her first duty to be as
a home-maker for her husband and her
three children.

Mrs. Harris returned from her shop-
ping trip at about 3 o’'clock with two
large bags of groceries. Leaving one for
the moment in her small foreign-made
car at the curb, she entered the house
with the other, waving a cheerful greet-
ing to a neighbor who was entering his
house next door.

But Mrs. Harris did not go back for
the other bag of groceries. When her
13-year-old son returned from school
at about 3:50 p.m., he found the door
leading to their second floor apartment
standing ajar. He went upstairs and
called to his mother. but received no
answer. Then going to a bedroom, he

~—ztopped in the doorway with a cry of

horror.

He turned and ran downstairs to the
first-floor apartment of the building's
owner, Dr. Irving Sheen, and Dr. Sheen
hurried back upstairs with the boy.

Lillian Harris was lying face down on
a blood-soaked bed. Her handbag lay
open on the floor nearby. Her clothing
was torn and disarranged, her hands
were tied behind her back and she had
also been tied around the neck.

Dr. Sheen saw that there was a wound
from a small-caliber bullet in her left
temple. But she was still living, and he
grabbed the phone and called for an
ambulance. Then he notified the police.

A patrol car and an ambulance ar-
rived at the same moment, and police
officers helped carry the stricken woman
down to the waiting vehicle. She was
rushed to Touro Infirmary and taken to
the emergency room. All possible efforts
were made to save her life, though it was
realized that there was little hope. She
died at 5:20 a.m. without regaining
consciousness.

In the meantime, Police Superinten-
dent Joseph I. Giarusso had arrived at
the apartment with Deputy Superin-
tendent Alfred A. Theriol, Detective
Chief James Cassanova and a contin-
gent of detectives. A search of the
house and the questioning of neighbors
established a basic outline of what had
happened.

Upon arriving home from the super-
market, Lillian Harris had left a heavy
bag of groceries on her kitchen table.
Apparently she had left the front door
open, intending to return for the second
bag. But an unknown man had slipped
into the house.

He surprised Mrs. Harris in the Kkit-
chen and probably forced her into the
bedroom at gunpoint. There he tied her
hands and threw her on the bed. After
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assaulting the helpless woman, he de-
liberately shot her in the temple to pre-
vent her from ever identifying him.
Then he snatched the money from her
handbag and made his escape.

Though the crime had occurred in
mid-afternoon, none of the neighbors
had seen the man enter or leave the
house, nor had any heard the shot or
any unusual commotion. A careful
search by police revealed that the slayer
had left no clues that might reveal his
identity.

Superintendent Giarusso announced
that he would take personal charge of
the investigation. He saw at once that
the case was remarkably similar to the
murder of the young actress, Donna
Trussell, back in 1961. [n spite of many
months of untiring work by Captain
Weysham and the homicide squad, this
case still remained wide open.

The possibility that the same man had
committed both crimes was heightened
by the fact that several neighbors re-
ported seeing a slender Negro betwcen
the ages of 25 and 30 in the neighbor-
hood both before and after the murder
of Mrs. Harris.

The man was a stranger to them and
efforts to learn his identity failed. But
a man working on the roof of a house
near the Harris home had seen him
clearly. He and several neighbors were
able to describe him well enough so that
a composite sketch could be made. This
drawing was published on the front

pages of the New Orleans newspapers
and the public was asked to help the
police identify him.

It was not certain that the man pic-
tured was the slayer, however; he might
have been in the neighborhood on inno-
cent business. While the search for him
went on, the police also foltowed up
other leads.

The victim's husband had been out
of town on the day of the murder. Upon
his return. the executive gave the police
information which led them to seek an
acquaintance of the Harris family at
the Jefferson Downs race track.

This man was later located and ques-
tioned in Baton Rouge. The police
would not reveal his identity or why they
had questioned him, but they announced
on Thursday that he was no longer a
suspect.

S THE HUNT for the unknown
Negro went on, friends and neigh-
bors of the dead woman established a
reward fund for information leading to
the arrest of her slayer. By Friday this
fund had passed the $5,000 mark.
Work on the case continued with no
new developments, however. until Mon-
day, Novemniber 16th. Then a series of
seemingly unrelated events occurred
which, through the alertness of the

police, were to lead to its solution.

On that day. two police officers of the
narcotics squad drove up beside a group
of five Negro men standing along a
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street. The officers had no particular
suspicion against the men. It was a rou-
tine investigation and they simply want-
ed to talk to them.

As they approached. one of the men
darted away and vanished into an alley.
The officers had barely a look at him
and it would have been hopeless to try
to find him. But his behavior indicated
that he had reason to avoid the police.
and they wondered what the reason was.

His friends said they knew him only
as “Frank.” He had taken a room in the
neighborhood lately, they said, and he
spent most of his time in bars.

Still curious about this man’s reluct-
ance to be questioned, the narcotics
officers investigated further. They learn-
ed that "Frank™ usually hung out at a
particular barroom near Washington
and Magnolia Streets. He was pointed
out to them in this establishment and
they took him into custody for ques-
tioning. He gave his name as Frank
Williams.

They were soon satisfied that he was
not connected with the drug traffic.
However. a routine check of his finger-
prints established that his full name was
Frank Charles Williams and that he was
an ex-convict and a former patient at
a state mental hospital. He was present-
ly on parole from Orleans Parish Prison,
from which he had been released on
November 7, 1963.

Williams™ record folder in the identi-
fication division also bore a notation that
he was wanted for questioning, if and
when located, by Captain Robert Ham-
ilton and Detective David Kent.

The narcotics men promptly notified
the police captain that Williams was in
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custody. The captain was glad to hear it.

“*Good!" Captain Hamilton exclaim-
ed. “"We've been looking for Williams
ever since August—for questioning re-
garding an aggravated assault on a
young Negro woman.”

Hamilton said that the woman, 19-
year-old Sally Franklin, had charged
that Williams, whom she knew slightly,
entered her house, attempted to rape
her, and slashed her with a razor. She
had had to be hospitalized for her
wounds.

Frank Williams was turned over to
Captain ‘Hamilton for questioning. A
slender man of medium height, he was
now 22 years old but looked older. He
stoutly denied the attack on Sally Frank-
lin. And then Captain Hamilton noticed
that Williams resembled the sketch of
the suspect in the rape-murder of Mrs.
Lillian Harris.

The police captain had Sally Franklin
brought in. She pointed an accusing
finger at Williams.

“That’s him!” she cried. “He’s the
man who slashed me and he knows it.
Don’t you let him lie out of it!

“I'll tell you something else. too,” the
young woman went on. “Before he at-
tacked me he tried to scare me into let-
ting him do what he wanted to. He said
he was the man who killed Donna Trus-
sell back in 1961, and that he'd just as
soon do the same thing to me.”

This was the first time in her talks
with the police that Sally Franklin had
mentioned the name of the blonde teen-
age actress.

"Why didn’t you tell us this before?”
Captain Hamilton demanded.

Sally shrugged her shoulders. “Well,

I didn’t know if Frank really did kill
that girl. 1 figured probably he was
boasting, just trying to frighten me.”

When the young woman had left,
Hamilton studied Williams' police rec-
ord more thoroughly. He found that it
began on March 6. 1961, when Wil-
liams was convicted of burglary. Since
then he had had convictions for theft.
aggravated battery, and auto theft, and
he had been confined almost constantly
until November, 1963. But on the dates
of the murders of Donna Trussell and
Mrs. Lillian Harris and the assault on
Sally Franklin, he had been a free man.

Captain Hamilton called in Deputy
Police Superintendent Theriot. and thc
two men questioned Williams about the
three crimes. They could see him grow-
ing increasingly uneasy. Finally he burst
out:

“All right. I did it. 1 pulled a razor
on Sally Franklin like she said. That's
why I ran away from those two cops. I
knew if they found out about Sally I'd
go back to jail for a long time because
I was already on parole.”

Williams went on to give the officers
the details of his alleged razor assault
on the young woman. Then they sum-
moned Superintendent Giarusso, Detec-
tive Chief Cassanova and District At-
torney Garrison. and the questioning
was continued.

For several hours the suspect with-
stood the rapid-fire questions of these
veteran investigators. Then slowly his
resistance melted. Late that night,
Thursday, November 20, 1964, he ad-
mitted the rape-slayings of both women.
He was then booked on two counts of
first degree murder. as well as for the

In St. Petersburg, Florida, reporter Sally Derrickson went through obstacle course deputies use to keep physically fit.
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assault on Sally Franklin, and confined
to jail.

HE FOLLOWING morning, Super-

intendent Giarusso released a sum-
mary of the statement allegedly made
by Williams regarding the murder of
Mrs. Harris. He said that Williams had
been walking along Louisiana Avenue
Parkway when he noticed that the front
door of the Harris home was standing
open. He entered, went up the stairs and
saw Mrs. Harris in her kitchen.

“Williams then pointed a gun at Mrs.
Harris and demanded money.” Super-
intendent Giarusso stated. “She led him
to the bedroom, where she had left her
purse. She was then attacked. and was
later shot when she grabbed Williams
as he was about to flee the premises.
While unconscious. she was sexualty
assaulted.”

The superintendent went on to say
that Williams had named a friend to
whom he said he had given the .22-
caliber pistol used in the slaying. This
friend had passed.it on to another man.
Giarusso said. But prompt action on the
part of detectives had resulted in the re-
covery of the weapon Friday afternoon.

The superintendent declined to reveal
details of Williams' alleged admission
to the gruesome murder of Donna
Trussell. except to say that he admit-
ted raping the girl.

Some insight into the tortured mind
of a man capable of such horrible crimes

DETECTIVE CASES

was gained when police talked with
Williams® mother. She said that her son
had never been a normal boy and that
he had spent three years in Jackson
State Hospital as an adolescent.

“When he was 15. a hospital doctor
told me that he had the mind of a 3-
year-old,” she said. “He told me that
he must be watched carefully for the
rest of his life.”

She went on to say that during the
early months of 1961—after the murder
of Donna Trussell—he had tried repeat-
edly to kill himself.

“Once he laid out flat on Airline
Highway. hoping a car would run over
him,” she said. “Another time my lttle
daughter caught him as he was about
to drink cleaning fluid. He also tried to
blind himself once with acid.”

She said that when he had been
moved from the parish prison back to
Jackson State Hospital after his burgla-
ry conviction. he wrote home and told
her: “Mama. I don’t understand any-
thing any more. Nobody helps me. They
just work me here.”

“When he finally came home on pro-
bation. he used to cry all the time.” she
continued, *“and he couldn’t think
straight. I knew he was still sick in his
mind.

*After that he didn’t live with me anv
more. But I knew he was still sick and
crazy and nobody could ever do any-
thing about it.”

Frank Williams was granted prompt

legal aid by the court. and his attorneys
immediately filed a petition for a writ
of habeas corpus. In this they asked
not for his release from custody but that
he be held in a mental institution.

His lawyers contended that his ar-
rest on the murder charges was “illegal
and invalid” because his mental condi-
tion prevented him from understanding
his present situation.

Formal chages of murder were filed
against Williams before the petition
could be acted upon, however. and on
Wednesday, November 26, 1964, the
case was brought before the Orleans
Parish Grand Jury. In spite of the
efforts of Williams' attorneys to post-
pone action on the case, the grand jury
returned indictments against Williams
in the slayings of both Donna Trussell
and Mrs. Lillian Harris.

As this account is written. Frank
Charles Williams remains in jail. under
indictment for the two murders which
horrified New Orleans. In view of his
history of mental illness, it seems un-
likely that he will ever go to trial for
these savage crimes-—for which he
would undoubtedly be sent to the elec-
tric chair if found guilty. But, in any
case, he faces indefinite confinement in
a mental institution~—from which he
probablv should never have been re-
leased. *

Editor's Note: The names Bonnie Jean
Norton and Sally Franklin are fictitious.
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BURIAL POLICY

starts the day you mail the attached card

if you are in good health and under 80

Yes! Rush the attached card to get — FREE for 30
days' coverage— your $1,000.00 Burial Policy direct
by mail from famous TIME LIFE Insurance Com-
pany, one of America’s great and respected insurance
institutions. Nothing else to do! Ne physical examina-
tion! No salesman will call! You are covered the
moment you drop the card in your mail box!

This brand new renewable term insurance policy
provides many new and desirable benefits. It insures
your Beneficiary as well as yourself . . . it pays $2,000

for certain types of accidental death...it INCREASES
in benefits the longer you keep it

We make this special offer so you can see for your-
self, ABSOLUTELY FREE, the marvelous protection
it affords. This policy is issued so that you will not have
to burden your loved ones with funeral costs and other
debts and expenses. Fill out and mail the postage-paid
reply card TODAY ... TOMORROW MAY BE
TOO LATE.

SEND NO MONEY—SOLD BY MAIL ONLY
NO AGENT WILL CALL—NO PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

Upon receipt and approval, we will immediately send
you your new low-cost $1,000.00 Policy. There will be
NO CHARGE for the first month. You’ll be fully pro-
tected ABSOLUTELY FREE. The low rate for addi-
tional months will be shown on the policy. There is no

TIME LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY is an estab-
lished Old Line Legal Re-
serve Company. Its co-
founder and first President
was the late General Jona-
than M. Wainwright, hero
of Bataan and Corregidor in World War I1.

obligation of any kind on your part to continue, unless
you want to. This is a real bargain. You'll agree when
you see it for yourself. You be the judge. No agent
will call. It is available to you NOW if you act imme-
diately. Mail the card RIGHT NOW!

PAYS CLAIMS PROMPTLY

"l want to thank you for the prompt. courteous way my
claim was handled. At least there were no money problems
to add to the tragedy of my husband's death.” Juanita
Gonzales, Springer, New Mexico.

“Please accept our sincere appreciation for all the kind
acts of courtesy that were extended to our family by your
company during the recent death of our son. We shall
never forget the efficient manner in which our claim was
settled.” Richard Burnett, Columbia, South Carolina.

P e e e e

TIME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY, Dept. Nekso2, |

General Wainwright Station, San Antonio, Texas 78208

SEND THIS CARD

”’"“’f’ — @ecueatin, - NO OBLIGATION
I W 5 - NO SALESMAN

(State) Ft./In.

WILL CALL

I am now in good health and | have no physical or mental impairment or deformity nor have |
received medical or surgical treatment in the past five years. If any exceptions, give full details, etc., =
on separate sheet of paper. (If card has been removed, or

if you wish still another mem-

HpnHerg ber of your family to receive
a policy, use coupon at left))

Address

City State. Zip

To get free policies for other members of your family, make coupon like above for each. No obliga-
tion. No agent will call.
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We furnish all the

If you've wanted to BE YOUR OWX BOSS .. . to
have
.and own a Nationally Advertised

become financially
growing income .
business. now YOU CAN.

independent

You can stay at ¥Your present job while your
then switch to full time.
lining up Jjobs for your servicemen to do.

One small job a day brings a good starting in-
As you add full or part-time servicemen,
your income is limited only by your own effort.

Dealers operate from a shop. office. or their

customer list grows
come.
home.

EqQuipment is portable

It's Easier than You Think to Start Your Own Business :

superior merits of dour services, builds »aur cus-
tomer confidence and brings job leads to you.

We and a Duraclean dealer will train you and
proven

When you receive our illusirated booklet,
will see the way we show you ~tep by step how to
how to steadily build
more customers from their recornmendations.
location' in
churches.

quickly get customers . . .

All six services are rendered
homes, offices, hotels. theaters,
motels and institutions.

These superior, safer and convenient methods
dealerships throughout North
Portugal,

Israel. Norway and many other countries.
advertising

spread Duraclean
and South America. Africa,

National Magazine

Start Small, Grow Big

Many men have said to us. “'I can't afford to give
up my job till I know I have a sure thing . . . a
sound business that will prowde both security and

a better living for my family."”

That made sense to us so we worked out such a
and those same men are now enjoying

plan _ ..

Duraclean dealerships in many communities.
roven methods
Know hew.™

Don’'t decide
Mail the coupon so you'll have the facts to decide
whatsoever.
will then know whether this is what you want.
big just as we
did. A third of a century ago Duraclean was an
but it caught fire and spread rap:dly to
It spread because
based upon (1) superior processes and (2) proven

don't experiment. You usc fested,
You huave our backingg ad -
Does this appeal to you?

wisely. There 1s no obligation
You can start. small and gBrow

idea . . .
a worldwide service

customer-getting methaods,
Our first service,

explains

the care of carpets and up-

You Schedule the Orders

while Your Servicemen Bring You

$18 an hour gross profit

Yes. that is your hourly gross profit from the work of only three servicemen

at “national-price- -guide”

We show vou how . ..

rates. And this is much easier to do than yvou think.
step by step. Duraclean dealers find it is easy to gross $6

per hour on EACH serviceman plus S9 per hour on any service they themselves
render. Your income is limited only by the number of servicemen vou employ.
The 24 page illustrated booklet we'll mail you (with no obligation) explains how
most of your gross profit becomes a clear net profit to you.

Start while Continuing Present Job

a fast
yourself .

This business is easy to learn ..
easy to service that women dealers often do it.
We prefer you have no experience . .

“uniearn”™ old methods.

the electric coupon.

you

assist you. He’ll reveal
methods.
clubs,
Furnmshings stores.
‘round services are

TODAY
dealership . .

England.

the

Government
growing faster than

firures

ture cleaning. You have

You
for profit on every job

now, bus:iness.

You

customer satisfaction,
a Duraclean dealership,
It's been satd.
every man‘s door."”
opportunity In your life.

it was

holstery, exemplities these superiorities. It not It is surprisingly easy
only cleans; it eniivens the fibers revives dull to learn this business,
colors. Pile rises with uew life. Furnishings are You can decide {from the
used again in a few hours information we will send

There's no machine scrubbing. No soaking veu whether to apply for

Duraclean cleans by absorption.
lightly applied.
unsightly spots like magic

Muld aerated foam
lifts out dirt grease and many

—Resale
Service

If. because of illness. moving
or for any reason a dealer
wants to sell. we maintain a
service to locate buyers and to
help him sell.

Dealerships resell at up to
10 tlmes the dealer's cost.
R.DK., after 5 months. sold for
82.000 above his cost. L.L.. after
30 months. got $7.116 more
than he had paid. The vilue of
your dealership and f{ranchise
grows monthly.

a dealership. So. with no
obligation whatever. mail
the coupon TODAY

FREE BOOKLET

tells how to Start
Your Own Business

With no obligation. we'll mail you a
letier and 21 page booklet e(p].nmng this
business . . . how and why your income
Erows. . . how we help finance you.

Then decide if this u;);xt-rlunil)‘ fulfillx
vour dream of independence and a much
bigger income.

Your location should be taken tomor-
row . ..so mail coupon teday.

Find Out with
NO OBLIGATION

his
We show you all you need to know.
You have pre-tested newspaper and yellow-page
ads, commercials. and a full maiing program.
adjustors.
These year

msurance
decorators refer jobs to our dealers
m constant demand.
is the time to reserve a Duraclean
before someone takes your location.

show
industries and stores ’
$750 million yearly potential justin rug and furni-

serviCes but they are fully explained
bookletswe’ll mail You. You have six opportunities

We are NOW enlarging this worldwide system
of individually-owned service businesses. If you are
reliable. honest and willing to work to become
firancially independent, we invite you to mail the

successful,

in this Booming Business

service

Space here will not perm:t describing your other

= b Langaon Lawson: National adsertisimg s
3 other services. tobs. creates  leads I Septemher.  working
alone. bs totaled $1.47.5
in the free R. C. Blue: Custemer called a »fomigent
camPetiter, T stbd ey eonld not clean
hee hadl U UTATH to conbact me,
A s coubd get it a1 oeauld
Charles Randal: RBusiness  keebs  prowing

A few hundred dollars establishes YOUR OWN
A day's protit more than takes care of
the monthly payments we finance for you.

Men frequently take i1n partners.

We furnish electric equipment and enough ma-
terials to returt Yonr TOTAL
have good habits and know the importance of
you can likely qualify for

imestment.

"Opportunity knocks but once at in
This could be that one rare

not have to

businesses

equipment ... and help finance you

Foamov:utor converts to a convenient carrying case.

At the start. you may want to render service
or you can start out. with servicemen.
easy to start .. so

Own a
Nationally
Advertised

Business

Your Services
Are Endorsed by
McCa!t's Magazine,
Amer. Research &
Testing Lcboratories
and by
leading Carpet Mills
& Furniture Makers
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$£) .00 thus year.
mean to you d. Kramsky: In 2 sears. I now
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Mail this coupon TODAY

It may put you in business

Duractean Co.. 5-942 Duraclean Bidg., Deerfieid, Ill. 60015 ]
With no obligation, mailletter with 24 page illustrated
booklet cxplaining how [ can increase my income and I

family security with a Duraclean Dealership. I
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Make More Money Starting Soon

earn Radio Television

lectronics

BY PRACTICING AT HOME
IN YOUR SPARE TIME

Fast Growing Field Offers YOU
High Pay, Prestige, Bright Future

There are more job opportunities in Electronics than any other
field. These are better than average jobs with bright futures . . . jobs
for which YOU could qualify through NRI training. Thousands of
men like yourself most without a high school diploma stepped
up to good money in Radio and TV broadcasting, industrial
Electronics or in businesses of their own.

Train With The Leader — Get Started Fast

Throughout the U.S. and Canada, successful NRI graduates are
proof that it’s practical to train at home, in your spare time, at your
own pace. Keep your present job while training. For 45 years, NRI
has featured the best Radio-TV Electronics training at low cost
because it is the oldest and largest school of its kind. The NRI

Make Money in Spare Time
Soon After You Enroll

Soon after you enroll, NRI shows you
how to earn extra money in your spare
tuve fixing Radio and Television sets for
friends and neighbors or doing Elec-
tronics repairs. This has led to successful
full time businesses for many NRI grad-
uates. Other NRI students have found
ood jobs within a year after enrolling.
o experience necessary, diploma when
you graduate.
Take the first step toward new prestige
and a brighter future. Mail postage-free
card TODAY for FREE CATALOG.
National Radio Institute, Washington
16, D.C. Accredited Member National

“learn-by-doing” method is the practical way to get into this | Home Study Council.

exciting field quickly. Fill in, cut out and mail postage-free card.

Picture Yourself As One of These Successful NRI Graduates

“Thunks to NRI I am in a top *NRI trainink op¢ned up a world of "I work forthe U.8.Anpy Electronic
position with the Federal «\via- ’ oppertunities and gave me con! Laboratories at Ft. Menmouth. [
G tion Agemy in the Navaids Elec- = =¥ dcnce. 1 earn much above average had a promotion before 1 finished
tronic Section.” JOE DUCKWORTH, = the Comfunications course.” R. L.

A"

salary as Hectmmc technician for

JULIUS

,-‘ A I-url Worth, Texas. L 2 Canadinn Marconi.'" JOHN 3. JANEGA, nitTek, Eatontowh. N.J.
“I have u ghare Line Sy dney, Nova Scotia, o BRefere enrolling | could hardl,
shop and also do work fer four ( ) “After gmduulmg | was uﬂhlplm-rd 4 ..,"d;'ﬁ,;{" bllr:u lm!lxlaee :'f.ﬁlffr:s
dealers. Before 1 started with 1 radiv operator. Now, I am chiefen- #€ buginess, the best Color ‘I'V instru-
NR], | didn't know a resistor gineerof Station WARA.” RAYMOND P ments, a service truck.
f ‘

,j V. ARNOLD, Attieboro, Masa. ‘1) BILLENBRAND, Brooklyn, N. Y

Without Extra Charge NRI Sends You
Equipment for Practical Experience

There’s nothing like shop and labor- -
Lo
oERQ
[ 3

atory practice at home to make learn-
(e At L] ¥
L |

ing easier, faster and more interest-

from 8 condenser.”" FARL GROSS,
Hunover, Ontano, Can,

Send for |
FREE
64-Page
Catalog L. = |

in| E When you train with NRI you
ARN-BY-DOING with profes-
sional equipment NRI furnishes.
You learn with your hands as well as
your head. The equipment you build
Ee art of your training not only
teaches you, ‘but also earns for you as
you use it to do repair jobs. All NRI
equipment is yours to keep, at no ex-
tra cost. ACT NOW. Find out more
about special training equipment
you get, the NRI 60-day trial enroll-
ment plan and easy monthly terms. ——
Mail postage-free card today. pres.
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